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The United States Commission on Civil Rights 
The United States Commission on Civil Rights, first created by the Civil Rights Act of 1957, 
and reestablished by the United States Commission on Civil Rights Act of 1983. is an 
independent, bipartisan agency of the Federal Government. By the terms of the 1983 act, as 
amended by the Civil Rights Commission Amendments Act of 1994, the Commission is 
charged with the following duties pertaining to discrimination or denials of the equal 
protection of the laws based on race, color, religion, sex, age, disability, or national origin, or 
in the Rdministration of justice: investigation of individual di.sc:riminatory denials of the right 
to vote; study and collection of information relating to discrimination or denials of the equal 
protection of the law; appraisal of the laws and policies of the United States with :respect to 
discrimination or denials of equal protection of the law; maintenance of a national 
clearinghouse for information respecting discrimination or denials of equal protection of the 
law; investigation of patterns or practices of fraud or discrimination in the conduct of Federal 
elections; and preparation and issuance of public service announcements and advertising 
campaigns to discourage discrimination or denials of equal protection of the law. The 
Commission is also required to submit reports to the President and the Congress at such 
times as the Commission, the Congress, or the President shall deem desirable. 

The State Advisory Committee~ 
An Advisory Committee to the United States Commission on Civil Rights has been 
established in each of the 50 States and the District of Columbia pursuant to section 105(c) of 
the Civil Rights Act of 1957 and section 3(d) of the Civil Rights Com.mission Amendments Act 
of 1994. The Advisory Committees a..""e :ma.de up of responsible persons who serve without 
compensation. Their functions under their mandate from the Commission are to: advise the 
Commission of all relevant information concerning their :respective States on matters within 
the jurisdiction of the Commission; advise the Commission on matters of mutual concern in 
the preparation of reports of the Commission to the President and the Congress; receive 
reports, suggestions, and recommendations from individuals, public and private 
organizations, and public officials upon matters pertinent to inquiries conducted by the State 
Advisory Committee; initiate and forward advice and recommendations to the Commission 
upon matters in which the Commission shall request the assistance of the State Advisory 
Committee; and attend, as observers, any open hearing or conference that the Commission 
may hold within the State. 
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The Vermont Advisory Committee submits this report of its community fonm;i. on racial 
harassment in Vermont public schools held on November 4 and 5, 1997, in Burlington and 
Rutland. In 1996 the Advisory Committee learned that racial slurs and physical assaults 
were repeatedly directed at minority students in both elementary and secondary schools. The 
Committee also received allegations that some schools permitted a racially hostile 
environment t.o exist and, in some instances, encouraged school activities or employed 
curriculum materials that were derogatory t.o minority students. At its 2-day forum, the 
Committee sought t.o collect information regarding these and other incidents from State and 
Federal officials, school officials and teachers, community leaders, parents, and students. 

Thirty-six panelists offered their views of racial harassment in .the public schools. Many 
described the public schools as unfriendly and hostile, a setting wherein racial slurs, 
epithets, and physical assaults occur. Thia environment leads minority students t.o 

•experience fear in every day school activities and contributes t.o their general ostracism from 
the t.otal school community. The Committee is deeply concerned for the safety and welfare of 
all students, particularly minorities, who at times must confront these acts without 
assistance from school officials and State agencies. 

The number of panelists at the forum represents a small fraction of persons invited by the 
Advisory Committee t.o participate in the discussion. Despite the Advisory Committee's 
substantial outreach efforts t.o State legialat.ors, educational union representatives, and 
school adminiatrat.ors, the Advisory Committee noted the absence of many key figures in the 
educational community who could have contributed information t.o the Committee but chose 
not t.o. Their absence and apparent lack of interest in the problem, the Committee believes, 
reflect a general indifference t.o the problem of racial harassment. 

Based on information gathered at the forum and followup research, the Committee 
concludes: 

• Racial harassment appears pervasive in and around the State's public schools. The 
elimination of this ·harassment is not a priority ·•among ·school .administrat.ors, school 
boards, elected officials, and State agencies charged with civil rights enforcement. In 
some instances, adminiatrat.ora and government leaders have denied the existence of the 
problem and do not acknowledge the need for improvements in overall race relations 
within the State. As the numbers of minority students increase, there will be a 
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concurrent rise in the number of racial harassment incidents that will not be adequately 
dealt with by school adrninis~ators and State civil rights enforcement agencies. 

• Coordinated leadership by elected officials, business leaders, and education officials is 
needed to bring about improved race relations. 

• Existing State law is deficient in addressing the problem of racial harassment on a 
systemwide basis and does not grant the Vermont Department of Education direct 
oversight responsibility of supervisory unions and local school boards with regards to 
racial harassment issues. This greatly inhibits the department's ability to impose 
sanctions in the event particular boards fail to develop or implement anti.harassment 
policies and procedures. 

• Sta.ff shortages and limited resources available to the Vermont Department of Education 
render it difficult for the department to set the elimination of racial harassment as a 
statewide priority, conduct statewide assessments of the effectiveness of local efforts to 
promote bias-free school environments, and offer traininc and wcbuical expertise to 
schools. 

• The Vermont Human Rights Commission, the only State agency specifically empowered 
to investigate racial harassment incidents, does not have sufficient resources to 
effectively address racial harassment incidents once they are reported. When complaints 
are made to the agency, parents of minority students experience long delays between the 
time a complaint is filed and CMJrnission action, and are not informed ·of the status of • 
their complaints. These undue delays have not only frustrated parents but continued to 
inflict psychological damage on students who daily confront barassm.ent on school 
grounds. 

This report brings to the forefront an important, yet often neglected issue, and offers useful 
recommendations to State officials, school t1drninistrators, and civic organizations. We believe 
this report contributes to the Commission's efforts to monitor equal educational opportunity at 
the national level. The Committee has adopted its report in a recorded poll of all members by a 
vote of 13 to 0, no abstentions. 

Respectfully, 

Kimberly B. Cheney, Chairperson 
Vermont Advisory Committee 
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Chapter 1 

Introduction 

I urge you to please develop a sense of ~ney about 
racism within our schools. All of our children _are be· 
ing diminished. If you are in a positi~n to receive this 
report, you are most likely ill a_ poS1t1on to do ~me­
thing about it. You have an obligation to all children 
to be a catalyst for change. Don't allow the legacy that 
parents of children of color have had to ~a~ OD to 
each generation continue, the legacy of p1ckmg our 
children up at 2:30 and attempting to repmr the dam· 
age that has been done to them d~g ~eir school 
day. Racism is not a problem or an J.Ssue; its a way of 
life. 

- excerpt from parent testimony1 

On the evening of June 25, 1997, a IS-year• 
old African American boy was beaten with a 
baseball bat outside a Burlington mall by several 
white teenagers, who witnesaes claim shouted 
racial remarks at the victim.2 A week before the 
attack, community leaders in Burlington spon• 
sored a forum to discuss race relations and ways 
to end racial harassment in the surrounding 
community. The forum was spearheaded by sup­
port groups and community action organizations 
that for many years have expresaed concern for 
the safety of minorities and have voiced their 
belief that overall race relations in the State 
have deteriorated. 

These organizations, formed to serve Ver­
mont's expanding minority population, have 
monitored the rise in the number of racial har­
assment incidents against minority youth, some 
of which occurred in and around Vermont public 
schools.a Although the number of actual incl-

1 wlie McCrorey Wells, testimony before the Vermont Ad­
vilory Committee to the U.S. Commiuion on Civil Rights, 
commwaii:y forum, Burlington, Vermont, Nov. 4, 1997, Bur• 
lington tranacript (hereafter cited u Burlin.pm Tronxript) 
p. 282. The tranac:ript of tbeae proceed.inp is on 6le at the 
Commiuion'a Eastern Reponal Oflice. 
2 Shay Totten, "Rebwldiq Racial Harmony; Ve-rmont 
7ima, July 9, 1997, vol 7, no. 28; and Lexia/Nem State 
News Service, "Minorii:y Leaders Cbarp Racism,• June 27, 
1997. 
3 See Le:.Eis/Nem State News Service, Vermont, June 17, 
1996; Kristin Bloomer. "New Group Vowe to Fight Racism," 

dents is not available, the Vermont Human 
Rights Commission. the Vermont Department of 
Education, and community groups have docu• 
mented numerous cases of racial harassment 
directed at students of all ages. These include 
physical and verbal assaults against minority 
elementary school students, racial harassment of 
an African American high school student by 
athletic team members, and racial epithets di­
rected at a biracial student.• It is alleged that 
these incidents are a small sample of the kinds 
of racial harassment that occur in the public 
schools.' 

It has also been reported that some school 
administrators have shown a reluctance or un• 
willincness to take necessary action to prevent 
these incidents. In some cases, the Vermont 
Human Rights Cnrnmissinu found that althouch 
school officials were aware of the harassment., 
schools failed to put a stop to the conduct or did 
not take appropriate steps to redress the sys­
temic problem of continuing racial harassment.• 
In one case, over a several year period, parents 
of a minority elementary school student reported 
incidents of racial harassment to the school ad­
ministration, which responded to each incident. 
When the child's parents asked the, school to 
take broader remedial action, no additional ac­
tion was taken until the student was subjected 
to five incidents in a 2-week period.7 It was only 
after these incidents that the school contacted 
the parents of the harassing students and 
threatened to impose harsher disciplinary action 

Rutland Hl!TOld and the Sunda, 7imes Ar6r,&s, June 16, 
1996. 
4 Susan M. SWIBIDan, former eucutive director, Vermont 
Human Righta Commiuion., written atatemeDt pruented to 
the Vermont Advisory Committee to the U.S. OlmmiNricm 
on Civil Righta, May 15, 1996. A copy or the statement ia on 
6le at the Commission's Eastern Reponal Oflice. 
5 Ibid. 
8 Ibid. 
7 Harvey Golubock, director, Vermont Human Righta C,om. 
miuion, testimony, Burlington Traut:ript, p. 116. 
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against the students.8 However, the minority 
student felt he had to avoid certain groups of 
students at the school in order to prevent him­
self from being harassed.9 In a similar case, the 
parent of a biracial student reported incidents of 
racial slurs to school administration, which is­
sued a warning to the students involved.10 Dur­
ing the subsequent school year, one of the perpe­
trators again harassed the minority student; 
however this time, school administt"ators refused 
to issue additional sanctions other than a warn­
ing since this incident occurred in a new school 
year.11 School administrators also refused to 
schedule schoolwide seminars or diversity 
training despite the urging from the parent of 
the harassed student.12 

Prompted by incidents such as these, gov­
ernment officials and community organization 
representatives urged lawmakers to adopt leg­
islation prohibiting racial harassment in the 
State's public schools. In an effort to ensure that 
the State's public schools maintained safe 
learning environments, the legislature passed in 
1994 a State law prohibiting unlawful harass­
ment of students.13 This law (known simply as 
the Anti-Harassment in Education Act) requires 
school boards to develop and adopt a harassment 
policy and procedures that include: 

1. A statement prohibiting unlawful harassment 
of a student. 

2. A definition of harassment. 
3. Consequences and appropriate remedial ac­

tion for staffl4 or students who commit har­
assment. 

4. Procedures for reporting harassment of stu­
dents, including the designation of two or 
more persons within the institution to receive 
complaints. 

8 Ibid. 
9 In this caae, the Vermont Human Rights Commission 
reached an agreement with the achoo! and parents. The 
parents were paid a monetary award, and the achoo! imple­
mented procedures to prevent reoccurrence or the harau­
ment. Ibid., pp. 156-57. 
•0 Ibid., p. 54. 
11 Ibid., pp.54--65. 
12 Ibid., p.55. 
13 VT. STAT. ANN. tit. 16, § 565 (1997). 
14 Staff is defined u teacben, support staff", agents or the 
acbool, achoo! board memben, and unpaid volunteen. Ibid. 

5. Procedures for publicizing the availability of 
the Vermont Human Rights Commission and 
the U.S. Department of Education's Office for 
Civil Rights. 

6. A statement that acts of retaliation for re­
porting harassment or for cooperating in an 
investigation of harassment are unlawful. 

In implementing this law, school districts were 
given the option of developing and initiating age­
appropriate programs to effectively inform stu­
dents and staff about the substance of the policy 
and procedures (see appendix 1). 

Subsequent to the adoption of the Anti­
Harassment in Education Act, the Vermont De­
partment of Education developed a model har­
assment policy for school boards to adopt and 
adminiat.'!r in their respective districts (see ap­
pendix 2). The model policy, developed in con­
junction with other State agencies and commu­
nity groups, supplemented the law by adding the 
following elements: (a) definitions of unlawful 
harassment and sexual harassment, (b) a dis­
tinction between voluntary and mandatory re­
porting, (c) a duty to act when a school district 
encounters discrimination, (d) a prohibition 
against retaliation for reporting harassment in­
cidents, (e) the option of designating an equity 
coordinator in each school district/supervisory 
union, (f) a confidentiality requirement, (g) an 
informal resolution process, (h) appeal proce­
dures, and (i) training methods. The Department 
of Education distributed information and mate­
rials to assist school districts to implement the 
polices and procedures as required under the 
law.Iii 

In early 1997, the U.S. Department of Educa­
tion's Office for Civil Rights (OCR) received an­
ecdotal information from parents and commu­
nity leaders that racial harassment incidents 
were occurring in the Burlington area, which 
had experienced unprecedented increases in mi­
nority student population. These concerns 
prompted OCR in May 1997 to initiate a "'Profile, 
Assessment, and Resolution" (PAR) reviewi• of 

15 Paul Fauler, legal couDNI, Vermont Department or Edu­
cation, testimony. Burlill6tan Ttaueript, p. 72. 
16 A PAR review is a method to review a achool S)'llt,ema' 
title VI and title IX compliance. The goal of the racial bu­
usment PAR review ia to initiate chanpa in the diatrict 
that would enhance educational opportunity and euun an 
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the Burlington school district based on claims copies of their model harassment policies so that 
that incidents were not being effectively ad­ OCR could determine each district's policy. OCR 

found that in several instances some school dis­dressed by the district. i; 
tricts had failed to adopt any policy and thatThe focus of OCR's review was to determine 

(1) whether students were treated differently on 
the basis of their race and (2) whether differing 
degrees of discipline were applied to minority 
students.is As part of the week-long review, OCR 
conducted a series of meetings with administra• 
tors, teachers and staff from the Burlington 
school district, members of the Burlington 
School Board. and students and their parents. In 
focus group sessions19 with parents, among other 
claims, they alleged that the district failed to 
provide adequate resources to address harass• 
ment issues and support minority students. In 
addition, they claimed that the district failed to 
communicate efforts to address issues of diver• 
sity and racial harassment and at best provided 
"ineffective, sporadic. and superficial training on 
diversity issues."20 They also expressed their be· 
lief that the faculty did not respect minority stu• 
dents)ll • 

Following the review, the school district and 
OCR entered into an agreement to resolve these 
and other issues. Under the agreement OCR will 
continue to monitor the Burlington district's im· 
plementation of improvements over a 1-year pe• 
riod (see appendix 3). Independent of their re­
view of the Burlington school district, OCR 
asked each school board in the State to provide 

educational environment free from haruament. The office 
conducts investigative interviews and focus groups with 
school ofliciaJs, students, parents, and community leaders 
before illawng recommendations to the school board for ac­
tion. 
17 This characterization ia bued on information received 
from OCR. However, superintendent of the Burlingion 
school district, Donna K. Jemilo, offers a dilferent interpre­
tation of the reaaons for OCR'a review. Site app. 11. 
11 U.S. Department of Education, Office for Civil Rights, 
draft. recommendations to BurlingtOn school district related 
to discipline and racial haraaament, May 16, 1997. A copy of 
the draft recommendations ii on file at the Commillaion's 
East.em Regional Oflice. 
1' On May 12 and 13, 1997, OCR hoeted two community 
dialog aeuiona at Edmunds Middle School in Burlington. 
20 U.S. Department of Education, Oflice for Civil Rights, 
draft. recommendations to Burlington school district related 
to discipline and ncial haruament. May 16, 1997. A copy of 
the draft. recommendations ii on file at the Commillaion's 
East.em Regional Oflice. 
21 Jbid. 

many districts had drafted policies that ne­
glected to include essential elements as sug­
gested by the State. 

The Vermont Advisory Committee 
Throughout 1996 and 1997, the Vermont Advi­
sory Committee held three briefing sessions with 
Vermont Department of Education officials, 
community groups, and parents of minority stu­
dents.= Presenters at these meetings informed 
the Committee that although the Anti• 
Harassment in Education Act required school 
boards to adopt antiharassment policies and pro­
cedures by August 1, 1995, many had not com• 
plied with the law. In addition, they alleged that 
State officials had collected little information 
regarding which districts were· in complia:nce 
with the law or had developed effective policies 
as suggested in the State model 

Representatives from the Mt. Elmore Insti­
tute, a private consulting organization, reported 
that the number of racial and sexual harassment 
incidents in Vermont schools were frequent and 
comm.on.23 They claimed that many administra­
tors, staff, and teachers were poorly prepared to 
address the incidents, and at times exhibited a 
deep reluctance and hostility to harassment is• 
sues. In addition, when teachers and 11dmiuis• 
t:rators permitted hostile environments to con• 
tinue, they observed students were being taur;ht 
to ignore or take part in harassment incidents. 

The Advisory Committee heard of alleptions 
involving particular schools permitting a racially 
hostile environment to exist and, in some in• 
stances, encouraging activities that were derop• 
tory to minority students. The Advisory Commit­
tee also learned of the establishment of an "anti• 
racism hotline"M and efforts by the African 

ti Briefing eeaaions were held on May lG, 1996, May 13, 
1997, and Aug. 28, 1997. 
13 Mt. Elmore Institute, written material submitted to the 
Advisory Committee at ita May 16, 1996, plannmc meeting. 
A copy of the material is on file at the Commiaaion'• Eutena 
Regional Office. 
114 Established in 1996 by the Vermont Anti-Raciam Act:ioD 
Team, the hotline allowa parenta and atudenta wbo me vie• 
tims of haruament to speak in confidence with COUDNlon. 
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American Advisory Committee to the Vermont 
Department of Health for the classification of 
school-based racism as a public health issue. 16 

These developments prompted the Advisory 
Committee to undertake a project titled "Racial 
Harassment in Vermont Public Schools" to 
gather information from State officials. commu• 
nity leaders, parents, and students. The Advi­
sory Committee hoped that its efforts would con­
tribute to the Commission's continuing efforts at 
addressing racial bias in the Nation's communi­
ties.26 

On November 4 and 5, 1997, the Advisory 
Committee held community forums in Burling­
ton and Rutland.21 In addition to Burlington 
mayor Peter Clavelle,28 participating panelists 
included representatives from the Vermont De­
partment of Education. State Human Rights 
Commjssion. the University of Vermont. school 
teachers and administrators., and parents of mi-

•nority students. 
Throughout these forums, parents and stu­

dents reiterated their belief that some Vermont 
schools are unsafe learning environments for 
minority students and many viewed safety as 
their primary concern. As stated by one parent: 

211 African American Advieory C.Ommittee to the Vermont 
Department of Health, recommendations to the C.Ommi&­
sioner of Health, October 1997. A copy of the recommenda­
tions is on file at the C.Ommiasion's Eastem Regional Office. 
• The C.Ommiasion haa addreaaed the iasue of racial bias 
and its effects on equal educational opportunity in a variety 
of publications, some of which include: Racial and Ethnic 
Tensions in American Communities - 11orxrty, Inequality, 
and Discrimination - A National Pers,,.ctfoe (1992). Intimi­
dation and Violence - Racial and Belip,us Bigotry in Anae-r­
ica (1990), Bigotry and Violence on American College Cam• 
pw,es (1990). The C.Ommiasion's State Advisory C.Ommittees 
have similarly monitored race relations and educational 
issues. &e Fair and Open Environment?- Bigotry and Vio­
lence on Collele Camp..,.. in California (1991), Camp,a 
Tenaions in Conneetieut - Searr:l&ing for Solutions in tM 
Nineties (1994), Racial and Eth.n.ic Tensions in Florida 
(1996), Bigotry and Violence in Georgia (1989), Race Relo­
tiona and Equal Edueation Oppo'1Unitia at Proi:iso M-eat 
High School (1996), Racial and IW,igit,na Tensions 011 &­
lct«l Kanaas Coae,e Camp.,.. (1992). Campus Tensions in 
Mauat:huaeu. - Seardaill6 for Solutiona in the Nineties 
(1892), and Bi/lotr:, and Violence on Miaauri'8 College Cam­
pw,es (1990). 
rr A tran8cript of theae proceedinp ia on file at the C.Ommi&­
sion's East.em Regional Office. .All quotes in this Advisory 
C.Ommittee report. wueaa othenriae noted, are taken from 
this transcript. 
• An edited version of Mayor Clavelle's remarks is pre­
sented in app. 6. • 

Racial harassment in all ita forms, including taunts, 
repeated uae o( the N word. u well as pby.sical as• 
aault.s, have been the norm rather than the exception 
during my children's school career....Nearly on a 
daily basis, my daurhter was called the N word, was 
punched, kicked, ud spat at.19 

To quote one parent: 

The main concern I have ia the safety o( my children. 
They can 1JO to school and not leam anything, but i£ 
they come home alive, I've got a chance....They can­
not learn i£ they spend all their time looking after 
their safety.• 

As will be shown in the following report. par­
ents of minority students, teachers, and commu­
nity leaders expresaed sirniJar concerns at both 
forums and reported instances of racial harass­
ment (including racial epitaphs and physical 
abuse) directed at minority students of all ages. 
In addition. some parents claimed that aome 
school district.a have not adequately responded 
to incidents of racial harassment and that ex• 
isting State Jaw is deficient in addreaaing the 
problem on a systemwide basis. 

This report is based on forum panelist pres­
entations and supplemented by followup re­
search. Chapter 2 of this report offers edited 
statements made by panelists and members of 
the public. In addition. this chapter describes the 
Committee's efforts to solicit information from 
government officials. school adminis~tors, and 
staff who chose not to attend the forum. Chapter 
3 provides an overview of the Vermont public 
school system and describes the respective roles 
of State agencies that monitor racial harassment 
incidents such as the Vermont Department of 
Education, State Human Rights CflrnrniBBion, 
and the Attorney General's Office. Also included 
are a description of State demographic informa­
tion, elementary and secondary school enroll­
ment data, and mention of recent State educa­
tional funding legislation in the cont.at of school 
quality standards. Finally, chapter 4 presents 
the Committee's conclusions and recommenda­
tions. 

29 Jackie Hickerson, testimony, Burli,wton Tlan.lc:ripl. p. 
153. 
30 Anne Borys, testimony, Burlin,ton Tnm.tcript, pp. ~ 
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Chapter 2 

Presentations by Parents, Students, Teachers 
and Administrators, and Community and 
Advocacy Group Representatives 

Introduction 
At the 2-day community forum, 36 panelists of. 
fered their views of racial harassment in the 
public schools. Presenters included invited pan· 
elists and individuals wishing to offer informa­
tion to the Committee during the forum's open 
sessions.1 The presentations have been arranged 
according to three subject headings: (1) parents 
and students, (2) teachers, school administra­
tors, and support personnel, and (3) community 
and advocacy group representatives. 

Each section includes a listing of presenters, 
a brief introduction, their edited statements,2 

and a summary of the major points of each 
group's presentation. Participant statements 
have been edited by the Advisory Committee for 
readability and overall organization within the 
chapter and have been reviewed by the partici­
pants for accuracy. 

The number of presentations at the forum 
represents a small fraction of persons invited by 
the Advisoey Committee to participate in the 
discussion. The Advisoey Committee made sub­
stantial outreach efforts to obtain a balance of 
viewpoints from a wide range of perspectives. 
The Committee contacted a total of 5 State leg­
islators, 11 Federal and State agency represen­
tatives, 4 educational union representatives, 16 
school administrators, 23 advocacy organization 
representatives, 18 parents, and 5 students and 
urged them to attend or share the invitation to 

1 Officials from the Vermont State Department of Education 
and Vermont Human Rights Commission also made presen­
tations at the forum. Their preaentations, however, are ~- • 
corporated in chapter 3. 
2 As a ruide for the reader, major topic headings contained 
in each preaentat.ion are listed in italics following presenter 
names. Names of individuals and particular achools have 
been deleted when presenten made potentially defamatory 
statements. 

the forum with others. In addition, the Advisory 
Committee contacted over 15 school principals 
(particularly in and around the Burlington and 
Rutland area) to seek information on their ef­
forts to eliminate harassment within individual 
schools. 

Despite these efforts, the Advisory Commit• 
tee noted the absence of legislators, school ad­
ministrators, and union representatives at both 
forums. The Committee's efforts to solicit input 
from these individuals continued throughout the 
2-day forum as both staff and members made 
numerous telephone calls to confirmed panelist.a 
who did not appear at the event. 

All individuals invited to the forum but who 
were unable to attend were given an opportunity 
to submit their written contribution to the 
Committee. In response to this request, only Mi­
chael Obuchowski, speaker of the Vermont 
House of Representatives, and the National 
Education Association ofVermont provided writ­
ten responses to the Committee's inquiry, which 
are presented in appendices 4 and 5, respec­
tively. 

Parents and Students 
Eighteen parents and three students made 
statements to the Advisory Committee during 
the 2-day forum describing incidents of racial 
harassment that included racial remarks and 
physical assaults on minority students.• The 
panelists also called into question responses to 
these incidents by teachers, school adminiatra• 
tors, and State agency representatives. Table 2.1 
lists the parents and,students appearing at each 
session. 

Parents and students described in detail ra­
cial harassment incidents occurring throughout 

3 Some parents preaented in both their capacity u pannta 
and u employees of various Vermont State qencieL 
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the State's primary and secondary school sys­
tem. They also raised the following issues: (1) 
lack of respect or empathy shown by teachers 
and administrators to minority student con­
cerns, (2) the use of curriculum materials pro­
moting racial stereotypes, (3) a presumption by 
teachers/sdrnioistt-ators that minority students 
are involved in criminal activity, (4) UllSStisfac• 
tory school-based responses to racial harass• 
ment incidents, and (5) an overall climate of ra• 
cism that exists in the State. The presenters 
discussed methods to enhance a climate of taler• 
ance and respect for minority students, and of. 
fered suggestions for schools on ways to estab­
lish an appreciation of cultural diversity. 

Table 2.1 

Ust of Parent/Student Pntaenters 

Bur1ington Session Rutland Session 
Ann Borys Mary Allen McMaster 
Judith Blank Barbara Linton 
Diane Dexter Lyndia Cobbett 
Bemie Henault Judy Adame 
Jacklyn Hickerson Judy Amado 
Jeanne Marie Schinhoffen Maria Pelligrino 
Renee Shippee 
Mart Davis Jr. • 
Brandon Davis • 
Philip Davis• 
Mart Davis Sr. 
Joya Davis 
Ayana AI-Faruk 
Leslie MeCrorey Wells 
Leigh Lamphere 

* Student 

Ann Borys• 
Safety issues, Physical assaults on minority 
students, Lack ofrespect for minority student 
concerns 
I adopted five children. two African American, 
two Asian, and one Indian. My husband and I 
work endlessly taking care of these kids. It's a 
devotion, and so we take their issues as. our is­
sues. Adopting a child is a very emotional event, 
and adopting outside of your race and your cul­
ture brings a whole different set of responsibili• 

4 Bory& testimony, Burlington Tranacript, pp. 12-46. 

ties. I am not separate from my children's issues. 
I know what they've been through, and I tell 
their stories today with their permission. So I'm 
here to represent not just my children but all the 
mothers in Vermont who are raising children of 
color. This is an extremely difficult thing to do in 
our society. I can't tell you how many hours of 
the day are consumed by this. I have to read. I 
have to study, I have to know more than the 
teachers of my children. 

The way we have talked about it is that race 
is a climate. There is no such thing as someone 
not having a racial experience. Everybody has a 
racial experience. For my kids, it's been a diffi. 
cult climate. The only forum for race in our 
school is the bathroom, the playground, and the 
school bus. This is where race is discussed, this 
is where race is worked qut, and this is where 
race takes on much more than just the color of 
one's akin. The diacuasion about race is also a 
diacussion about culture. 

The race issue starts immediately when chil­
dren are infants. When my boys were in day 
care, I saw two teachers pointing at a child who 
is white and saying, "'Look at that boy, he's 80 

strong, he's so able, etc." They turned and said 
about my son. "He's 80 wild, he's so out of con­
trol, he's so mean spirited." These two boys were 
6 months old. And I realized then how even the 
people who take care of the children are already 
beginning to feed part of this racial nonsense to 
them. 

By the time the kids got to school I was very 
worried about what their experiences would be, 
and so I tried to find out what it's really going to 
be like for them before I sent them into the pit 
and expected them to survive. I found the names 
of 10 people of color who had graduated from the 
school ~t my children would go to, and I wrote 
to each of them and asked them to describe their 
experiences. Every one of them responded and 
stated they hurt terribly from their experiences. 
I asked them what it was that they felt that they 
were missing, every one of them told me, "'My 
mother never believed it was as hard as it was.• 

. So by .the time I sent my kids to school. I was 
pretty scared about what was roing to happen to 
them. Instead of waiting until something hap­
pened I talked to the teachers and told them my 
children will be attending this school and they 
will be treated as who they are. 
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And it started the first week in school. My 
kids would often have to do much more work to 
accomplish the same goal. This is one of the sto-
ries of race in Vermont. A child of color, to 
achieve the same place as everybody else, has 
got to do so much more to get there. I myself 
can't do anything but protect my :five children as 
best I can, but there are other children out there 
and even white children need to be protected 
from racism. It does us no good to raise up a 
whole State of baby bigot.a. We·need a very dif. 
ferent and much more inclusive program. It's not 
enough to send your kids to school and demand 
their acceptance, and for the school to respond 
by making them white like all the other kids. We 
have to make room in our school for other people 
for them to be heard, accepted, liked for who 
they are, and begin to understand other cul-
tures. 

The main concern I have is the safety of my 
children. They can go to school and not learn 
anything, but if they come home alive, I've got a 
chance. But if they go to school and they are 
hurt endlessly, then the discussion that I have is 
always about them being hurt. My kids aren't 
just going to school in grammar school or high 
school, they're going to college. And I think it's 
the school's responsibility to meet me halfway to 
make sure that they're ready for school They 
cannot learn if they spend all their time looking 
after their safety. 

I no longer work because of some of these 
things. When my daughter was in kindergarten, 
I went to a day care to see if it would work out 
for my kids, and the first question I asked was, 
"What is your policy for racial problems'r' They 
claimed not to have problems. While I was talk-
ing with my children, they had a racial experi-
ence. A troubled child grabbed my daughter by 
her braids and smashed her head into a cement 
wall and said, "I'm not living in no town and go-
ing to no school with no black kids." Now my 
kids were terrified and they didn't know what to 
do. At that point, I come around the corner from 
my meeting in which everybody was telling me 

this day care and say, sure, try again. That was 
the end of working for me. Although this hap­
pened at a day care center and not in the public 
school, that child now goes to the same school 
my child goes. Recently this same child was 
walking up and down the hall where my kids 
were walking, and he would find every opportu­
nity to harass my kids until they were terrified. I 
would talk to the teachers and they would say 
this didn't happen on school property and we 
can't do anything about it. My response is that 
fear exists on school property and my daughter 
belongs in that school, and she's not having the 
same experience that the other child is having. 

Lice is rampant in our schools. I got a call 
from the school asking me to get my daughter 
because they claimed she had lice. The teachers 
claimed she had a different kind than what they 
have seen before and could infect the whole 
achooL In reality her unusual lice was not lice at 
all but sand from the sand box. Their reaction is 
so out of proportion; my daughter was isolated 
and terrified. The school scared all the kids 
about her. 

Another troubled youngst.er began beating on 
my kids in kindergarten. kicking, hitting, push• 
ing, shoving, name calling. My children's free. 
dom was· curtailed because of the other child's 
ability to strike out at each and every comer 
that he wanted to. I would talk to the teachers, 
who offered that my son could sit in front of the 
classroom. I want my son to be able to sit where 
he want.a and to have the same right.a that the 
other children have. Well, the kicking became 
more and more insistent and one day I found my 
son on his hands and knees looking through the 
bathroom door to check to see if it was safe to go 
inside without looking. 

Again, everything was done to curtail my 
son's freedom, not the other boy's freedom. That 
child's family made no bones about the fact that 
they were racist.a. One day my son came home 
with two black eyes. He was so upset that he 
could hardly walk. He had rings of blood inside 
both of his nostrils, and inside his mouth was a 

they have no-racial -problems at-this.child care-· .· ring•of .dried.blood.·He told·me this other cbilcl 
center, and my kids wanted to go home. The 
next morning while combing her hair I put my 
hands around her head and discovered that 
there was blood oozing from between her braids. 
Well, how can you then take your child back to 

had kicked him in the hall and all the cbilclren 
saw this. That family is proud of it.a racism; in 
fact they send their kid to karate school The kid 
goes and is being taught how to be a good fighter 
and has learned to use my kids as a battering 
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ram for years now. I figured the next time my 
son's going to be dead. I called up the principal 
and teacher who said they knew nothing about 
it. What happened was that the line in the class 
turns a comer and the kid marched backward. 
towards my son, hit him and kicked him there, 
and then the class continued to go. There were 
other adults who claim they never saw it, but I 
don't think they even looked. They all went in 
the classroom, and he tried to tell the teacher, 
"I'm having a bloody nose," and she kept saying 
to him, "Now you be quiet, you're being a real 
pain in the neck." And he's really frightened be­
cause this other boy is still in the classroom and 
making faces at him. 

DISCUSSION 
MR. TUCKER: How many times over the last 

7 years have you been before various authorities 
that are responsible for the school? 

MS. BORYS: Oh, more than 50. I see them 
regularly and have spoken to the school board. I 
called the State Police and described our situa­
tion. I told the detective that my child had con­
tinually over all of these years been 888Bulted, 
that now it had reached a new level The other 
child was much more dangerous and my kid 
wasn't capable and didn't wish to fight back. You 
know, my son is saying to me, what would Gan­
dhi have done? 

MR. TUCKER: You took this tack because 
you not only felt the schools and the community, 
but that the police themselves would not have 
paid any attention to this matter if you had said 
it was a child of color? 

MS. BORYS: People are just not interested in 
the situation. They would not respond at all if I 
said it was about race. It was the trooper who 
went into the school who stated that it was about 
race. That was only the l>E!ginning of us being 
able to get help for my child and other children. 
It wasn't just my kids he was beating up, he was 
beating up my kids first. While this business of 
an assault was going on with my son, I realized 
that part of the problem was that people really 
didn't understand .my-kida.-1 tried going into-the 
class with a dozen multicultural books and leave 
them for the teachers and the children. I'd go 
during black history month and read stories. We 
found that there were several problems with this 
whole idea of the schools being all white. One 

thing was the refusal of the children and teach­
ers t.o call my son, Samir, his name. They 
wouldn't call him his name. They'd call him all 
kinds of things and the kids were teasing him. 
They'd call him Sampson, anything that began 
with an S, but they wouldn't say "Samir." I went 
to the teacher and explained that he's so proud 
of his DBD1e and who he is, he's got to be called 
by his DBD1e. At the end of the year Samir, in 
frustration, brought home his report card and 
threw it on the table and on the back of his re• 
port card written by the teacher across the re­
port card is: "to the boy with many S names." At 
the end of the year the teacher still would not 
say his correct name. 

Judith Blank 1 

Transracial adoption d minority children, Methods 
to enhance a climate of tolerance and respect for 
diverdy 
I am the parent of a daughter of color and an 
adoption social worker for the State of Vermont. 
I place children throughout the State and train 
adoptive parents t.o be as proactive for. children 
as they can be. I want t.o respond t.o the person 
from the Human Rights O,mmjssinn who asked 
for the results of one of the suits. First of all in 
that suit, the money was used mainly for ther­
apy. It was not used to pay back for the insults 
or whatever had happened. While the suit was 
going on, or the investigation was going on, par­
ents gathered in the school and said, "What can 
we do?' Out of the settlement a diversity com­
mittee was formed in the elementary school. A 
local agency got a 3-year grant, which provided 
us with a diversity specialist in the school 2 days 
a week who was available to teachers. The 
teachers that were interested in the beginnjng 
:were teachers who were more enlightened. 
There are many teachers who said, "There's no 
problem here." We looked at a goal of having 
zero tolerance of incidents, but the philosophy of 
the committee in the school was to go beyond 
tolerance and celebrate all children. 

When an incident occurred, all parents of all 
: .the children. were informed..This did not happen 
in the past. As children of color, who were har-

11 Blank testimony, Burlington 7ronacript, pp. 114-19, 129-
33. Aa a supplement t.o their testimony, Ma. Blank and ML 
Diane Dexter submitted a letter to the Committee, which ill 
shown in app. 8. 
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assed, had to face the older kids and were forced 
to tell them how the incident hurt their feelings, 
as the school was desirous of helping kids who 
are really ignorant. When I said, "It's not my 
daughter's position in 1st grade to educate 
teachers and other kids on issues of religion and 
color," the school started taking a more global 
look at the issue. 

The diversity committee also addressed poli­
cies from the principal and the superintendent 
that they were developing, whether this was ra­
cial harassment or sexual harassment or dis­
crimination. I think it's important to be inclusive 
of all children. We have to educate all children 
on the issues. If I had a wish list, I would want 
the Department of Education to set up a pro­
gram to bring in student teachers who them­
selves are from minority groups, because our 
kids are not seeing adult role models for children 
of color. I think some parents also have to take 
responsibility. In central Vermont many children 
of color have been adopted by white parents and 
many of these parents feel racism. doesn't emt. 
When the child comes into the public school they 
often are shocked and surprised and feel the 
school should solve all of society's problems. 

My daughter's now in middle school for the 
first year. I feel like I'm back at ground one. We 
have to start over and build up what we had in 
the elementary school because we had support 
personnel that were focused. It wasn't just peo­
ple saying, "We have a problem," rather it was 
"What can we do for a solution," "What can we 
do to support the principal, teachers and staff." 

DISCUSSION 
MR. TUCKER: So you're telling me that what 

went on with the elementary school did not per­
meate into middle school? 

MS. BLANK: No, it did not. I think in the 
high school it's working because there were 
teens who were active. The middle school, like 
everything else in education, just seems to get 
lost between the two. 

DR. JOHNSON: It seems that we can ask 
every school-what-are-.you--doing- to-celebrate . 
each individual child. Could you give us some 
examples of your ideas? 

MS. BLANK: For 4 years I went to my daugh­
ter's classroom twice a month, and if I brought 
materials, it wasn't just Indian materials. It 

wasn't just adoption materials. I brought a story 
on chess that took place in the Orient. Things 
like a holiday pageant instead of a Christmas 
show became four little plays. One was Bud­
d.hist,. one was a Hanukkah story, one was a 
Kwanzaa story, and one Christmas story. Kids 
c:roased lines. The kids of color in that school did 
not go to Kwanzaa, they went to other activities. 
It's not because you're this you have to then 
teach this or be this. You should be interested in 
everything. 

When she was in the younger elementary 
years, we brought cooking in from different 
countries. I resent being a Jewish parent that is 
always viewed as Ms. Hanukkah. They always 
say, "Hanukkah's coming up, can you do some­
th:ingr Why is it just me? Why can't the teacher 
or someone else bring that up? If I'm supposed to 
bring the Asian-Indian culture and have my 
child respect herself and I'm white, then other 
people should be able to do things too. 

Diane Dexter' 
Efforts to assist adoptive families ofminorftY.­
children, Teacher and peer treatment of 
minority students 
In my role as the adoption specialist for the 
State of Vermont, I see a number of children 
who are adopted transracially. In the past 6 
years, there is a steady increase in the number 
of minority children adopted by Caucasian par• 
ents in Vermont. And many of them are still 
very young. They're hitting 5 and 6 years of ap. 
Every year all of the agencies in Vermont put 
together a conference, and in the proceas of this 
conference we realized that many parents, 88 

their children were getting older and hitting the 
school systems, were not prepared to help their 
children deal with the school systems and with 
the larger population. We've put workshops in 
place, and the agencies have a screening proceaa 
to help families before they adopt a child of color 
and begin to think what the issues are in order 
to help their child into adulthood 88 a healthy 
person of color. 

At the • adoption--conference every year we 
bring someone in who will do hands-on training 
for families. I've received many phone calla from 
parents who have adopted children of color say-

6 Dexter testimony, Burlington Tron.,eript, pp. 119-81. 
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Vermont right now and I don't know what's hap­ing, "Where can I go to get my daughter's hair 
pening to her. I've worked with the teachers; I'm cut and braided?" And these questions are very 
working with the principal, and they seem re•real for these families. And we now have devel• 
sponsive, interested, caring, and willing to dooped resources. We're pointing them in that di­

rection and they are getting more educated. At something. 
Here are some of the things the school hasthe conference I spoke with adoption agency rep• 

resentatives and together we came up with a done. They do acknowledge her every day. They 
are holding her hand. The principal has gonehandbook for parents that would address this 
and sat with her in the cafeteria, has invitedissue. As part of our licensing regulations, agen­

cies have to sit down and give every adoptive other children to come and sit with her. The 
5th/6th grade class decided early in the year thatfamily this information. Whether they practice it 
they would do their study project on Africa. or not, is another question. 

I have two African American children, and Parents have to invest in the community and 
my oldest daughter is 6 years old. She entered say to themselves, even if my child is white, I 
the public school system this year for the first should be involved in the school and care about 
time. I anticipated she would have a wonderful what's being taught there and going on. 
experience. On day four of her education she 
didn't want to go back! There were children in DISCUSSION 
her class and outside of her class who had MR. CHENEY: The positive thing is that the 
threatened and intimidated her and made fun of other parents saw this as a problem for their 
her because of the color of her skin. When my kids and not just your kid. I want to know 
daughter came home she did not want to go back whether you had that u:perience too. 
to the school. She said to me, "I feel like I'm a MS. DEXTER: Yes. I spoke with several other 
ghost. I feel invisible; nobody sees me." We had a parents of children in my daughter's class, and I 
meeting with the teacher and some good things observed some incidents on the playground 
have happened. My daughter's teacher is a won­ where one of their children, who's a Caucasian 
derful young woman in her first year of teaching. child, was put to the test. He had to chooee be­
I don't think she's had any opportunity to expe­ tween being a part of the game and playing or 
rience a child of color in her class or in her life. being my daughter's friend. He stood there and 
My little girl sat in the cafeteria for over 3 he cried. When his parents learned of that expe­
weeks, did not eat her lunch, and sat with the rience, they were appalled. And they also called 
tray in front of her all by herself with her head the school and said, "This has got to stop now 
down. She was afraid. Children had said to her. and none of these children are to have this expe­
"Shut your mouth." They used the F word to her, rience." 
and she was afraid. When the teacher divided up 
the class for circle time, my daughter was always Bernie Henault7 

on the outside. She's separating herself from the Inappropriate lesson plans, 
rest of the students and doesn't want to be a part Recommendations to the State Board 
of this group. I said to the teacher, "Here's what Nine years ago I went to the school board meet­
you can do. Be my daughter's partner. Call her ing in Newport, Vermont, for the K through 12 
name out and bold her hand. Show your stu- system high school. I sat there and wanted to 
dents that you value my daughter and is impor- talk about special education. One of the board 
tant to your school." I asked the school adminis- members in all indignation said, "Who are you to 
trator, have your teachers say, "Good morning, come in here and tell us what to do?" In Novem• 
how are you today?" When they see my daughter her, a board member that had served 12 years on 
walk down the.hall.speak ta her. There's a lot of_ - ,that board resigned;-and I competed for the seat 
work that has to be done. It doesn't have to cost and won. I joined this school board because I aaw 
a lot of money. I'm concerned that it will take the wreckage and saw bow policies were handed 
committees doing research. You know, hey, out. 
that's my great grandchildren you might touch. 
My little girl is in your public schools here in 

1 Henault testimony, Burli"llfon Transcript, pp. 134-11. 
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We do a lot behind executive session doors. 
You want to try to solve some of this problem in 
the future, then there is no executive session for 
racial issues. H you report it and you've got the 
guts to stand on your two feet and say to those 
people there's something wrong here and I want 
you to correct it. I don't want to sound offensive 
to more learned people, but I shouldn't have to 
tell somebody with a college degree and master's 
education, "Gee, do you think we ought to get a 
consultant in to talk about multicultural accep­
tance, tolerancer' No way. I am one of 15 votes. 
If I get seven others, then the Administrators 
and the faculty and all other people working in 
the school system will do as they're supposed to 
do and to not equivocate when incidents occur. 

This thing of dividing, I have problems with 
it. I don't like it. I was informed at different 
times that my attitude was wrong. What does it 
take in our lifetime to bring about change? All 
racial instances will be reported to the Depart­
ment of Education. There should be no equivoca­
tion and no claiming a victim didn't officially 
report it. 

And we do a lot of mailings home to our 
families and children in Vermont. Send the law 
plus phone numbers home with the first mailing 
and do it statewide. We should say to the Board 
of Education members to tell school staff it's 
mandatory. Simple language that can be in­
serted in all educators' contracts that says: if you 
stand by and watch racial hatred, or bigotry or 
slanderous statements be made. you may be 
dismissed. I wonder how many school adminis­
trators would be in this room if their pay was cut 
35 percent and used it for multicultural pro­
grams. 

Last year when they were studying the 
American Revolution, they were going to hold a 
slave auction. We got the notice 3 days in ad­
vance. We bad a few reservations because Sam, 
my 7-year-old granddaughter, was the only black 
kid in the school. So we bad some concerns about 
her friends, who were white, and what they 
would do with Samantha after the auction. I told 
the admiui&h:'ators, ~ou need to not.do this.. You ~ 
needed to prep all the students to say how hor­
rendous this was, how bad it was to sell human 
beings to be slaves. You didn't do that prep 
work." In September of 1997 out on the play-

ground a kid called her a nigger and said, 
"Niggers are bad." 

There are sample multicultural programs all 
around the country which could be made avail• 
able to everyone. What I'm searching for in my 
supervisory union is a good example for K 
through 12. I'm going to throw it on the table 
and I'm going to say, -why don't you start at 
kindergarten? By the time they hit 12 if they 
also learn good manners, they'll be reasonable 
citizens and we won't have to yell and scream at 
each other." Every single school in the State of 
Vermont should have Americanism 101 as part 
of the common core. 

Jacklyn Hickerson' 
Physical and verbal assaults on minority 
students, Complaint processing by school staff and 
the Human Rights Commission 
I have two biracial children in the public schools. 
My daughter's been in the school system 2 years; 
my son just entered 1st p-ade. It's hard to con­
dense what's been happening to them into a 
speech because its something, that bas been a 
very horrible experience for my children, ·and it 
is difficult to try to communicate it to you with 
the same effect. 

Racial harassment in all its forms. including 
taunts, repeated use of the N word, as well as 
physical assaults, have been the norm rather 
than the exception during my children's school 
career. Last year the problem got worse. Nearly 
on a daily basis my daughter was called the N 
word, was .punched, kicked, and spat at. To 
make matters worse, one of the perpetrators was 
the daughter of a school board·member:- I· have 
called a school official several times and would 
get no help whatsoever. This person would not 
acknowledge what was going on. She would say 
to me, "He bas a cousin who's black, so I don't 
think he's doing that. He couldn't be a racist.• 

I bad a parent meeting with a school board 
member. She told me I was overreacting because 
I wanted a meeting with her because her daugh­
ter was calling my daughter the N word. I have 
very,serious·concerns· that people like this are 
raising children like that and are in power over 
our schools. 

8 Hickerson teetimony, Burlin/lf,on 77onseript, pp. lU-66. 
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This year already my daughter has experi• 
enced incidents; the N word has been used as 
well as other derogatory terms. She has been 
punched. I brought these incidents to the atten• 
tion of the school staff. My complaints have gone 
unanswered and I go forward. Also because of 
my complaints, I think my child is being treated 
differently. Whenever there is a problem in the 
classroom, my child is the one to be blamed. 
When she tries to give her side of the story the 
school official continually asks her, ..A:re you sure 
you're telling the truth?" and drilling her repeat­
edly when she's the one coming home with 
bruises. She's never taken at her word. She's 
made out to be a liar. She is allowed to be 
abused. I have tried to call officials at the school 
system, but they don't return my calls and my 
complaints go unanswered. 

During this school year an incident occurred 
while my daughter was in art class. A white 
child sitting next to her scribbled all over her 
school work. In retaliation, my daughter took a 
marker and scribbled on his arm. That child got 
no punishment whatsoever. However, my 
daughter was not only put into detention, she 
was barred from the school dance. The other 
child admitted to starting the incident, but my 
child was the one to get punished whereas the 
white child was not. When I went to the school 
and talked to the teacher she told me, "Oh, well, 
that's just how I feel. that's my opinion." I talked 
to the school official who backed up the teacher. 
I was totally outraged. 

Also this year I requested an IEP meeting 
because my daughter is not receiving the serv• 
ices that she's supposed to. The meeting was 
scheduled by the special education staff person 
for 3:00 on October 13th. When I showed up for 
this meeting, the staff person told me that the 
meeting was set for 2:00 and the teachers and 
everyone else had left. She then proceeded to tell 
me the reason my daughter was not getting the 
services she needs is because they are short 
staffed and there is not enough money. She 
stated that my requesting an assistant for my 
daughter would...take .an ..assistant .away. from 
someone else's child. Three weeks after this 
meeting, I finally got the notice of the meeting in 
the mail. It was her handwriting, signed by her, 
and scheduled for 3:00. I called her up and 
asked, "Why have you denied me this?" She re-

sponded, "What do you want me to say?" Re­
sponses like that make me wonder what is going 
on. The school receives money for these services 
and they're not being given. Is it because of their 
lack of interest in my child as an IEP student or 
their lack of interest in my child as a student of 
color? I believe it's because she's a student of 
color. My child has been kicked around in this 
school system too much, and I have told my story 
many times. I have gone to the forums, I have 
repeated this stuff, and each time it's a new and 
different incident. The old ones keep getting lost 
in the jumble. When is somebody going to do 
something about this? 

There is a case that has been pending for over 
a year now with the Human Rights Commission. 
They have not been able to make any decision. 
That is one I have not told you of. The incident 
happened at the beginning of last year. 

DISCUSSION 
MR. CHENEY: Have you made them aware 

of these issues? 
MS. HICKERSON: One of them, yes. When it 

came to my daughter getting the suspension and 
the barring from the school dance, I did. And it 
is currently under investigation. You call them 
every single day. They're very busy. I would like 
to see something happen without having to wait 
for the Human Rights Commission because it's 
already been over a year and this was a major 
issue that I have a case on. I also have a first 
grader in the school system that's been taunted 
on the playground, but no physical violence yet. 
But he's only been in school 2 months. I think it 
is important that we do go public with this. I feel 
like I've been shouting my head off since I moved 
here. And since my children have been in school 
it's gone nowhere. 

MR. TUCKER: Since the U.S. Department of 
Education conducted a PAR review of the school 
system you are referring to, have you seen any 
movement around your two children as a result 
of that and has the school system followed any of 
the things that were outlined in the review? 

a. MS~· HICKERSON: ·None whatsoever. They 
have not followed that. 

MR. HOFF: Do you know if other children of 
color in that school system had similar experi• 
ences? 
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MS. HICKERSON: I'm sure they have. I don't 
want to speak for the pa.rents of those children, 
but how could they not? I assume that every 
child of color is getting some type of harassment 
because I've seen it. This issue has been kicked 
aside for so long but I can tell you. I know that 
children are being harassed. If this forum was 
not at the Sheraton and there was transporta­
tion, you'd have a line out the door. 

Jeanne Marie Schinhofen • 
Lack of respect for minority student concerns, 
Inappropriate lesson plans, Response by 
administrators to requests byparents 
I think there's an incredible lack of respect from 
the teachers to the students. When the admini­
stration and staff communicate to the children, 
they are first and foremost communicating this 
lack of respect. In one incident, my son was sent 
to the school planning room. He wrote three 
pages on exactly what happened. I will read an 
excerpt from his writings: 

"The teacher was pushing me down the hall, 
she was pulling at my shirt and pushing me and 
forcing me to go; however, of course she called it 
guiding. I don't understand why they have to 
call you and check up on everything that I say. 
They're telling me that I'm a liar just by doing 
that." 

Perhaps the administration needs to verify 
some of this information with a parent; however, 
he is treated as though they don't believe him.. 
When he approaches me with these problems, I 
have a meeting with the •dministrators to help 
the situation. I am educating the teacher on how 
to educate my children. 

I need to add respect in capital letters. I have 
had student teachers and other parents that 
have helped out in the classroom come to me and 
say, "There's something going on in the class­
room. All of the other eight children in the group 
are doing this, but your child was singled out 
and punished for this behavior." I've had calls 
from parents of students that have come home 
crying because one of my children is being mis­
treated in class-.consistently~ .Although the chil­
dren come home and tell their parents, I may not 
find out this information for a year. I'm won­
dering what has happened to this particular 

9 Schinhofen testimony, Burlin#on Tran.script, pp. 186-201. 

child that he can't come home and say, ..Mom, 
I'm being mistreated." He has been mistreated 
so much he doesn't know what's right and does• 
n't know to come home and say, "They have 
wronged me." 

. Once a teacher was trying to set up a hierar­
chy in the classroom. She was the queen and 
students were different levels of servants. I ex­
plained to her that my child deals with this on a 
daily basis. Of course he doesn't want to have 
anything to do with thi&-he lives this. You're 
putting it to these children because maybe some 
of these children haven't experienced this. You 
don't understand what you're saying to my child. 

We were talking about these children feeling 
invisible. For 4 years I have been asking the 
administration to please put the children of color 
together in the classroom. Finally. when my 
child was in a class of 40, there were 4 children 
of color. None of them were in his grade, but 1,e. 
cause it was a combined class, he happened to be 
put topther with these children. He came home 
on the first day ofschool excited and stated. "Tve 
got three other African American children in my 
class. I really don't even care if they are my 
friends, they're just there. It means on the one 
day of the year when we celebrate Martin Lu­
ther King or a little bit of black history, every­
body isn't looking at me.n There's somebody else 
to share that burden with. The admjnistt-ati.on 
denied purposely putting these children to­
gether. 

I was asked the other day if I work at the 
school, because I'm walking the hallways. I'm in 
a position where I'm ready to quit my job l,e. 
cause I can barely hold onto it. We had a princi­
pal there that was an ally. I had asked him. to 
allow my children to have access to me and let 
them call me at work or at home if something's 
bothering them. They did this many times. We 
had a teacher last year who came to me and 
said, "I want to do the rest of the year dealing 
with diversity on some level; can you help mer 

DISCUSSION 

MR..TUCKER: What ·school are we taJkinr 
about? 

MS. SCHINHOFEN: Twin:field Union in 
Plainfield. Marshfield. I personally have not 
gone beyond the administration because I knew 
it was useless. I felt that my energy was beat put 
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into approaching each of the teachers when my 
child was in their class. I would do my best to 
educate -them, explain my child to them. I have 
gone to the administration and asked them, 
"Please, on one of these teacher in-service days, 
can you please focus on having the teachers edu­
cated?' They're ignorant here; can you please 
help to educate them?' There's no funding for 
that. I feel as though the diversity that we do 
get, the teachers aren't truly there in their 
hearts. Whenever they get something that is di­
verse, it's not brought into the school in other 
ways. 

When I took my child to the 1st grade the 
teacher informed me in the first week that there 
was no racism in this school. She said I had 
nothing to worry about when I was concerned 
that my child wasn't going to be safe there. I 
looked around and there were no posters, no 
books, there was nothing. I now have a teacher 
for my daughter who has spent a good portion of 
her budget this year on things that would en­
compass her in the classroom. I do know that I'm 
being heard. It's on such a small level that it's 
hard not to be bitter. It's hard not to be totally 
frustrated, but I do it for my children. 

DR. JOHNSON: Is there something that the 
parents can do to educate themselves about how 
to deal with the school? Can parents get funding 
for some kind of strategy on how to be a parent 
of an ethnic minority student in Vermont that 
describes what parents and students will en­
counter? I don't know if you communicate with 
one another. 

MS. STOLEROFF: We are in contact. A group 
in our community formed a diversity group. 
What's so wonderful about our community is it 
acts as a community. There are many people in 
the community that care about these issues, yet 
it's hard to get the school to change and use the 
community as a resource. 

Renee Shippe 10 

Reactions by teachers to verbal assaults of 
minority students 
My two children-andllive in-Morrisville, Ver­
mont. People of color are coming out of the inner 
cities because they want their children to have a 
safe environment. I needed a safe environment 

•0 Shippe t.estimony, Burlington Tron.script, pp. 232-41. 

and a better education for my children. and I felt 
I would have it here. I look at that sign many 
times and it says, welcome to Vermont. I want to 
add-but it's not for the people of color. and if 
you do stay, you will be harassed and will e:i:pe• 
rience racism. No matter whether you're hiding, 
whether you want to be a productive citizen or 
not, you will uperience it here. 

Here in Vermont the selectmen are not open 
for change. If we as people of color, as a commu• 
nity, as parents, as educators, if something is 
going wrong with our children and if we are ex­
periencing racism, harassment, then there's a 
way to stop it: deliver a message to the politi­
cians that we will not vote for you until the har­
assment and racism stops. For every incident in 
your district. you lose money. 

My 14-year-old daughter had a very hard 
time. She was called the N word. They wanted to 
fight. She really didn't want to fight, but when 
somebody walked up to her and slapped her, she 
felt she had to. Teachers, principal turned their 
back; they didn't see a thing. And it was good 
because I wasn't waiting for her to be suspended. 

When my 12-year-old son was called that. he 
used diplomacy. He went into the principal'• of• 
fice and he sat down and he talked about it. He 
couldn't understand it because he's been pro­
grammed Vermont's way. Not that he accepts 
being called the N word, but he accepts the Ver• 
mont culture. He took it to another level and 
asked to have a meeting with the principal, and 
he did. The principal ironed it out with him and 
shoved it underneath the table. She asked that 
the person that called him this name do a paper 
on what an N word person was and asked that 
their parents be involved in this. • 

You're always talking about children, but you 
have to hit the base. The base is home. Parents 
have their issues which are heard by these chil­
dren in school. I suggest that you confront the 
parents first. When there's an incident, you call 
in the parent of the perpetrator and describe the 
incident. The child did not just pick up the N 
word from out of the sky. 
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Mark Jr.; Brandon, and Philip Davis11 

Incidents of racial harassment, Reactions of 
teachers to minority student concerns 
MARK DAVIS JR.: I am 17 and currently attend 
a high school in Vermont. I'm sure I know a lot 
of you are aware of some of the problems I've 
encountered at the high school. First of all, I'll 
start with the school officials. Every day they 
make it obvious that they don't want me in 
school. they don't want me anywhere in the city, 
including the football coach who told my brother 
that I wasn't welcome to play on the team. Every 
day he gives me nasty looks when I'm walking 
through the hall. To me it's pretty obvious 
they're retaliating because of the civil rights suit 
I filed against them in '95. We moved out of 
State in July of last year. Since we arrived back 
in Vermont, in January 1997, my life has been 
pure misery while I attend school there. I expe• 
rience harassment every day. I can't even con• 
centrate on school work. I'm doing pretty good so 
far. And I feel like the school is trying to pt to 
my father through me. Just walk:ing through the 
hall I can hear the N word from kids. Kids will 
stare at me and give me nasty looks. I can't walk 
through the hall without the principal asking 
where I'm going, why I'm in the hall, etc. The 
superintendent will see me every once in a w bile 
in the hall. He'll give me a dirty look but doesn't 
speak tome. 

Recently my mother reminded my father that 
we couldn't attend a football game at school be­
cause of the no trespass order against him. And I 
was already mad that I couldn't play in the 
game, and I became more angry for now I could­
n't even watch it. 

MR. TUCKER: Were you told that you could 
not play football? 

BRANDON DAVIS (Age 12): Yes. The head 
coach of the football team, I asked him if my 
brother was welcome to play for the team be­
cause he still wanted to play, and he said that he 
wasn't welcome. It was obviously an excuse be­
cause he didn't want him to play. 

MR. CHENEY: Why couldn't you play in the 
game? 

MARK DAVIS JR.: The coach didn't want me 
on the team. He didn't give a reason; he just said 
I wasn't welcome. 

11 Davis testimony, Burli.ngton Tranat:ript, pp. 241--ISO. 

MR. TUCKER: You're in the middle school. 
So he told your brother in middle school that you 
weren't welcome to play on the high school foot• 
ball team? What's your average? 

MARK DAVIS JR.: B. 
MR. TUCKER: So it's not because of your 

marks? 
MARK DAVIS JR.: No. 
MR. TUCKER: Even if you pass. you can't 

play. ls that what you were told? 
MARK DAVIS JR.: Yes. 
PHILIP DAVIS (Age 14): When I was in 5th 

grade, I was assaulted by a teacher. When I tried 
to report it, nobody believed me even though two 
other students came forward and said they saw 
the teacher do it. My parents tried to tell a 
school official what happened. They mentioned 
filing a complaint with the Department of Jus­
tice. The school official assaulted my mom with 
the door. When I was in the middle school, kids 
made fun of me all the time because I was in 
special education. They would get me in trouble 
all the time and the principal would always 
blame me. My parents would be asked to a,me to 
the school every time no matter how small the 
problem. 

MR. TUCKER: How would you describe your 
experience in the school system? 

BRANDON DAVIS: In Washington State we 
had a lot of black teachers and a lot of friends 
that were like us, and here they just aren't, and 
they basically just make us feel uncomfortable 
because we're different. And they just don't want 
us here for some reason. I'd rather be in Seattle 
right now. 

MARK DAVIS JR.: I feel the same way. In 
Washington State I had black teachers and 
pretty much all my friends were black. The 
school was a happy atmosphere. I could walk 
through the hall and teachers and kids would 
say hi to me. They made you feel like we were 
part of the community out there. Here we're 
away from everybody. It wasn't like that here in 
Vermont. 

MR. TUCKER: Did you participate in aports 
in WashingtonState? . 

MARK DAVIS JR.: I was playing varsity 
football. 

MR. TUCKER: But you can't play it in Ver­
mont. 
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BRANDON DAVIS: My teachers used t.o sug­
gest which books I should read or write a report 
on. They were always usually about African 
Americans. During one of my classes we were 
talking about slavery and the teacher said, 
"Brandon, don't you feel so lucky that you didn't 
live during those days." And all of the kids just 
stared at me the same way when we talk about 
something about African Americans. And one 
day the principal said t.o me that if I miss an­
other day of school, that she would have a truant 
officer on me t.o talk t.o me. And I guess that she 
didn't like me or something for whatever reason, 
that's why she said that.-And I'm in the middle 
school now, and the principal, the counselor, and 
some of the teachers make me feel uncomfort• 
able because they know that I'm Mark's brother 
and Mark Sr.'s son. The principal and the vice 
principal are usually just the same way t.o my 
mother as t.o me. 

Joya and Mark Davia Sr. 11 

JOYA DAVIS: Whenever there's a problem 
with one of the kids, I'm the one they call. They 
feel that because I'm white, they can deal with 
me since I'm going t.o understand the problem 
they are having with my child. I've had the prin• 
cipal say t.o whatever adult was present, ..Oh, 
you can talk t.o her, she knows." 

MARK DAVIS SR.: I'm thankful of this 
Committee being here and having the opportu­
nity, like other parents, t.o let you know what 
our children go through and what we expect t.o 
be a part of our kids' education. Thia isn't just 
Burlingt.on that's a problem. There's a problem 
in other parts of Vermont. The type of mentality 
you're dealing with is one of intimidation for 
speaking out. 

You have seen the letter my wife sent you 
regarding the boy saying something t.o my son 
and I called the school. I didn't make a threat or 
anything. It's really sad that it's that easy for a 
parent t.o call a school and t.o try t.o have a con• 
veraation about the conduct of another student 
and they can completely take what they feel I 
said and misguide it-and -have. the police charge. 
you with something that you never even said. 

Currently I have a no trespassing charge on 
me prohibiting me from entering school grounds, 

12 Davis testimony, Burli"8ton Transcript, pp. 244-64. 

because of a football coach that perceived that 
my words were threatening. How can one per­
ceive threatening when you call &0mebody and 
ask t.o discuss my concerns about one other stu­
dent using :filthy language t.o my child? I don't 
think that's threatening whatsoever. The proof is 
right here in the letter that the school sent me. 
What bothers me is that the assistant principal, 
principal, superintendent, didn't have the de­
cency t.o spell out the word that this student 
said. 

DISCUSSION 
MR. TUCKER: Were you given a hearing 

about this no trespass warning? 
MR. DA VIS SR.: No. They served it by certi­

fied mail. This was the second trespassing 
charge again.st me. 

MR. TUCKER: What you're saying to me is 
that an arm of the law served you with a notice 
that said you were not allowed on school 
grounds, but you never bad a hearing? 

MR. DAVIS SR.: Yes. The letter says you may 
not enter on school property except t.o pick up 
and drop off your sons, and you must stay in 
your vehicle at all times. 

MR. TUCKER: When's the last time Mark Jr. 
participated in any sports in Vermont? Did he 
play ball? 

MRS. DAVIS: About 9 seconds. 
MR. TUCKER: So he hasn't been allowed to 

play since he's been at the high school, but he 
made varsity in Seattle where the competition is 
really hard. 

MR. DAVIS SR.: In Seattle he played with 
some of kids that now are in the t.op 10 colleges 
in the Nation. I'm hurt for my son because this is 
about retaliation. This summer we were driving 
by, and we drove up ont.o the school and I said t.o 
Brandon, "Go down t.o the football field and ask 
the coach is Mark welcome to play." And this 
particular coach t.old Brandon, no, he wasn't 
welcome. The reason why is because we've got 
too many kids as it is. And that was it. 

MRS. DAVIS: In April of 1996 they issued 
him .a no trespass then, ·which-didn't even allow 
him to drop or pick up the kids and prohibited 
him from school property. We were told by the 
police that it expires a year later. When we 
moved back here, it had been over a year, so I 
called up the school and I asked if it was still in 
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force. And they said, no. Bygones were bygones 
and everything was all set. And this letter is 
dated the very next day. It's disturbing the fact 
we didn't say or do anything wrong. I did what 
any parent would do, which is call up and let 
them know I had some concerns about another 
student's language. I think the best bet is this: 
Leave Vermont. We are desperately trying to 
leave as soon as we can and never return. ff we 
were to stay here, I'd ask the mayor of Burling• 
ton if we would be welcomed in his city. We've 
only lived in one location in Vermont and we 
have always had problems there. Now when my 
son went down to the football field this summer, 
spoke with the coach and the players, the at­
mosphere was just so normal. The coach and 
kids were extremely nice to us. 

I was talking to the investigator at the U.S. 
Department of Education Office of Civil Rights 
who's going to be handling the retaliation com.­
plaint that we filed, and he just couldn't seem to 
get off the subject. He kept asking me if my hus­
band was big because I guess when the people 
were here from ·the Office of Civil Rights, they 
went back and told them my husband is a big 
guy. He kept bringing it up. Finally, I said to 
him, "Do you mind if I ask you what y.our race 
is?' He told me that he was white. I said, "What 
you keep asking me makes sense to me now." 
Ever since I got married that's been his biggest 
problem. Because he's big and black, he's a 
threat to people. I question how can these people 
help us if they've never met us and just talk to 
me on the phone. 

Ayana AI-Faruk n 
Existence of racism in public schools, 
Racial slurs directed at minority students 
I want to thank the Advisory Committee for 
coming; however, I have mixed feelings. The fact 
that you have to come is quite insulting to me. 
The fact that we're still dredging this issue is 
very insulting. In 1997 African Americans and 
other people of color are still having to beg for 
what the Constitution said every American had, 
and that's inalienable . .rights, and peace and- j-u.s-, . 
tice for all. That's still not true when it comes to 
people of color. 

13 Al-Faruk testimony, Burlinpm Transcript, pp. 271-76. 

Listening to prior speakers has me very dis­
turbed about what's going on with children of 
color in schools. You say that you have heard 
comments that made you realize that racism is 
alive and well in Vermont schools. Yes, it's very 
much alive and well, and I am not particularly 
sure that the school districts are willing to admit 
how alive and well it is. Or if they even under­
stand that racism is entrenched in the school 
system here. It's been my experience that when 
you challenge people on it they oftentimes don't 
even know what you're talking about. It makes 
me realize that they're so entrenched in it that 
they don't even understand it. And to me that's 
more dangerous than someone who's being racist 
straight out. I don't think that the people who 
are being racist realize that racism affects eve­
rybody. It just doesn't affect the children of color. 
Ultimately it's going to affect this entire country. 
In the 21st and 22nd century. we're not going to 
be where we need to be because we're 10 busy 
trying to keep other people down. 

I have four SODS that go to school in Burlinc• 
ton. The first day in school, girls were throwing 
their phone numbers at them which really un• 
nerved them because they haven't experienced 
that before. It was as if the girls tried to make 
them not human, putting them into an alien 
kind of category, exoticizing them. I don't think 
people realize that doing that is totally racist. 

I have a 16-year-old son who attended Ed­
munds Middle School. He had the experience of 
going to a track meet last May or June at U-32 
High School in Montpelier. And as he was get­
ting ready for a run, there were two or three 
high school students milling around.. One of his 
teammates heard someone call him a nigger, and 
she said, "Muji, I think he just called you a 
name." What he had said to my son was, "run. 
nigger, run." After that the entire Edmunds 
Middle School track team went to their coach to 
tell him what had just happened. The coach, in 
turn, went to an administrator at U-32 who 
came out to my son and challenged him like he 
was the perpetrator. My 10n told her that abe 
needed to get her facts straight and find out a- . 
actly who was the victim and who was the per­
petrator. U-32 ultimately made the boya write 
letters of apology, which were not sincere. The 
school ultimately wrote a letter of apology to 
Edmunds Middle School What I'm saying is that 
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this can happen so easily because it's gone on so 
long unchecked. 

I think that the Burlington school system and 
Vermont generally likes to pride itself on being 
liberal and progressive. Being progressive, how­
ever, does not mean anti-racist. My question is 
how do you treat African Americans and other 
people of color in the school system? What I 
want to know is how my children are going to be 
treated, and I'm not happy with how they have 
been treated already. 

The white community is very invested in 
maintaining their children's emotional well­
being. But these are the same people who do 
racist things to African American kids. What 
about their emotional well-being? I don't think 
the school systems see that as a priority. 

Leslie Mccrorey Wells 1
' 

Use ofcurriculum materials promoting 
racial stereotypes 
I have a 9-year-old daughter. Several weeks ago 
she approached me with a book that she was to 
read for her 4th grade reading class. She asked 
me just to read the back cover. She said it didn't 
sit well with her because of the way that it 
talked about; quote "the Indian and how this 
young white boy and his grandmother were try­
ing desperately to escape from him by taking a 
raft down river." I praised her for noticing the 
negative images and for bringing it to my atten• 
tion. 

After reading the first two chapters, I spoke 
with my daughter's teacher to ask what she 
hoped the children would gain from this book 
they were reading, a book that I perceived as 
extremely racist. She informed me that they 
were doing a unit on Native Americans and that 
the aim of this particular book was to get the 
children to understand the American grit of the 
boy and his grandmother. After a brief discus-
sion, she told me that if the children don't bring 
up the issue of the negative images, she would in 
their discussions. 

I finished reading the book and realized that 

see them until it's too late" and then culminating 
in a final chapter which depicted how seven In• 
dians were caught after they burned out and 
murdered several of the good white settlers. 
Needless to say, there wasn't any other message 
in the book except that Native Americans were 
savages. 

The following letter was sent to the school by 
my daughter's father: 

I am writing in regard to the curriculum in my 
daughter's reading clau, specifically the book in 
which the claa8 ia now :required to read, Trouble 
River, by Bet.ay Byan. I bd the depiction of Native 
Americans quite troubling indeed. Describing Native 
Americana as aavagea with animal noaes perpetuates 
stereotypic lies, and the presentation of their culture 
as aolely bent on the atalking and murder of white 
women and children ia reprehensible. The Nati,,e 
American culture ia eo rich and ao f11Jfimnc, how 
could anyone stand by and let their children read 
such lies? It ii to my daughter's end.it that she wu 
able to recopize these stereotypes for what they were 
and bring-it to our attention. Leslie and I have dia­
cuued the iaaue and are in agreement that if the book 
is to be read in clau, [our daughter] will be allowed to 
leave the room and read a book in the learning center. 
While Leslie and I do not and should not have control 
over the curriculum, I urge the faculty to be critical 
thinkers and to constantly re-evaluate the curricu• 
lum. A book written in 1969 should be c:uefully 
evaluated for stereotypic and racist depictiona :re­
gardless of how many awards it has received. At any 
age, people a:re inclined to believe what is written in 
books, but young readers are particularly susceptible. 
It is up to the educators to evaluate the reading mate­
rial carefully so that harmful stereotypes are not per­
petuated through yet another generation. 

This letter prompted a meeting with the prin­
cipal and the teacher. I was particularly dis­
heartened with the meeting, but the most aig­
nm.cant pa.rt for me was when my daughters 
teacher told me that she was embarrassed fot 
having missed the stereotypes. But she had re­

the image of--the-·lndian-.remained-constant .--alized that·it·;.was· because she doesn't notice 
throughout the book with phrases such as, "they stereotypes. Now I'm not here to say this is a bad . 
got animal noses, they can smell you out" and person; I am saying that she is a pa.rt of an insti• 
"there is never just one Indian," and "you don't tution that is not fit to teach my child or any of 

our children. I am fully aware that she does not 
stand alone.

14 Wells testimony, Burli716tOn Transcript, pp. 276-32. 
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This is a perfect example of the American 
educational system. I am here to say that this 
type of education is absolutely unacceptable. 
When a 9-year-old stands alone not only identi­
fying but articulating the stereotypes within the 
literature that has been endorsed and legiti• 
mized by her teacher, then I say this is unac• 
ceptable and the educational system and society 
that allow it to continue are morally and ethi­
cally vacant. 

It is unacceptable that I have to choose be· 
tween taking my child out of a class and risk her 
feeling that she did something wrong or leaving 
her in a class with a teacher that doesn't recog­
nize the existence of a problem with depicting 
Native Americans as savages. The book is still 
being read in the class. 

For those who read this report, I urge you to 
please develop a sense of urgency about racism 
within our schools. All of our children are being 
diminished. If you are in a position to receive 
this report, you are most likely in a position to 
do something about it. You have an obligation to 
all children to be a catalyst for change. Don't 
allow the legacy that parents of children of color 
have had to pass on to each generation continue, 
the legacy of picking our children up at 2:30 and 
attempting to repair the damage that has been 
done to them during their school day. Racism is 
not a problem or an issue; it's a way of life. 

Leigh Lamphere 11 

Systemwide approach to curriculum selection 
I'm a public school teacher and the parent of two 
biracial sons who go to the school where I teach. 
One is in kindergarten and one is in 1st grade. 
As a family we haven't personally encountered 
strong acts of racial harassment, so it would be 
easy to say that that term doesn't apply to my 
family and children, but I think it does. 

Last year my son was standing in the hallway 
at People's Academy in Morrisville; he's a kin• 
dergartner, and the kindergart.en is housed in 
the high school. A junior high school girl walked 
by and spit her gum in his face. Was that racial 

I'd like to speak about the lack of an enlight­
ened approach in the school curriculum. I teach 
music in the school where my sons go, and I'm 
careful to bring a lot of music from a lot of differ­
ent cultures. As far as the rest of the curriculum 
goes, it disturbs me that it is primarily my sons' 
kindergart.en and first grade classrooms that 
have picture books with children of color. The 
reason they have these materials is because I've 
provided them for those teachers. It disturbs me 
that if you happen to get the right teacher and 
it's February, black hi.story month, you might get 
to learn about Rosa Parks or maybe Dr. Martin 
Luther King Jr. and maybe not if you're in other 
classrooms. That's probably the most that you're 
ever going to learn about the civil right.s move• 
ment. When you get to 6th grade, you're going to 
learn a little bit about the Civil War and you're 
going to talk about slavery, but you won't talk 
about the real issues. 

We don't have a national or statewide cur­
riculum. I don't want to have to be the one that 
provides that education for my children uclu• 
sively, because it's not just my children. that 
need that education. And I don't want to have to 
enlighten every teacher that my children are 
going ~ have and provide books in the classroom 
so that children are exposed to all the things 
that they should be exposed to. I would like to 
know that my children and all of the children in 
my school are going to get a comprehensive edu-
cation which is not strictly Eurocentric. 

It's November and so we're going into a unit 
on Native. Americans, and you might be in the 
classroom where the teacher actually calls the 
Native American a Native American instead of 
Indian, but you're going to sit around and make 
headdresses and pretend that you're in a pow­
wow. What little bit is touched on in the cur• 
riculum is very often sort of tokenism or a kind 
of tourist approach. I respect my colleagues and 
I don't feel that most of them are blatantly rac,. 
ist. I think that they don't really get it; they 
don't understand. They say, "But in February we 
talked about Rosa Parks," and they just don't get 

harassment?-lt-felt--lik.e it. .!!'here-wasn't any-ex• , .that that's all·,that they.-did and that'& all that 
change of words. It's sometimes hard to know if my children will ever know about their heritage. 
that was a racially motivated act or just pure 
crassness and stupidity. 

15 Lamphere t.estimony, Burlington Transcript, pp. 284-90. 
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DISCUSSION 
MR. CHENEY: Do you know if there's been 

any systematic review of the curriculum at Peo­
ple's Academy with a view to this? 

MS. LAMPHERE: I'm certain that there has 
not. I'm at the elementary school, but I can 
speak for our school, absolutely not. 

MR. CHENEY: The textbooks that are in 
your school, are they all of the type you de­
scribed where it's pretty much all white? 

MS. LAMPHERE: No. You're not going to buy 
a language arts book that doesn't have cartoon 
pictures of people of all different races. Is Afri'.' 
can American history or any people of colors' his· 
tory really talked about in the schools? Not 
really. 

Mary Allen McMaster 11 

Teachers, staff, and administrators modeling 
unequal traatment toward minority students 
I teach African history at Castleton State Col-
lege. I came to Vermont in 1988 because I 
thought it would be a good place to raise a child. 
I didn't realize that I was making the biggest 
mistake of my life. Within the first day my child 
was already in danger. When my aon walked up 
to get the mail, he noticed that the next door 
neighbor's post and holder for newspaper had 
fallen into the road. He tried to repair the box 
because he thought it could cause an accident. A 
man in a truck pulled over, opened the right-
hand door screaming at him jumping to the con-
clusion that he was a vandal. The swinging door 
caused my little boy to have to throw him.self 
into the ditch to keep from being hit. 

The first time my son walked down the hall 
at Castleton Elementary School, a child reached 
over and knuckled his hair. That was the begin-
ning, and it never stopped. After a week at Cas-
tleton my son had really changed his identity 
because in preschool in California he came home 
one day saying, "You know, Mom, there's so 
much talk about black and white. But look at 
me, I'm not black. I'm certainly not pink like 
you. Would beige be a good way to describe me'!' 

knew of another little boy around 5 or 6-years of 
age who came home before the end of his first 
week and screamed at his mother, "I'm not Afri. 
can, I'm not black; I'm white, you're not my 
mother, and I hate you." 

In the 3rd grade at Castleton Elementary 
School. my eon came home and said after one 
day of school, "They won't keep their hands off 
me." I went to the principal and I pointed out 
that the psychologically sound way was to em­
power him to allow him to raise his voice in the 
hallway ao that a teacher could overhear him 
saying, "Get your hands off me." They told me he 
would be punished for raising his voice and that 
he was to sneak when nobody was looking and 
tell a teacher what had happened. I said, "'I'm 
not going to have you turn my child into an in-
former." So they instituted a policy whereby both 
students were considered equally responsible 
whenever there was physical contact. When an-
other boy wrapped his legs around my eon's lep. 
my son was the one punished. 

Within a few weeks I was going in regularly 
to see what was happening in the schools, and at 
lunch there were probably 150 2nd and 3rd 
graders. They were allowed to talk, ao there was 
sort of a gentle roar. All of a sudden the teacher 
in charge of the lunchroom descended on my 
child grabbing him and shaking him and 
shrieking, "You're the cause of all the noise." 
Every kid in that school knew it was illegal for 
her to lay hands on him, so every student was 
shown the rules don't apply. You have a problem 
and you can work it out on the dark kid, and 
that's exactly the message that is coming down 
from the highest quarters. 

It's not only emotionally exhausting for these 
students, it becomes physically dangerous. It's 
the comfort level of the teachers, the employees, 
the Bdministrators in the school system. If my 
son were retarded, they would be very comfort. 
able with him. They would be very gently pa• 
tronizing, but at Castleton Elementary School it 
became apparent probably within the first week 
that he was the brightest kid in the school, and 

After a week ·at Castleton-he ·was :black, and I- ,,:. that's-what ·the·;problem is. ·The -abuae was sys­
think this was extremely healthy. He chose to tematic and pervasive. They tried to lower his 
identify him.self as black because the other stu- performance to the level of their racist comfort. I 
dents were brutalizing him for being black. I took him out of Fair Haven High School in No-

vember of 1994, and he started his senior yearm 
a high school last September outside the State. 16 McMaster testimony, .Rutland Tra.nscript, pp. 6-33. 
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DISCUSSION had found another way to challenge him, and 
MR. HOFF: Did he have any friends? 
MS. McMASTER: He was very popular his 

first year at Fair Haven. In his freshman year, I 
made the mistake of going to a counselor and 
explaining that because the verbal abuse was so 
pervasive, my son's way of dealing with it was to 
take a day off now and then. And I suggested 
they tell his teachers that his absences are not 
frivolous, explain that it is due to the racial har­
assment, and to do some consciousness raising so 
that teachers and administrators will be on the 
lookout because he cannot and will not implicate 
the perpetrators. I learned from one of the 
teachers that the counselor told his teachers that 
he had psychological problems. 

MR. CHENEY: You described this discipline 
policy that's so obviously unfair that the victim . 
gets the same treatment as the perpetrator, but 
did you try to pursue that with the authorities? 

MS. McMASTER: My son made me promise 
that I would not do anything to make it impossi• 
ble for him to continue in school. I spent part of 
every day week after week with this principal. 
And when my son was punished equally, I just 
came and had lunch with him every day. I got an 
ally in the school counselor so that when my son 
would come home in a rage because of something 
that had happened, the school counselor would 
go and check it out. Before my son entered the 
4th grade in 1989, I told the principal he could 
either do what was sensible, look at my son's test 
scores, look at his grades, watch him on the 
athletic field, or take the easy way out and pro­
mote him or. you can put him in that room with 
the woman who attacked him savagely. This 
principal had a habit of refusing to speak to·me. 
I once sat for half an hour after asking him a 
question; he just sat there. And a week later I 
got a call saying, well, he could have a 6-week 
trial in the 5th grade and then never heard any­
thing else about it. One day my son came home 
and was fused with rage. It seemed that in phys­
ed there was a game where the teacher was sup­
posed to throw the ball underhanded. Instead, 

this would make him a pariah because kids are 
very competitive. It was a team sport, and what­
ever team my son was on, if it was ahead, the 
teacher would come in on the other side. So 
whatever team my son was on was never al­
lowed to win. 

MR. CHENEY: We've heard testimony re­
garding the futility of making complaints, but 
some people know the Human Rights Commis­
sion exists, actually had some good results. Did 
you try to complain to the Attorney General? 

MS. McMASTER: My son made me promise 
not to do any of this, and then he just one day 
said, ..All right, mom, take me out." He explained 
that a student who has bad severe learning 
problems, who bad been mainstreamed at Fair 
Haven High School because he was a good foot­
ball player, would harass him. I asked, "How 
often does this happen?" He explained that every 
single day that be has been at school that year, 
the student would come over, sit down, grab 
what food he wants off my son's tray, throw gar­
bage and then say, "Dump it, slave." The last. 
day my son was there, the assistant principal 
was present while this football player went 
through this routine. The assistant principal just 
sat there talking with the football player while 
this was happening. It was at that point, my son 
said, MJt's over." 

RABBI KITTY: Was your son ever assaulted 
on the way to or from school ? 

MS. McMASTER: The school bus stops at our 
driveway, and regularly she would go by and 
leave him. She could see him before she •made 
her tum back up in the driveway, -but if be 
weren't standing at the edge of the road, she 
would speed up. He had to be very careful on the 
school bus because if somebody grabbed him 
there, he could have been off the bus. 

MS. SAUDEK: Did your son participate in 
school sports? . 

MS. McMASTER: Yes. And I was really 
stunned when I saw that coaches would rather 
lose than play him. My son spent a lot of time 

he threw it overhand--at- bis•bead. So -I• .went to • .' perfecting his soccer-uills. He was the second or 
my next door neighbor who was the counselor at third best soccer player on the 9th grade team at 
the school and checked it out. He said, "You're Fair Haven. When it came time to substitute a 
absolutely right." And when asked why he said, player, the young coach of the team could not 
"Oh, well, your son is so physically gifted I have leave the black kid in and he took him out and, 
to challenge· him." The other phys-ed teacher of course, the goal was scored right where my 
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son bad kept this area covered. I realized, my 
God, this young man doesn't know why be 
couldn't honor my son by saying he's one of the 
top eight or ten players on the field. You had to 
take him out and degrade him even if it meant 
losing the game. 

The week before I took my son out of Fair 
Haven, parents of three other students came to 
me and said, "You must get him out, he's in 
physical danger." One person's daughter saw my 
son pinned against a corridor wall by five or six 
larger students who were fronting him. Of 
course, if he reached out to try to push his way 
out, he would have been guilty of making con• 
tact. The girl very quickly walked over, took my 
son's band and led him away from the other stu• 
dents. When she later came home, she was al· 
most hysterical. She said that her mother was 
one of the people that came and said, "You must 
get him out." 

MR. TUCKER: A lot of people called the Hu• 
man Rights Commission and are told you can file 
a complaint but there's a big backlog. They're 
not very encouraging about taking legitimate 
complaints. A number of us are looking for al­
ternatives, and one is to just take a claas action 
suit against the State. • 

MS. McMASTER: May I say I think that's the 
only thing that's going to work unless we get the 
United States Attorney General to send Federal 
investigators in. 

MR. TUCKER: This is one of numerous com­
plaints that you will bear from Afro-Americans 
and other groups who want to use that office 
only to be told there is a big backlog. So that's 
already setting up a climate of"We don't want to 
hear this and we don't want to respond." I don't 
know how I could be a State official or a person 
in office and not be appalled. 

MS. McMASTER: I think they're selling the 
citmens of this State short. What we have here is 
a conspiracy of silence. I know a number of peo­
ple who will give you testimony if their names 
are never published. The Office of Civil Rights 
enforcement of the Vermont Attorney General 
has not enforced the law. As a matter of .fact, 
when I called wanting to know when this meet­
ing was and its location and time, I had a call 
waiting for me yesterday saying they couldn't 
tell me. 

Barbara Linton 17 

Racial harassment incidents throughout 
primary and secondary school system. 
Investigations by Human Rights Commission 
I'm in an interracial marriage and have two 
children, Sheila Marie, who is 19 and out of high 
school, and a son, David Andrew, who is 22. 
We've lived in Vermont for more than 20 years, 
and my children attended schools in southern 
Vermont. My children were in the school system 
from 1984 to 1996. 

One of the things I was hoping when I first 
moved here was that I wouldn't have to have 
another generation of black children growing up 
with prejudice and bigotry always at their 
shoulder. We have five generations of black men 
and women in my family who have faced preju­
dice in everyday life such as someone following 
us in a store because they think that something 
is going to pt stolen, or attending a sc:bool func­
tion and having aome little kid call you Aunt 
Jemima and Jliaer. The violence and the verbi­
age no doubt followed my kids back to the house. 
It was very difficult at times for my husband and 
I to deal with what was just them and what was 
really happening to them. My son's experience 
was a little bit harder, not to say that hers was­
n't. Here, being a second child, I knew a little bit 
better about bow to protect her and how to be in 
the classroom ahead of the teacher. 

My son has dysgraphia and some reading 
problems. When he was in let grade, he had a 
teacher who kept telling me that be had a be· 
havioral problem. The teacher kept labeling him 
as disobedient and disruptive. So I went to this 
teacher and asked to have my son tested; how­
ever, she disagreed and thought he was merely 
disruptive and disobedient. 

DISCUSSION 
MR. CHENEY: I've heard from other wit­

nesses that, like your son, said that he was dia­
ruptive or disobedient and that somehow the kid 
deserves what he's getting from the other k:ida 
because he's that kind of a kid and the acbool 

. • ·tended to -blame '. him rather than seeing that 
maybe he's disruptive or disobedient because of 
things that are being done to him. Do you see 
that kind ofscenario going on? 

17 Linton t:eatimony, Rutland Tron.script, pp. 42-128. 
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MS. LINTON: It's trUe, but you have to un­
derstand we're talking about white adults who 
want to keep the status quo, and the only way 
that they're going to be able to do that, either 
through color, race, or economic lines, is to sepa• 
rate our people and our children. 

We used to have to walk our children back 
and forth to school because they used to get beat 
up on the way home. One day my sister went in 
to pick up my son and apparently one of the stu­
dents had said a racial epithet to him. My sister 
immediately told the teachers that they 
shouldn't have corrected the child. Later I re• 
ceived a call from an administrator who told me 
that my sister's banned from the school because 
she was violent. Rather than cause problems, my 
sister stood outside. They were so indignant at 
the fact that there would be a black aunt or 
mother who would actually say to a white child, 
"Don't do this.ff 

MR. TUCKER: They didn't like being COD• 

fronted. What would they consider someone who 
is black that confronts them? 

MS. LINTON: Violent. So every day I was up 
there in my son's classroom making sure that his 
teacher did her job. And I was told that I wanted 
special privileges for my children. I never asked 
for it, never got it, but nevertheless, people think 
I got special privileges. There were a lot ·of chil­
dren and parents in Brattleboro who suffered in 
silence. I .know of approximately 50 parents of 
color who had children in school who were being 
harassed over the years, but it's more now than 
before because Brattleboro is an exploding 
population of children of color. 

In 1994 the Inuits came to my children's 
school to raise money for a dam being built in 
Quebec. My children were on a panel of students 
who were hosting them as guests. They were 
taking them into the gym to have a cultural talk 
about what was happening in relationship to 
these indigenous people. The white children ex­
pected these people to have teepees and wearing 
war paint. It got so bad that the people left and 
all the children went back to their classrooms. 
There was . not. .one ...teacher or _counselor ..who . 
apologized to those people. It was left up to the 
children of color (my daughter and my son) who 
stood up for them in that gym. 

MR. TUCKER: In your travels through the 
community in '96 and '97, what have you heard 

parents of color talking about? ls it on the 
grapevine that there's still problems in the Brat­
tleboro school? 

MS. LINTON: Yes. Most definitely. There are 
racial harassment policies in effect now, but 
from what I understand, they are not enforced. 
There are still incidents that are happening to 
children that people try to explain away. 

MR. TUCKER: When you say ..explain away," 
what do you mean? 

MS. LINTON: When two kids are fighting, 
the only child that gets taken away by the police 
is the black child to court to face assault. But 
what's so sad about it is these teachers are still 
teaching and they're still doing the same thing to 
other kids that they did to my son and daughter. 

When my son was in the 3rd grade he came 
home one day and said, "Ma, cut my hair." Every 
day this child was in distress. One day his 
teacher was telling him that he was going to 
take a lawn mower to his head unleas he cut his 
hair. And so this poor child was in such emo­
tional distress. And he said, 'The kids in the 
classroom make fun of me all the time because 
the teacher says that and then they repeat it." 
So I called the teacher up and he admitted say­
ing it but claimed it was a joke. I told him that 
when you joke with an 8 year old and tell him to 
destroy a part of what his heritage is, how can 
you have those white boys and girls tea.sing and 
laughing at him in your class? Later he told me 
since the principal was away that day I was not 
allowed in the school anymore. I called a couple 
of friends of mine, made a couple of sign.a, and 
stood in front of that school all day. I had about 
10-15 people standing in front talking about ra• 
cism. And I had the teacher's name plastered all 
over those placards. The school did not fire the 
teacher, so we picketed again the next week. 

An 8-~ar-old boy who comes home hysterical 
because he thinks he's going to lose what is his 
biological heritage, his hair. He can't do any• 
thing about his facial features, his skin color, or 
his hair. That is his heritage, that is who he ia, 
and for somebody who believes he's not of color 
to. say .that he's• going-to destroy-that meant 
that he was trying to destroy my son. 

Now I'm going to tell you my son is going to 
be 23 in March 1998. This man has never apolo­
gized to my son for what he did to him. When he 
met him again when he was dean of students at 

23 



the high school. he tried to mess with my son 
then, but my son was older and able to defend 
himself. He couldn't say the same things to my 
son that he could say to him when he was 8. We 
just made sure that he didn't have anything to 
do with my son, didn't teach in any classes my 
son was taking, or have any decision power over 
my son. 

DR. JOHNSON: You mentioned that several 
parents ask you, "Barbara, what should I do?' Is 
it useful to do something in a written form so 
that parents can have ideas about strategies of 
what to do regarding teachers? Your son helped 
teach you for your daughter, but there are many 
parents who are going into this for the first time. 
How can we help more parents be stronger in 
dealing with the school? 

MS. LINTON: Take that law into every school 
district and sit down with the superintendent 
and all the principals. Command them to come 
to a meeting and then invite parents. If this 
Committee went to every school district and of. 
fered to take the complaints back to Federal 
authorities, we could initiate a class action suit 
on behalf of all the students of color in Vermont. 
This would make them do what they need to do. 
What would really help would be if this Commit• 
tee were to issue a Federal mandate that the 
State of Vermont and its school districts do not 
receive money until they clear up these problems 
they're having. 

There's so much injustice and there's so much 
grief and pain children are being scarred every 
day. And there's nothing that can be done to 
help those parents in that way. If we're talking 
about parents being more politically active in 
their school district, I think that parents already 
are because they're speaking up. It's not a ques-
tion that they don't know how to do it or won't do 
it; it's because they feel it would be of no use. 

DR. HAND: You spoke about your protest 
and how it seemed to have little negative impact 
on it. I'm interested in what the systemic reac-
tion was. Obviously, the system promoted this 
man. 

was not on my priority list other than keeping 
him away from my children. But he's still dean 
of students. 

RABBI KITTY: When you called around to 
your friends to protest, was it only black families 
that came to your aid or did you find that you 
had more general community support? 

MS. IJNTON: I have friends in the commu-
nity who will do things at the drop of a hat and 
are not afraid to do it. Some are afraid to do 
that. 

RABBI KITTY: My question was to gather a 
sense of how alone or how supported you felt in 
the community. There's a sense that parents of 
black children are alone, that no matter where 
you go you're stymied because no one will sup-
port you in supporting the law. 

MS. LINTON: Nobody. That's true. It still 
exists like that today. My son's physical educa­
ti.on teacher once claimed that my son was in• 
subordinate and tried to have him suspended. 
They were playing tennis and my son hit the ball 
and it went out. Now he didn't hit it purposely, 
but the teacher said, "Okay, I want you to go out 
there and get it." He didn't send anyone else out• 
side the gate to get balls, but he told my son to 
get it. My son was old enough to tell him, "Ifyou 
want those balls, you're going to have to go get 
them." Every time he was in gym he would make 
a comment about how he wasn't doing something 
or claimed he didn't have coordination. I think 
they take a look at him and know he's one strong 
black man, one more, and they don't want to 
have that. They want to destroy his life, to take 
his sense of self-esteem, and destroy the very 
essence of who he is by making him less than a 
person in the eyes of his peers and other adults 
regardless of what color they may be. These peo­
ple shouldn't be teaching anymore. They should 
lose their jobs. 

The counselor that my son reported all his 
feelings to in private admitted that my son was­
n't the only one. One particular teacher liked to 
pick on children who were overweight. children 
who were of color. children who had disabilitiea. 

MS. LINTON: By-the-tim.e-he.-was-deari of- -.-:You name it; he was abusive. And all these chil­
students, my children were almost out of high 
school. We were embroiled in a bitter case with 
the Human Rights Commission and were trying 
to settle issues of discrimination and racism in 
the district. So his becoming dean of students 

dren were coming to this particular counselor 
and telling him. I urged this counselor to report 
this to the principal and superintendent. "'You're 
trying to put words in my mouth," was the first 
thing that he said to me. I said, "Do you realize 
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what you're doing? You're telling me that you're 
hearing that these children are being abused, 
that these children are reporting to the school 
doctor what's happening to them, their parents 
are telling you, I'm telling you." This man is still 
teaching. This man is still being complained 
about in the newspaper as of a month ago re­
garding this abuse. 

MR. TUCKER: You're saying that 8 years ago 
he received complaints from you and 8 yea.rs 
later he's still being complained about in the 
newspapers? 

MS. LINTON: Right. And others. 
MR. DIAMOND: Do you perceive white par­

ents who had children of color as being treated 
the same way you were treated and in your 
judgment had any more success in dealing with 
the school administrative structure? 

MS. LINTON: I don't think so. I think people 
are just as bold to white women and white men 
who have children of color. They're perceived as 
parents of black children and children ofcolor. 

MS. SAUDEK: From news stories I've seen 
and heard, I have the sense that black kids in 
this State have even more difficulties when they 
participate in interscholastic sports. Did your 
kids participate in sports? 

MS. LINTON: Yes. There might have been 
some incidents, but their teammates usually 
took care of it quickly, and they had good 
coaches. I can't address what's happening in 
other parts of the State where there might be 
more isolation of students of color. My son and 
daughter were integrated in the school system 
for a long time until they reached junior high 
and high school, and then there were more stu­
dents of color. 

There have been hundreds of incidents that I 
have reported to the Human Rights Commission. 
Two incidents I will describe happened to my 
daughter: 

1. While in the 7th or 8th grade, they had elec­
tions for class presidents. Everybody would 
give a speech before the class and then stu- • 
dents w.ould vote. And-they-had-the right to 
make up flyers and post their positions in 
school. My daughter did that, but then when 
she came back to school none of her posters 
were up. Everyone else's posters were up, 
not hers. This happened for a couple days in 

a row until she caught a kid ta.king them 
down. And he ea.id to her, "'You're not going 
to get elected; niggers don't get elected any­
way." Needless to say that my daughter was 
not elected, nor was there a student of color 
elected that year. But because of the con­
tinuing effort, the next year a student of 
color was elected. White students have their 
own little cliques. They leave students of 
color out of simple things such as voting on 
class presidents, choosing the king and 
queen at the prom, etc., because they're not 
the image that they wish to present. 

2. Also in 7th grade or 8th grade, my daughter 
had a substitute for art class, and the rule 
was that ifyou needed to go to the bathroom, 
you took a tag off the wall and went down.:. 
stairs to the bathroom. And because I fre. 
quently go into the school, I noticed kids 
waJking the corridors, going back and forth 
to the bathroom, and peeking into other 
classrooms and saying hello to their friends. 
Well, my daughter just happened to do it 
that particular day and she asked the substi­
tute if she could use the bathroom, and she 
proceeded downstairs to the bathroom. All of 
a sudden the substitute teacher is screaming 
at the top of her lungs for my daughter to 
come back. The principal hears a teacher 
calling my daughter's name. He wanted her 
to go back upstairs and answer her teacher. 
He stood in front of her and grabbed her and 
tried to stop her and force her to go back up­
stairs. She had to run from that principal 
(who's still principal of that school) out the 
front door, around the back of the school 
with him and another teacher chasing her ao 
she could go to the bathroom on the other 
side of the building, urinating in her pants in 
the process. I received a phone call from the 
principal who claimed my daughter was in­
subordinate, and that he was going to aus­
pend her. In the 10 minutes it took me to pt 
to that school they had the assistant super­
intendent ·and a ··police officer there to deal 
with me. When my daughter came home the 
next day she had bruises on her arm where 
he put his hands on her. Nothing happened 
to this man nor to the teacher who chaaecl 
her and violated her privacy. 
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All the times that my children were walking 
back and forth to grade school and junior high 
school, all the times that students used to follow 
them home, call them every kind of racial epi-
thet in the book, throw stones and rocks at them, 
physically beat them, tear their clothes off their 
bodies not one police officer could ever get to 
that school to get those children who were in · 
those classrooms who were doing it. No one 
could ever knock on these parents' doors. No one 
understood the meaning of racism. And these 
people are still teaching these children. 

MS. ELMER: You've mentioned a number of 
times you filed complaints with the Human 
Rights Commission. Was that an effective sys-
tem for you? 

MS. LINTON: Sometimes it was and some-
times it wasn't. Sometimes you can get a phone 
call and people straighten themselves out, but 
for the most part, no. It's very hard to prove and 
they can always explain something away. It 
wasn't right what happened to her, it was a mis-
understanding, but nobody could explain away 
those bruises. 

MS. ELMER: What recommendations can you 
make to the Human Rights Commission or other 
State agencies? 

MS. LINTON: Teachers who do this should be 
fired immediately and something placed perm.a-
nently on their record if they want to be able to 
work in another school district again in the 
State. 

My son had an art class when he was 12 or 13 
and there were 15 to 17 kids in that class. And 
the teacher purported herself to being a woman 
who understood diversity. And there were three 
boys in this class who used to taunt my son on a 
daily basis by calling him a monkey, telling him 
that bis eyes looked like girls, or his hair looked 
like he had put bis hands in sockets, or push him 
around. So my son exploded in class one day and 
beat them up. The principal and the teacher who 
said she didn't hear anything had my son taken 
out of the school and down to the police station. 
No Administrator called me and told me that's 

lem. My son's lawyer went to the district court 
and argued that this was a racial attack. All of a 
sudden everything went away, the assault on the 
police officer, the aggravated assault on three 
kids. And they said, "Well, your son was a little 
aggressive. We'll just give him disorderly con­
duct and he can go to diversion for that so that 
he can manage bis anger." And I asked, "What 
happens to the other students involved?" Noth­
ing. So if it wasn't for the fact that I was bis 
mother, my son would have had a police record 
and removed from my home as a juvenile of-
fender, for what? because he didn't want to be 
called monkey or nigger, have bis facial features 
be made fun of, or jeered and taunted in the 
classroom? 

MR. CHENEY: Did the Human Rights Com-
mission get involved in that case? 

MS. lJNTON: Yea. They did find sufficient 
grounds regarding the incident. On that par­
ticular case the school settled. The Human 
Rights Commission filed a court case, and the 
school district had to face the fact that there was 
racial harassment and that what · they did was 
wrong. 

There are just too many incidents. I can't tell 
you the numerous times that my husband and I 
had to sit down as a family and try to figure out 
how we were going to keep our children safe and 
to make sure that when they got older they could 
walk to school together with their friends. 
Maybe two or three times a week I walked into 
that school. I couldn't sit in the cafeteria without 
some 1st, 2nd, or 3rd grader calling me, "Nigger, 
Aunt Jemima, jigaboo," or walk· on the play­
ground without some kid throwing a rock at me. 
When my children got to be in 6th grade, kids 
from the junior high school and high school used 
to come down, and when the children of color 
were outside playing they used to be along the 
fence saying that they were going to get him. I 
had one kid that I had to chase with a baseball 
bat out of my doorway where he had followed my 
son home and was beating him. The Human 
Rights Commission was faithful enough to take . 

what happened to -m.y son. .My. son. was in..the. • ;the report and mveatigate, ·but for the moat part 
police station for 2½ hours. They had charged 
him with aggravated assault, disorderly conduct, 
assault on a police officer, etc. The State's Attor-
ney wanted to take my son out of my home, put 
him in a juvenile facility as a-behavioral prob--

they did not find grounds to support the charge. 
MR. TUCKER: Have you had any instances 

where you filed with the Human Rights Com­
mission or with the Attorney General's Office for 
Civil Rights that were not pursued? 
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MS. LINTON: I can't tell you how many. 
Every week my children were in school I filed 
with the Human Rights Commission. 

MR. TUCKER: I would like to have some es• 
timate. Would you say 20 times in your life that 
you filed over 20 reports with the Human Rights 
Commission? And how many were acted upon? 

MS. Ll!'."TON: More than 20 reports were 
filed. One was acted upon. 

MS. SAUDEK: The others were investigated? 
MS. LINTON: They were. I'm not saying that 

they didn't investigate and make phone calls. 
There were some complaints that they didn't 
follow up on because they were not sufficient 
grounds for them to be able to act. Then there 
were others when they did not find sufficient 
evidence of discrimination. There was only one 
that they acted on and settled with the school 
district. 

In one case when my daughter was in junior 
high school. a female art teacher put her hands 
on her and threw her up against the wall I sued 
her myself because no lawyer and the Human 
Rights wouldn't take the case. 

MR. TUCKER: You're telling me that you had 
evidence that a teacher abused your child physi­
cally and that the Human Rights Commission 
didn't take it? 

MS. LINTON: That's right. 
MR. TUCKER: The State Commission on 

Civil Rights didn't act on this either? 
MS. LINTON: No. 
MR. TUCKER: When you exhausted those, 

did you go to any government agency? 
MS. LINTON: I called Boston, the Office of 

Civil Rights and Department of Education and 
they didn't act on it. 

MR. TUCKER: And you sued? 
MS. LINTON: Yes. I filed the case in New• 

fane Superior Court and claimed a violation of 
the State Civil Rights Act and Public Accommo­
dations Law. 

MR. TUCKER: What happened with the 
case? What did they decide? 

MS. LINTON: Nothing happened with the 
case. They didn't find for my daughter. 

Lyndia Cobbett 11 

Climate of racism in the State, Actions by 
administrators in response to racial 
harassment incidents 
I'm from a biracial relationship, and I have two 
school•aged children, one of whom attends Rut• 
land High School. Mr. Herrington [see presenta­
tion below] is the decent side of what these peo­
ple aren't. His summation of what Rutland 
schools are like is a fallacy. None of these people 
serve in the interest of our children. We have to 
go there and act belligerent and defend our chil­
dren for the little sick things that we know 
shouldn't be in schools. 

Recently my daughter was chased by a group 
of thoee people reported to be gang members. My 
daughter is picked on. She's having blatant 
things said to her such as slut, whore, etc. 

DISCUSSION 
MR. TUCKER: Are you saying your daughter 

is picked on in acbool and the school has done 
nothing about it? 

MS. COBBE'IT: They didn't. I thought the 
guy escalated the situation. He had tried to 
make my daughter responsible for what other 
kids would say, all the instigators, the kids in 
the school that knew this girl was after my 
daughter, make my daughter responsible for 
whatever the hearsay was coming from these 
other students. In other words, my daughter had 
no choice but to keep quiet. We di8CU8eed yester­
day, "Why didn't you go to the principal?" She 
didn't want to be a snitch. This is what I've been 
telling her to do, go to the principal. Let them 
resolve it. 

This is going on right under her teacher's 
nose, and she's worried about what the other 
students are going say. My daughter's refusing 
to go to the appropriate people to let them know 
about it simply because she doesn, want her 
peers to·think that and make the situation worse 
by that girl getting more ammo and her allies 
calling my daughter a snit.ch and having to go to 
the police and others just to defend herself. 

I •think all of it is T&c:ially motivated and 
comes from within the community. We're just 
being a family picked on. And they're doing it 

18 Cobbett testimony, Rutland Transtript, pp. 207-11, 224-
27,231. 
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through a child, and they're using this child to 
try to bring conflict on a family. They're using 
my daughter as another way of showing they 
don't want us in their community. They use 
these children to interfere. A lot of white kids, 
you ask them, "What are you going to do when 
you grow up?" and they respond they are going 
to college. They are so certain and confident in 
what their life passage is going to be, they have 
this extra time to binder our children's educa­
tion. 

MR. TUCKER: You th.ink what happens is 
the white kids have the privilege of treating 
these kids this way because they're so secure in 
what they're going to do? 

MS. COBBETT: They're confident either way 
they're going to pass. 

MR. TUCKER: No matter what they do, no­
body is going to do anything to them? 

MS. COBBETT: Nobody. 
MR. CHENEY: Do you know of other inci­

dents of this kind where the parents do not want 
to come forward? 

MS. COBBETT: They were run out of town, 
and that's why they're trying to do it to me. 
We're not wanted in the town. These are tactics 
used to discourage us from living here. 

Judy Adame 1
• 

Presumptions by teachers/administrators 
that minority students are involved in 
criminal activity 
I have a son who is 16, and be does not go to 
school anymore because he feels that the racism 
is so bad in the school system that he refuses to 
go. I'm from California. I moved here in 1995. 
My son was labeled a gang member because of 
his different ethnic colors. When he would hang 
around with his friends who were of different 
ethnic backgrounds, people would consider the 
group as a gang. 

My son often wears baggy pants. In 1995, 
when my son was 15, he was walking to class 
and a school official accused him of having drugs 
in his pants. They literally strip searched him in 
school. They..took -his . backpack-· and . searehed 
everything on his person, his pants, his shirts, 
his shoes, took everything apart. They also ac­
cused him of selling or doing drugs in the school 

19 Adame testimony, Rutland Transcript, pp. 218-31. 

system. I contacted an attorney and scheduled 
several meetings with the principal at the school 
and, coincidentally, every time the meeting 
came, he canceled at the last minute for some 
reason or another. 

DISCUSSION 
MR. TUCKER: Did you report this to the 

Human Rights Commission? 
MS. ADAME: No. I didn't know who to go to. 

I was just trying to help my son and reinforce 
him in the conferences. 

MR. TUCKER: Since part of the racial har­
assment policy is to inform parties of agencies 
that are available to them, did anyone in that 
school say anything to you about that? 

MS. ADAME: No. I went to the school the 
next day because my son came home. I was not 
even called to be there when he was searched if 
they wanted to search him. I believe his consti­
tutional rights were violated because he was not 
given the option to refuse to be searched. When 
my son came home, he was very depressed. 
During the evening he discussed it with me, and 
I was appalled. And I said, "'I'm going to school 
with you first thing in the morning." and I did. I 
voiced my opinion. I told school officials they 
were being very racist. I said in essence. "He 
hasn't even been here very long and you're al­
ready accusing him of being a gang member, a 
drug pusher. And I'm very appalled that you 
searched him without my permission and did not 
notify me first or give me an opportunity to be 
present while he was searched or even hire an 
attorney to defend him if he even had something 
on him." Ever since that day he has not liked 
school, refuses to attend, and wants to move out 
of this State. We're constantly having conflicts in 
my family now because of the difficulty with the 
school system. They think anybody who is of a 
different racial background is bringing drugs 
into the community and belongs to gangs. There 
once was an article in the newspaper which re­
ported that every nonwhite person register with 
the police department when they move into 
Rutland. 

The other thing I wanted to add is his exprea­
sion to me is he felt the staff' was very discour• 
aging toward him and very prejudiced toward 
him in relation with them thinking that he's a 
gang member. They did not have much verbal 
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contact with him or help him in his goals in 
completing his subjects. And he felt uncomfort­
able. A staff person mentioned to me that while 
at a meeting with school officials, other staff 
seemed very prejudiced toward my son for some 
reason. The person said that she understands 
now why Richard was cutting school and getting 
frustrated and discouraged because he's getting 
taunted in the hall with looks and namecalling 
by the teachers. 

JudyAmado 20 

Incidents of verbal and physical assault and 
response by teachers 
I am a parent of a 16-year-old son and a 23-year• 
old daughter. My son currently is enrolled in the 
Mill River school district. When my daughter 
attended school in this district, for a full year 
she was spit on, her lunches were smashed, and 
her books were knocked over. We had phone 
calls all night long. She was called a Filipino 
whore. One night we had to unplug our phone 
because it wouldn't stop ringing. The teachers 
and students ignored the problem. A young man 
approached her and frightened her so bad that 
she thought she was going to be hurt, and she 
defended herself. She begged me not to say any­
thing because nobody would do anything .. 

When my son got to high school, I came home 
one day and found him standing in our yard 
with tears running down his face. And I asked 
him what was wrong, and he said, "They're 
calling me Oreo and they're calling me nigger." 
He was in chorus, and they were kicking the 
chair when he stood up into the back of his legs. 
He asked me to sell my house and move because 
he didn't want to go to school. He didn't go to 
school for about 3 days. 

I have brought my children up to be very 
proud of their national origin. My son doesn't 
even want to play football this year because of 
the racial names. So it doesn't start in middle or 
high school. It starts when these children are 
born with their parents teaching them color­
blindness. I've talked to the school and they just 
sweep it under the rug.. 1.-eontacted .the school 
and I was told on several occasions, ..Oh, it won't 
happen again." The parents of these children 
would be horrified if they knew what was hap-

20 Amado testimony, Rutland Transcript, pp. 240-45. 

pening. But these children certainly knew what 
they were doing. 

DISCUSSION 
MR. TUCKER: How many times in the last 

year have you spoken to the school administra­
tion about your son? 

MS. ARNADO: A couple of times this year. 
Three or four times last year. These kids have 
known him all his life, but they still call him 
these names. And he won't fight back because he 
knows you're not supposed to fight in school. He 
doesn't like to go to school; he doesn't do well. 
My daughter spent a whole year in just terrible 
pain and fear. She was afraid of the boy who 
frightened her. So it exists in the schools, and a 
lot of schools have policies about ethnic diversity 
at Mill River, but it's superficial. They sweep it 
under the rug and try to ignore it. 

MS. ELMER: Are the policies written in a 
way that could be used to your benefit? 

MS. ARNADO: I doubt that that would hap­
pen. H I speak to anybody at all, it's to a vice 
principal or something and they're very pacify• 
ing on the surface, but nothing gets done after• 
wards. 

MS. ELMER: So they're polite to you? 
MS. ARNADO: Oh, definitely, but that's 

about it. 

Maria Pelligrino 21 

Racial slurs against minority students, 
Minority students' fear of reprisal 
I'm from Puerto Rico and my husband is a Ver­
monter: Last week I had the privilege to meet a 
wonderful family that had to leave Vermont. 
They were very hurt because since their son 
came to Fair Haven High School they right away 
said that he was a gang member. 

And I want you to know that there is a lot al 
racism in school. My kids were called names and 
being humiliated for so many years. When my 
son first came from Puerto Rico, he went to the 
elementary school and they were teaching his­
tory and they started saying that Puerto Rico'a 

• houses •were all shacks· and they were built from 
CocaCola signs. My aon tried to say that that 
was not true, and the teacher started humiliat­
ing him in front of the class. I told my husband 

21 Pelligrino testimony, Rutland Tranllcript, pp. 24W2. 
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about it, and like a typical Vermonter he said to 
just ignore it. And all these years my kids have 
complained to my husband about the name 
callings. They've been calling them spies and all 
kinds of things in school. And I tried to tell them 
just to ignore it. But at the bP.g:innjng of this year 
at Fair Haven High School, my son said that an­
other student would stand in the middle of the 
stairway every single day when he's going to go 
to school and let everybody pass except when it's 
my son's turn to go upstairs he holds him back. 
The student runs in front of my son telling him 
he is going to be last because he is Hispanic. Fi­
nally, one day he told me, "I'm going to punch 
him. I just can't stand it anymore. He's no better 
than me." I said, "Don't do it; talk to somebody 
instead." He said, "Why am I going to talk to 
somebody? They know what's going on. They 
really don't care." I know there's at least one 
teacher that does care, but a lot of the teachers 
just ignore it. Last year things got really bad. 
One student used to write racist remarks about 
blacks, Hispanics, and all people that are non• 
white. He also said that he wanted to be like 
Hitler. 

Last year one of the kids who they had a lot 
of problems with because he doesn't like His­
panics or blacks or nobody was expelled from 
school, but he's back this year. And my kids are 
afraid that one of these days he is going to ex­
plode. These kids brainwash other kids to be­
lieve what they believe. And they see our kids 
like intruders and ask. "Why do they have to 
come to Vermont?"' I try to teach my kids to re­
spect other cultures and to respect others. A lot 
of people don't want to admit that there's a 
problem. And they say that they like the way 
Vermont is and people who don't like it should 
leave. There is another kid that graduated last 
year that called my daughter all kinds of dirty 
names. She was always nervous and complain­
ing. She was crying a lot and didn't want to go to 
school. And this year she wanted to move back to 
Puerto Ru:o. I can't stand it. 

I know that this is going to continue and if 
somebody. doesn't do ..something about it, -other 
new kids will be going through the same thing. 

Summary 
Parents articulated common themes of racial 
harassment. They referred to instances of physi-

cal assault and racial slurs committed against 
minority students. pointing out that some of 
these were tolerated or ignored by teachers and 
staff. As a result, parents believed that some 
Vermont schools bad unsafe learning environ• 
ments and caused minority children to fear en­
tering school and participating in school activi­
ties. Parents identified difliculty working with 
adrninis1'J.'ators and teachers over issues of race 
and felt there was a lack of respect and sensitiv­
ity to minority student concerns. Parents 
claimed that teachers and administrators are 
prone to assume that minority students were the 
cause of illegal activity or disruptive behavior. 
According to the parents, inappropriate teaching 
methods and curriculum materials also contrib­
ute to promoting racial stereotypes and a climate 
of intolerance. 

Parents recommended that the State take 
appropriate action to identify and prevent racial 
harassment incidents, assist school districts to 
recruit minority teachers who can serve as role 
models in the classroom, and actively investigate 
each school's compliance with the State Anti­
Harassment in Education law. They also added 
that teacher training be conducted to help ad­
ministrators, teachers, and staff develap an un­
derstanding and commitment for diversity. 

Teachers, School Administrators, 
and Support Personnel 
Six teachers, school administrators, and para­
professionals shared their perspectives on the 
overall racial climate in Vermont public schools 
and solutions for improving school climate. The 
panelists offered examples of teaching methods 
that promote racial stereotypes, ways to foster 
teacher responsibility and accountability for safe 
learning environments, and tools to improve 
school curriculum. 
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Table 2.2 

List of Teachers, 
School Administrators, and Support Personnel 

Prnenter 
Debra Stoleroff 
Michael Henderson 
Mary Jane 
Marchelewicz 

Leigh Pfenning 

Carol Ode 

Bill Herrington 

Debra Stoleroff 22 

teacher 
teacher 

paraprofessional/educator 
principal, North Avenue 
Christian School 
chair, Bur1ington School Board; 
member of the State Board of 
Education 
counselor, Rutland Middle School 

Pervasive racial harassment in the school 
setting, Stereotype-promoting teaching 
methods, Labeling ofstudents with emotional, 
physical, or learning disabllities, Solutions for 
improving school climate 
I'm an educator and have taught in three differ• 
ent school systems in Vermont. I have lived in 
Vermont since 1973, having previously taught in 
schools in east Harlem, New York. Since enter• 
ing the public school system in Vermont, I've 
seen more racism and harassment than I ever 
saw in any New Yark City school. In New York I 
was in a very wonderful alternative school in 
east Harlem. We taught diversity training every 
day and it made a difference. I can say that 
there is a lot of harassment that goes on in Ver• 
mont schools, and it's not only towards African 
American children, it's also directed to Native 
American students, and children who are of dif. 
ferent religions or just of different backgrounds. 

Racial or ethnic harassment on the part of 
students, administrators, and educators and 
staff within schools is for the most part subcon-
scious and, therefore, embedded in the culture of 
the school. Teachers do not pick out one culture 

strengthen stereotypes. For example, in teaching 
general Native American culture, the fact that 
there are hundreds of different native cultures 
in the U.S. is ignored. This creates stereotypes. 
When teaching about Native Americans. the fo­
CW! is on a time that does not look at the present 
culture or question why the culture has evolved 
as it has. This also creates stereotypes. Done 
with the best intentions, teachers often focus on 
romanticized parts of the culture. Other stu• 
dents study general Native American culture 
from the point of view of westward expansion, 
which by its very nature looks upon Indians as 
heathens. In trying to create neat hands-on ac• 
tivities, artifacts are presented as crafts rather 
than having the spiritual significance that 
helped to define the culture. Similarly, black his-
tory is often taught 1 week in the year around 
Martin Luther King Day. Students celebrate the 
sufferings of slaves and jump to the civil rights 
movement and atop there. They are not taught 
to question what has or has not changed since 
that time. This type of study helps maintain the 
notion of "other" because we study the time as 
an object rather than as a living reality. 

Many children feel the effects of ethnic di&-
crimination around holiday time. One school in 
which I taught had a lovely tradition of having 
the staff gather at the doorway of the school on 
the last day before Christmas vacation and sing 
Christmas carols to the students as they came 
from the buses. Most children loved the sere• 
nade, but the message for the Jewish, Muslim., 
African American children who celebrated 
Kwanzaa, and children of other religions was 
that they were less important, not deserving, 
and second class. I had a Jewish child in my 
class who was constantly asking, "Are you Jew• 
ish? I can't believe it." I was someone he could 
identify as being like him. He found this com• 
farting. Not a peep was made about Hanukkah 
or other holidays at that school or celebrated at 
that time of year. 

In an attempt to celebrate diversity at an• 
other school, I and another colleague developed. a 

as better than·-another; but when· they ·teach -. celebration· to enable us to celebrate all holida:,s 
about another culture they often do a short unit whose major symbol is light, Hanukkah, Kwan• 
which only skims the surface and serves to zaa, etc. We also studied the movement of the 

earth and the moon in the solar system; teaching 
students about the cycles of light and dark on 

22 Stoleroffteatimony, Burlington Transcript, pp. 166-67, earth. We did this as a result of wanting to 
183-89, 195. 
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broaden our students' perspective of the world. 
not because we wanted to teach religion. The 
culmination of this month-long unit was a craft 
day in which many parents came to offer work­
shops on making candles, lanterns, lip balm, 
moon cookies, etc. At the end of the day we 
would aing songs about the movement of the 
earth and taking care of the earth. The students 
would offer thoughts about the earth. We would 
sit in a circle, and talk about our environmental 
awareness. It was a very suc:ceBBful program; 
kids and parents loved it. After the end of our 
third year of doing this a parent who did not 
have a child in any of our classes complained to 
the school board that we were teaching pagan­
ism. 

I'm not here to talk about general discrim.ina• 
tion problems, but I think that racism and har­
assment due to disabilities overlap. In one of the 
schools in which I taught it was my experience 
that some African American. East Indian, and 
Asian children had learning or emotional clis­
abilities. Because they had problems within the 
classroom and because they stuck out ethnically, 
they were labeled by teachers. Teachers are role 
models for paraeducators and children. Once a 
child gets labeled by adults who unconsciously 
let their feelings be known, the children who are 
not as subtle as adults translate this into har­
assment and start calling others discriminatory 
names. 

Children who are labeled because they have 
emotional. physical, learning disabilities and 
happen not to be Caucasian often interpret and 
translate messages internally such as "I'm bad 
because I am black, Asian, etc." For example, 
one time I walked into my office and happened 
to be going by a supply closet and there was this 
child sitting there and fretting. And I turned to 
him and I said, "What are you doing in this 
closet?" He said, "Well, they put me here." He 
went on to describe that he had gotten in trouble 
in his classroom and was sent to the office. The 
office in the school, which has many problems 
with discipline, couldn't deal with him and put 
him in the .closet -te wait. Eventually I •-took the 
kid out of the closet and took him with me. He 
was not in my class, but for years after that he 
would try to come to be in my classroom when he 
was having problems with another teacher. I 
tried to talk to the teacher to let him be in a 

place where he felt safe. Obviously I was over• 
stepping boundaries on the pa.rt of other teach• 
ers, and at the same time I felt I was justified in 
helping this child. If he felt safe in my classroom, 
I would somehow provide that space for him. 
You can imagine the harassment that I got from 
the teachers as a result of doing this. 

Solutions: 
1. Celebration. ofDiversity. We need to celebrate 

diversity. It needs to be part of daily life in 
the classroom. It needs to go beyond teaching 
about African American history and Native 
American cultures. You need to celebrate the 
ethnic heritage of all children, not just of one 
type of child. It's about respect and a belief 
that all humans have at least one strength 
upon which they can build their future. But 
most of all. it's about modeling respectful be­
havior toward all people. In the claaaroom 
this translates to the need to celebrate the 
heritage and abilities of every child. We need 
to feel comfortable about respectfully camng 
ourselves, students. colleagues, parents, etc., 
on moments when we are subconsciously be­
ing racist. 

2. Multicultural Leaming Materials, Cultural 
Leaders, and Diversity Specialists. At a 
minimum, we need to have multicultural 
books in all classrooms. Our schools, teachers, 
and administrators need to be of diverse 
backgrounds. The leaders of diverse cultures 
are not here in Vermont. We need to see 
them. We need to help schools, administra­
tors understand the complexities of the vari­
ous forms of discrimination and bow they re­
inforce each other. There needs to be diver• 
sity specialists within every school system. 
There need to be examples for learning op­
portunities within the standards. Someone 
said that it needs to be in the core curr.icu.­
lum. It is in the core curriculum. It's there in 
the vital results. There are civic and aocial 
standards, but they're not addressed. There's 

•·nothing to- keep -schoola·accountable to this 
area. 

3. Assessments. One of my jobs richt now is to 
conduct research on assessments for the 
Vermont Curriculum Consortium and As-
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sessment Task Force. I've been looking all 
over for the assessments for this area. 
They're not there. We need to make them up. 
And we need to hold the schools accountable. 
I think we need to go through with the law­
suits that were mentioned earlier in the 
hearing, because then discrimination be­
comes public. We do a disservice t.o keep it 
under the table. 

DISCUSSION 
MR. TUCKER: How many places do you 

know that offer courses on institutional racism? 
MS. STOLEROFF: There are very few. Sys­

temically, we don't address the issue. 
MR. TUCKER: We don't address it from an 

institutional viewpoint. I'm concerned because I 
think that multicultural people like yourself who 
don't get to address the issue that really is sys­
temic within the workplace, schools, and our 
lives is so deeply borne int.o the American cul­
ture that all of us play out our roles because 
we're born int.o that, and institutions are ao sys­
temic that we don't deal with it. And ao we hide 
that under diversity. We never address it. We 
talk about multiculturalism, we talk about eth-
nicity, we talk about everything, but we do not 
talk about systemic and institutional racism. 

MS. STOLEROFF: One of the ways we need 
t.o address it is systemically from the bottom 
starting with the kids. I've worked with children 
from 22 months to 22 years old. I have had a 
gamut of kids that I've worked with, and I know 
you can get children at day care level talking to 
each other, learning how to say, "'You hurt me, 
this hurt my feelings," having a teacher there so 
that they feel safe that they can talk to each 
other and figure out what wasn't okay, having 
somebody be there t.o help them mediate prob• 
lems. I've been successful at creating this type of 
environment within my classroom and having 
kids feel empowered at all levels. In fact, when 
students come in from the playground where 
there has been some sort of instance that has 
disturbed them and can't figure out. they often 

tion, the class suspended their work and we sat 
down as a class t.o figure out what was a way to 
help these two people solve their problems. The 
expectation was that our classroom was a com­
munity and we need t.o respect each other, work 
out our disagreements so that we could learn 
t.ogether. One time when a 4th grade boy had 
been called all sorts of names because he played 
with a doll. we sat down as a class. We talked 
about "isms." Where do you learn them? As a 
class we made a chart and the kids spent the 
rest of the year coming in daily and listing 
"isms" they had noticed. The listed what ism it 
was and where they learned it. 

I think one of the underlying causes of any 
harassment is low self-esteem. We should boost 
kids' egos for whatever reaaon so that they don't 
feel like they have to harass somebody else to 
boost their ego. In a class where there are many 
different kids with many difrerent strengths you 
can at some point gently, if not overtly, let a ·kid 
know what their strength is and call on that kid 
to help other children use their strengths ao they 
look to collaborate with each other. 

Michael Henderson 2:1 

Teacher accountability 
I would like t.o focus my presentation on teacher 
accountability. We should ask how do you pt 
people t.o choose to do things difrerently. It's the 
reaaon we have in-service days for teachers. I've 
done some workshops at difrerent schools, and 
the primary reaction we've gotten is a denial of 
the problem and the need for improvement. That 
attitude is reflected in the teacher's stance, in 
their body language, and the way they ahuftle 
children in and out of workshops. 

The reason I'm focusing on the schools is I 
believe that the schools need t.o be safe. The rea­
son I'm focusing on the teachers is because 
they're people, they're parents, they're Vermon­
ters. We've heard about what Vermonters are 
like in some ways in terms of. being isolated. 
And I focus on the teachers because as people 
they are keeping the same standards going. It 

ask me what to do.--You take them .at-the. very· -seems that once"they··get .their- emriculum in 
moment and ask the students who have been place, they're not moving forward.. For eumple, 
involved in the situation t.o go figure it out, let we had the book Little Black Sambo still on a 
them go and scream at each other and discuss teacher's ahelf in school. She was asked to re­
their feelings. It took some time t.o teach them 
how t.o do this. If they couldn't come to a resolu-

23 Hendenon testimony, Burlm6'0n Tronacript, pp. 178-82. 
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move it by one parent, and I think part of the 
reason that there was a confrontation there was 
perhaps the dynamic between the parent and 
the teacher. I think the teacher knew that the 
time and place for that book should have been 
gone a long time ago. 

So you ask about possibilities for change. 
We've been asked by teachers to bring in mul­
ticultural books. I would like to see more books 
in the library. Basically you find people who are 
very stuck, people who want to change, and peo­
ple who are open. 

In my particular school, the librarian is a 
very open person, but I'm not sure that all the 
teachers within that school are following her and 
availing themselves to the work that she's doing 
to make these books available. I'm not sure how 
you can legislate a teacher so that he or she 
wants to be the best possible person that they 
can, which in turn makes them the best possible 
teacher they could be. 

So you have a wide range of dynamics in the 
school that we've seen. My wife and I have a 
very hands-on approach. We basically go knock 
on doors when we have a problem with another 
parent or another child, and basically I approach 
the problem from the standpoint of "our children 
have a problem." I'm sure you and I as parents 
always go in with that as an assumed idea and 
want to help our children resolve their differ­
ences. I'm oftentimes talking about the parents 
and their ideals when in reality we have to be­
lieve we're addressing the children's problems. 
One suggestion I learned of came from a friend 
who is an educator and a camp director. He often 
takes groups of his friends out to plays, movies, 
etc. His feeling is that we'll all have a common 
dialogue by having common experiences. And 
perhaps that was one way if you can get the 
teachers to have common experiences, either 
through plays or art. 

DISCUSSION 
DR. JOHNSON: Do you have suggestions re-

garding how can we get at encouraging each 

making the judgment of what's to be appreci­
ated. Any time that you can acknowledge a child 
and make them feel wonderful for being dis­
tinctly who they are, you're doing great wonders. 

Mary Jane Marchelewicz ,.. 
Treatment ofminority teachers by other 
professionals 
I am a paraprofessional and educator in the 
South Burlington school district. The reason I'm 
here is because I see things going on with all 
kinds of kids at different age levels in a middle 
school environment. 

I had° an African American friend who was an 
educator at the high school A year before she 
knew she was leaving the area she quit her job 
at the school She was a strong, tall, positive, 
and dynamic woman who could not stand how 
she was treated by the staff' at the school she 
had been working at for 4 years. She was not 
greeted in the halls. She would go into the busi­
ness office or the high school office and get· no 
response. There were very few people on the 
whole staff' that would even say hi to her in the 
halls. So we lost her. The kids were furious when 
they lost her. 

When she was here, one of the first things 
she did when she first moved to Vermont was go 
to an educational conference in the Burlington 
area. At lunchtime she went into the large din­
ing hall and she didn't know anyone, but she 
was the only African American there at the time. 
She saw this table that had a few empty seats, 
and she went over and sat down and said, '1s it 
okay if I join you?" and they said, "Yes.• And 
every single seat in that lunchroom filled, and 
there was an empty seat on either side of my 
friend. The last person that came into the dining 
hall sat next to my friend and sat with her back 
to her. Nobody spoke with this adult woman at a 
luncheon of educators. It is no wonder a little 6 
or 6 year old is insecure in our school systems, 
because this is how the educators act. 

There are tests, there are exams. You have to 
pass the board to be a lawyer, you have to pass 

school to celebrate each child?· If one-does that, it ·•· your'CPA ;exam ·to· be· an-accountant, but any­
not only picks up the minority child, but it picks body can be a teacher. Sometimes wanting to be 
up every child. isn't enough, and perhaps we need to look at who 

MR. HENDERSON: I think any time you 
show appreciation in someone you're valuing 

14 Marchelewicz testimony, Burli,..ion Tranxript, pp. 201-that person. The problem stems from who's 
12. 
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is going into education and what is in their heart 
and what they plan on doing. 

We had another African American family in 
my community, and their kids were in the school 
system with me. The 13-year-old boy was hit by 
a car on his bike in his middle-class white neigh­
borhood, and the vehicle did not stop. His 
younger brother told me the story. Of course, 
this black family felt that it was because of the 
color of their skin that this vehicle didn't stop, 
and nothing you could say to them would change 
that. So I went to one of his team teachers and 
explained the situation. I asked his teachers to 
take it easy on him because his brother got hit 
by a car and is having a hard time. And the 
teacher said, "He doesn't think it's because he's 
black, does he?" And I said, "Doesn't matter. If 
that's your reaction, why shouldn't he think it's 
because he's black?" 

The parents that presented their stories to 
the Advisory Committee asked, "What can they 
do?" I've been on the superintendent's Multicul­
tural Diversity Committee for 4 years. It was 
started partly because there were hate letters 
written to black and Jewish kids in their lockers 
at school. The parents were outraged and gath­
ered and wanted something to be done. And my 
friend that had been shunned at the luncheon 
and was shunned by her coworkers, myself, and 
several other people served on this committee. 
We were there for 4 years and met once a month. 
It has more or less folded. We started a commit­
tee, but the superintendent didn't really like how 
that committee was heading, so he said he was 
going to have a Multicultural Diversity Commit­
tee meeting. My friend has moved away, and the 
rest of us were just plain tired of feeling like we 
were accomplishing nothing, spending all this 
time so that it could be said that the community 
had this kind of committee which was a mere 
rubber stamp for the district.. 

What bothers me is that if the University of 
Vermont becomes involved in the problem and 
offers to provide diversity training, the school 
system will make the training mandatory and 
you're going to have .those that respond, ."What .. 
do I have to do that goddamn course for?" I 
know, I've heard it. I don't know how we get to 
them, make them understand the issue, and 
later treat all the kids the same. We need a 
workshop in understanding, not tolerance. I hate 

tolerance. Tolerance is putting up with. Let's 
have workshops and get the teachers involved. 
get the people in here that can explain what the 
minority community is going through. 

DISCUSSION 
:MR. CHENEY: Are you still employed at the 

South Burlington school district? 
MS. MARCHELEWICZ: Yes. I was asked this 

morning, "Are you sure you want to speak?" And 
I said, "I had a job before I came here and I'll 
have a job when I leave." 

:MR. TUCKER: It concerns me that we even 
g.ive credence to that kind of intimidation. 

MS. MARCHELEWICZ: But they do. You 
know they do. But I don't really care. I'm going 
to expect there are 40 staff members at South 
Burlington High School and I know my friend 
didn't have but maybe 5 that were openly 
friend]y. Most people say, "Hi, how are you.• 
They really don't care, but they at least say it. 
But she wasn't even greeted. 

:MR. CHENEY: We hear from the education 
department that everybody has a good heart; 
they just need to be taught. I think you're giving 
us a slightly different message. 

MS. MARCHELEWICZ: When I lived in 
Montpelier I used to get in more trouble over 
there because I'm outspoken. I don't whitewash 
it. We've done enough dancing around and pre­
tending and I see it in the kids. My contact with 
the few African American kids at school is such 
that I have one little guy that comes by me and 
pats me on the head and said, "Nice afro. Mn. 
M," but not everybody is welcoming. I aee the 
new kids when they come to school how long it 
takes them to find a comfortable place to have 
lunch. And I've said to teachers, "How's that kid 
working on your team?'' They respond, "Okay." I 
said, "Well, it doesn't look like it; they're sitting 
there having lunch alone." And the teacher goes 
on eating the lunch, and nothing happens until 
that kid can finally find his or her place and 
connections. 

There are teachers that are very good, and I 
don't.want·to ,say that-.they1re all like that, but 
probably because the educators in the system 
today came out of a teacher core. They've been 
there a long time and they're tired. They don't 
want to do it anymore. This is a real job to them. 
They've lost that feeling of why they went into 
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teaching, and they are burned out. They 
shouldn't be there for 30 and 40 years. The gap 
is too wide between the problems and the ages of 
the kids. 

Leigh Pfenning 211 

I'm a Native American in heritage. 1 am cur­
rently the principal at the North Avenue Chris­
tian School. Mayor Peter Clavelle said very 
clearly that our schools are a place of violence. 
One of his questions was, How can we build an 
environment of respect in our schools? I want to 
tell you up front that education will not elimi­
nate racism. Racism is real but politics will not 
eliminate racism. Racism is an issue of the 
heart. And here we're not only dealing with ra­
cism involving African Americans, we're dealing 
with racism involving Asians, Hispanics, and 
every other person or group that there is. 

Carol Ode• 
Efforts to improve school cuniculum 
I come here tonight to speak as an individual. 
There is no place for hate and prejudice in our 
country. We all must work to make the basic· 
tenets set out in the United States Constitution 
a reality. Our dreams, our ideals must become 
real. Our Nation stands for equal opportunity for 
all. Our public schools, public education, stands 
for equal educational opportunity for all. To the 
extent that we as a public school system and our 
Nation fall short, and we do, we must continue 
to improve. 

This forum is one of several on race I have 
attended. The experience hearing people today 
has been humbling but also inspiring. The in­
credible strength, humor, idealism, caring of the 
children who have spoken and of the adults who 
have spoken. The voices have been full of an­
guish and anger but also of love and hope. We 
expect more of our country and for our lives in • 
this country, and we should. 1 personally will 
continue to work hard, try again, and try harder. 

DISCUSSION 
MR. HOFF: Based on what ycnr heard at this· 

forum has that 111nbanced your awareness of ra­
cism within the Burlington public school system 

111 Pfenning teatimony, Burlington Transcript, pp. 290-94. 
• Ode testimony, Burlington Transcript, pp. 294-305. 

or is this something that you already were well 
aware of? 

MS. ODE: Yes. 
MR. HOFF: Do you have a systematic ap­

proach to this within the school board? 
MS. ODE: We do. One of our strategic plan­

ning goals is around diversity, and we have been 
working on it in many areas to improve how our 
district handles issues around racism, ageism, 
and sexism, and we have a definition of diversity 
that is fairly all-encompassing.27 We have just 
hired an equity diversity coordinator for the dis­
trict and are continuing to look at our curricu­
lum. We are trying to increase the pool of appli­
cants for positions in the Burlington school sys­
tem, and we have. Since our strategic plan was 
implemented 3 years ago, I believe we've hired 
eight or nine people of color in the district. And 
•we're working with community and with family 
involvement. We're trying to meet the individual 
needs of all atudents, and it's a very over­
whelming task but one that we continue to work 
at. 

On the State level. the National Association 
of State Boards of Education has as one of ita 
foremost goals the appreciation and awarenesa 
of diversity, and that ia one of the goals that is 
also embraced by the State Board of Education. 

MR. HOFF: Well, two people in the State De­
partment of Education testified about what a 
difficult job theirs was and the fact that there 
wasn't sufficient funding for them to do a whole 
lot more than they're doing now. Would you be 
supportive of the department's seeking a higher 
appropriation in that area? 

27 The school district's definition of diversity/policy ia as 
fullows: Our school community is a living orpniam com• 
posed of diverse members. The appreciation of thia divenity 
can and ahould be one of thoae values which ia ahared by 
members of our achoo) community. Each member muat be 
free from fear, pain, and oppression in order to function fully 
as an individual and to enable each individual, u well u 
the community as a whole, to reach its full potential.. Failure 
to fully aee and appreciate othen for any reuon-race, pn-

_dea:. culture, nationality,.laquap, ethnicity, "ligi.on. n,ie, 
viewpoint, age, health, eexual preference, phyaical differ. 
encea, or aocio-economic backcround-reaults in the diminu­
tion of the whole and prevents ua from ful6llinc our miuioD: 
The Burlington Board or School Commiuionen bu u ita 
million, throuch its achools and its •~ to educate nu­
dents for the preaent and to prepare them to participate in. 
influence, and ahape the future. 
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MS. ODE: I think functing is critical on the 
local level. 

MR. TUCKER: Do you think some kind of 
mechanism could be put into place that parents 
would have access to those people who represent 
them and not just hear what happened from the 
adroinist"ration? 

MS. ODE: We do have a harassment policy in 
the district and individual complaints do go 
through the procedure that's set out that backs 
that policy up. School board members don't fol• 
low each of the complaints that come in, but we 
are completely accessible to the public via tele­
phone and not just board meetings and so forth. 
We live in the community and people can and do 
contact us. What we would probably tell people, 
however, is that we will absolutely listen and 
help in any way we can to make sure that they 
go through the procedure that's in effect so that 
appropriate steps can be taken. • 

MR. CHENEY: Could you tell me how you 
rate your school system in terms of dealing with 
racism? What's your personal assessment of how 
that job is being done? 

MS. ODE: I don't have a :ranking for you. But 
i think it is something that over the past 5 years 
has become a critical issue in the school system, 
and it's something that the board, community 
members, teachers, and administi:ators have 
spent time on through the strategic planning 
process over the past 3 years. Quite a bit of time 
has been spent on this effort, and I would have 
to say that we are growing in our understanding 
and continuing to work to make things better. 

MS. SA'UDEK: One of the things that was 
absent was any attention to the overall curr:icu-
lum. 

MS. ODE: Our curriculum director is working 
on that. 

MS. SAUDEK: Is it a high priority? 
MS. ODE: Yes, it is. .Another thing I didn't 

mention was teacher education. We've had Mer-
ryn Rutledge of the Vermont Equity Project do 
work on awareness of diversity issues in litera-
ture. It is something we're working on. It is a 

an external process which is imposed upon sys-
tems. 

MS. ODE: The harassment policy? No. The 
State has mandated that we have harassment 
policies, but then we work on how our district's 
policy should look. It includes everything it 
needs to under State law, and it is tailored to 
meet our needs and is always changing. The 
school board actually writes the policy, and we 
hear comments over time about how it's work­
ing. For instance, parents have complained that 
they don't know what has happened to a par­
ticular student whom they feel has violated our 
policy. Even though the.student has been appro­
priately disciplined, that student is protected by 
laws regarding student confidentiality. Actions 
taken by the administration can't be divulged. 
So, as a board, we ask ourselves, how we can 
.communicate better than in the past that proce­
dures have been followed yet protect student 
confidentiality. So you start out with a policy 
written a particular way and then you get com­
ments, complaints, and questions about how it's 
working, and then you further, tailor it t:o meet 
your districts' needs. 

BIii Henington • 
Methods schools can employ to foster greater 
tolerance and respect for minority student concerns 
I'm a licensed clinical aocial worker and hold the 
position of support services counselor at the 
Rutland Middle School. We are a 7th and 8th 
grade school with a student enrollment of 400. 
We presently have 15 minority students in our 
school. Last year we had 12 minority student&. 
Less than 4 percent of our student body are mi­
nority students. I have worked in the Rutland 
public school system for 9 years. My perception 
of racial harassment in our school is that there is 
not a smoldering problem in need of immediate 
attention. 

On January 20, 1997, the principal at our 
school invited all parents of minority children t:o 
attend a roundtable discussion about multicul­
turalism and the issues that confront minority 

high priority •. .lt's.a.lot.of.work.J:o..do because ... children.in•the··public ·achoo}. One-third of the 
t.extbooks come as textbooks come, and literature parents of our minority students (which would 
that people have read for years hasn't always be four) attended this forum and did not o:preu 
spoken to all of us who have been reacting it. concern about racial harassment. They instead 

DR. HAND: We've been talking about har­
assment policies, ways to deal with this. This is 

11 Herrinrton teatimony, Rutland Tran.script, pp. 193-207. 
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expressed concem that we did not offer more 
multicultural experiences for students at our 
school They felt that prejudice was alive and 
well in Rutland even though it might not overtly 
rear its ugly head in the form of racial harass­
ment in the schools. If our school provided more 
multicultural experiences for students, then 
there might be better understanding, apprecia­
tion, and sensitivity to multicultural issues. 

I recently had an opportunity to speak with 
12 of our 15 minority students. They did not feel 
that racial harassment was a problem in our 
school. One student had experienced racial har­
assment in 6th grade and when brought to the 
attention of the Administrator this student felt it 
was resolved. I am aware of an African Ameri­
can student last year who was a recipient on 
several occasions of racial slurs in the heat of 
verbal disputes with peers. These incidents were 
immediately addressed by our school ,adminis­
trator. Has racial harassment occurred in our 
school? Yes. Is it a smoldering problem that 
needs immediate attention? I say no. I am more 
concemed with the general lack of empathy that 
many of our students have for each other no 
matter what their ethnic background. Many stu­
dents seem to have little tolerance for individual 
differences, whether it is height, weight, socio­
economic standing, religious affiliation, sexual 
orientation, or ethnicity. 

I recently had a group of 25 peer leaders from 
the Rutland High School come to our school and 
present an interactive program to all of our 7th 
graders about appreciating individual differ-
ences. We plan to follow this program up with a 
peer mediation initiative that utilizes high 
school students trained in conflict resolution to 
mediate middle school conflicts. 

The Rutland city school district has a har-
assment policy that was approved on July 25, 
1995, and is included in its entirety in the Rut-
land Middle School Handbook. which is distrib-
uted to every student in our school at the begin-
Ding of each school year. This policy has also 
been distributed to all school personnel and is 

the Rutland Middle School Family Handbook 
with their students. 

It is my belief that all forms of harassment 
are a smoldering problem in the public schools 
which need immediate attention. We need to 
provide training opportunities for students and 
staff' that reduces prejudicial behavior. All of us 
carry some unintentional prejudices from early 
experiences in learning. These prejudices will 
only be reduced through training by a culturally 
diverse group of trainers. 

Approximately 4 years ago, the Mt. Elmore 
Institute provided a sexual harassment work­
shop for all Rutland city school staff'. This was a 
very informative and sensitizing experience. It 
would be very timely for our students and staff' 
to participate in some diversity training that 
moves beyond the legal response to harasament 
and attempts to reduce prejudices through 
awarenese and empathy-building activities. 

I applaud the time and effort of the Vermont 
Advisory Committee in organizing and facilitat­
ing these forums. I hope that your report and 
recommendations will indicate the communities 
and echoole in Vermont need to develop plans 
and strategies to reduce all forms of haraaaing 
behavior and not limit your concerns solely to 
racial harassment. 

DISCUSSION 
MR. CHENEY: Bill, you must have a unique 

school because the testimony is in variance with 
statements that people have brought to us quite 
forcefully, problems witp minority students in 
the schools. You're also the only staff' person 
that's come before us to give us this information. 

DR. HAND: When you say there's no smol-
dering problem but there are isolated incidents, 
how are they reported to you? How are you 
aware of them? 

MR. HERRINGTON: The incidents that have 
come to our attention have either been obaerved 
by our staff' or have been reported by other stu• 
dents. And I guess my feeling whether it's racial 
harassment or any other form of harassment is 

posted in a conspicuous location in our.main of----,that we-need·to do an-educational piece and try 
fi~. ~ ye~ the principal personally discussed 
this policy with the whole student body. We have 
not ma~e anr wh?1e. school public comments 
about this policy this year ~ther than enco~ge 
and expect all teacher adVlBOry staff to reVIew 

to build empathy on the part of the perpetrator 
towards this kind of harassment. So I can't say 
that in all cases, or even in the majority ofcases. 
there will be a suspension or some other atronc 
disciplinary response. It's more trying to get the 
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perpetrator to understand what it's like for the 
victim to experience this kind of behavior. 

DR. HAND: But you don't think there's any 
inhibitions in reporting these incidents? 

MR. HERRINGTON: I don't believe so. 
MS. ELMER: Do you feel that the children 

that you can so easily identify feel that your 
school is a safe environment? What we've heard 
from countless parents and students is not only 
is the school not a safe environment but parents 
are having to give up jobs to go into the schools 
to monitor on a regular basis what's happening. 
Clearly that's not your experience, but can you 
address that at all? 

MR. HERRINGTON: I guess it's not my expe­
rience specifically around racial issues. What I'm 
concerned about is harassment in general. Be­
fore I left today, almost the last period of the day 
I bad an obese student who's very sensitive 
about his weight who had been harassed about 
bis weight, and those kinds of things happen 
often and frequently. So it's not just racial har­
assment. I'm just concem.ed the lack of empathy 
the kids have for each other. 

MR. TUCKER: We heard from a person that 
bullying leads into the kind of behavior that 
children can end up being racially harassed. If 
they do sexuality, they will do another ism. We 
just happen to be speciaJizing in racial harass­
ment because of the uprise of this over the Ver­
mont school systems, and it hasn't been ap­
proached. Also, it's clear to us from what's been 
told to us that not a lot of children of color feel 
comfortable about going and eaying something to 
school officials. 

MR. HERRINGTON: I can only tell you my 
perspective. When I spoke with these students, I 
told them that I was going to be coming here. I 
said, folks, this panel really needs to hear what 
life is like for you in these schools. One African 
American student spoke about an incident dur-
ing a game against another school. As the play-
ers were walking down, they were shaking 
hands and one student did not want to shake 
with him. When I asked him other experiences 

MR. CHENEY: Do you know of anybody else 
in the school system that was going to come to 
this forum to talk about the issue of racial bar· 
assment in schools? 

MR. HERRINGTON: I knew several other 
people that were approached, and I hate to 
speak for other people, but I think what I was 
hearing was that people, at least within our 
school system, felt more concern about sexual 
orientation and harassment. We do have con­
cerns about a variety of different forms of har­
assment but did not feel that racial harassment 
was a major issue or concern. 

MR. TUCKER: Well. schools must be changed 
in Rutland because when I went to school people 
who bullied bullied, and they bullied an enor­
mous amount of groups. Also, I know as a parent 
of three children of color that they're not going to 
feel comfortable about telling everybody about 
the stuff that happens to them. In the work that 
I do in this State, I get a lot of calls from Rut­
land. I find it hard to believe that a school in 
Vermont today is a sanctuary for a child of color 
when he's getting it from all these other places. 
There is no minor iaaue for kids when they're 
attacked racially. There are no isolated inci• 
dents. 

DR. GUSTAFSON: In reprds to the parents 
that were concem.ed about the curriculum rather 
than specific incidents, do you know if there 
were ever changes made to the curriculum? Did 
that become a project of the school? 

MR. HERRINGTON: The principal at that 
particular time had wanted to keep this par• 
ticular committee going. He since has left. We 
have a new principal. Although I'm a counselor 
there and I was at that forum, I must say that it 
has not continued. 

Summary 
Teachers, school Administrators, and support 
personnel provided an overview of racial har­
assment in the pubic school system. They de­
scribed teachers' and .11drninist,rators' denial of 
the existence of a problem and a failure t.o take 

that he's had in our. school he was unable. to .ar• -.. appropriate. steps -to ~maintain a bias-free envi• 
ticulate. And whether that's because my color is 
a barrier to him, I'm not sure, but I really was 
not hearing from these kids that racial issues 
were making it an unsafe place for them to come 
to school. 

ronment in the schools. They allege these factors 
contributed to racially hostile learning environ­
ments. They cited a specific incident of hate mail 
directed to African American and Jewish stu­
dents, and discussed the use of inappropriate 
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curriculum material and general insensitivity to 
minority student safety concerns. 

One school counselor believed that all forms 
of harassment have occurred in his and other 
public schools. Although this counselor did not 
know of particular incidents of racial harass­
ment in bis school, he acknowledged that racism 
existed in bis community. He also noted that he 
did not view harassment as a problem in need of 
immediate attention. Despite this belief, he in­
formed the Committee that his school has insti• 
tuted multicultural roundtable discussions with 
students and a peer mediation program designed 
to reduce prejudicial behavior. The panelists 
identified other solutions, such as the need to 
celebrate diversity, the development of multicul­
tural learning materials, recruitment and hiring 
of teachers and administrators of diverse races 
and back.grounds, and the presence of diversity 
specialists in each school. The panelists gener­
ally agreed on the need to increase staff' ac­
countability through the use of mandatory mul­
ticultural training for school personnel and State 
assessment of schools' anti.harassment efforts. 

Community Organizations, 
the University of Vennont, and the 
Vennont Department of Corrections 
Various community organization representatives 
working with racial harassment issues in public 
and private segments of Vermont communities 
shared with the Advisory Committee their per-
ceptions of the problem. The panelists described 
the overall racial climate in Vermont institu-
tions, including elementary and secondary 
schools and institutes of higher education. Pan• 
elists also noted improvements that could be 
made to current teacher training and recertifica-
tion to help teachers and administrators better 
deal with issues of racism and harassment. Two 
advocacy organization representatives described 
prospective programs that would use both teach-
ers and students to address racial harassment in 
schools. 

One panelist offered her insights into the 
challenges.facing.parents-who adopted children 
outside their race. In addition, a diversity model 
used to train correction officers and inmates was 
introduced. That program has the potential to be 
offered to the State's public school system. Fi-

nally, the perspective of a reporter who has cov­
ered racial incidents in Vermont is included. 

Table 2.3 

Community and Advocacy Organization 
Rept'Nentatives 

Prnenter Organization 
Donald Grinde director of Alana Studies, University 

of Vermont, professor of 
American Indian History 

JosephGainza field secretary, American Friends 
Service Committee 

Menyn RuUedge president, ReVisions Consulting: 
diredor and founder of the 
Vermont Equity Project 

David Shiman professor, University of Vermont. 
College of Education-Social Services 

HeatherClarkl training coordinator, Vermont 
Jay Simmons Department of Corrections 

ToryRhodin dinical social worker, Casey Family 
Services (post adoption program) 

Shay Totten editor, Vennont Times 
Aundrie Robinson Round Table of Unity 

Donald Grinde a 
Institutional racism 
Over the past 3 years I've set up an academic 
program that focuses on race and racism and the 
history of people of color in the United States. 
The purpose has been to offer students a cur• 
riculum that deals with race and solutions about 
race in America, provide support to State and 
local communities and institutions, and share 
our resources with institutions that need this 
knowledge. 

My perspective is that racism invents and 
reinvents itself over and over again. That's how 
it persists. It's like a virus which emerges in a 
different form and takes on different dimensions 
every generation. Institutions need a proactive 
response to racism so they can stop replicating 

. racism .and• buying into its new forms because 
always the new inventions appear to be DOD• 

racist. Everybody is always sure that racism ex• 

29 Grinde t.eatimony, Burlington Traut:ripl, pp. 90-lCM. Mr. 
Grinde preeented testimony to the Committee which is pre. 
aented in app. 10. 
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isted 25 years ago. It's important to realize that 
problems we see in the schools are Aimilar to the 
problems in the university. We've also had white 
students harassing faculty of color, so it's not 
just student to student. 

One of the things the university can do is 
teacher training. We need the State to mandate 
courses on racial sensitivity for teacher training 
and certification. We need to examine what 
those courses will be about in consultation with 
university faculty, Vermont State Board of Edu­
cation, the Advisory Committee, and the Human 
Rights Commission and set up exactly what the 
institution of public education needs in the State 
of Vermont. We need everybody to take owner­
ship. We need school 11dminist;rators, teachers, 
parents, and people that train teachers at the 
university to buy into this as a societal problem 
that needs to be addressed. This training should 
be followed by additional workshOPs where we 
take a long, hard look at how we train our sch90l 
sdministrators about race and ask what re­
sources do we have and how can we train them 
so that incidents of harassment can be mitigated 
and prevented. 

One of the problems that I found dealing with 
race in Vermont is often there's a denial that, 
"We don't have those problems here or they're so 
minimal that they're incidental." And as long as 
we have that kind of denial, we don't have peo­
ple buying into the solution or recognizing that 
there is a problem. Race becomes something that 
is episodic, incidental. and unusual, because the 
norm is kind of an aracial society. That's simply 
not true as testimony today and the experience 
of people of color, as well as the experience of 
whites too, in this matter testifies over and over 
again. 

• There must be an acceptance that Vermont is 
becoming a much more diverse place and that in 
reality sometimes the racial problems actually 
complicate themselves. That doesn't mean that 
we should give up on this, but we should realize 
that with diversity you go from talking about 
what you ought to do to actually doing diversity. 
And rather. than.speaking. the good talk and no- . 
ble ideas, suddenly you are confronted with peo­
ple of color in the classroom as your colleagues. 
It's quite different to say we ought to be diverse 
than when we are. And I think sometimes that's 
a problem in the public schools too. You want to 

talk a noble ideal, but implementing it is a com­
pletely different step than giving lipservice. 

Those are some of the things the university 
can offer. Over the last 3 years I have strived to 
hire at least six or eight faculty of color for the 
sociology, history, and religion and other de­
partments that conduct research and have in­
sight into race and racism in America. We also 
have whites that are committed to this problem. 
Without the white community and leadership 
buying into this dilemma as a real problem, of­
ten training about race and racism is merely 
people of color standing up and complaining 
while others sit and listen and then go home. We -
need more specific programs and cooperation at 
all levels to address these problems. 

DISCUSSION 
MR. CHENEY: Say you had the floor with the 

State Board of Education, what recommenda­
tions would you make from what you've heard 
today? 

MR. GRINDE: The Department of Education 
should make recommendations about traminc 
teachers about issues of race and racism. The 
Vermont State colleges and the university 
should be brought into that discussion. We're 
beginning to attempt that in the university's 
school of education with various courses on race 
and racism. 

MR. CHENEY: Is your curriculum for the 
university or would it be suitable for elementary 
and secondary teachers? 

MR. GRINDE: If it's suitable for teachers 
that are being trained to be elementary school 
teachers, then certainly similar curriculum could 
be given to existing teachers and administrators 
that are coming back for their master's degree or 
recertification. To address issues unique to Ver­
mont, we could have peOPle from the school of 
education and the State Department of Educa­
tion to describe things that happen in our 
schools and ways to effectively deal with them. 

One of the things that is important is for the 
university to hire more peaple in this area. We 
·have a-,need-.,within ·the ·university. and now 
we're hearing that there's a great need in the 
State. Perhaps the university can be called in to 
help in that. If that's going to happen, then re­
sources need to be made available·. Certainly this 
problem is something that hapefully the univer-
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sity through its faculty and its expertise can at 
least be a partner in the solution. 

DR. JOHNSON: Do you see the university 
spearheading research for the school system? 

MR. GRINDE: Color is the number one prob­
lem of the 20th century. Dealing with racial ten­
sion and with racism is and remains extremely 
important. The problems change or redefine 
themselves over time, and part of studying ra­
cism is we must be aware of how racism 
changes. Certainly there have been people in the 
State that have begun to study racism and more 
needs to be done. Secondly, people with anti.ra­
cism expertise within the university can work 
with school administrators and the State De­
partment of Education to develop a program that 
fits their needs and identifies the problems and 
approaches or solutions that can be developed. 
What's needed is a community-based situation 
where you talk, not just with academics, with 
school administT-ators, but with parents and 
hammer out something that everyone can work 
with. 

Joseph Gainza • 
Prospective solutions to eliminate racism in 
American communities 
The American Friends Service Committee is 
concerned with the world as it is and as it ought 
to be. Fundamental beliefs in the individual, 
seeing the divine in each person, and in the need 
for peace and justice guide our activities. AFSC 
is dedicated to nonviolence, opposing both the 
overt violence of war and the covert violence that 
erodes the human spirit through deprivation and 
indifference. What I will say here today is not 
new to any of you. My intention is to put on rec­
ord the larger context in which racial harass­
ment in Vermont schools, indeed in schools 
across the Nation, occurs. Racism is pervasive in 
the United States. President Clinton has called 
it one of our most enduring and far-reaching so­
cial ills. But racism is not simply a matter of in­
dividual bias or discriminatory action. Racism is 
systemic denial of their full human rights to 
categories ofpeople based on their race~ 

What exists in our country, what we call ra­
cism, is social, economic, and political oppres­
sion. It has historic roots, serves certain mem-

30 Gainza testimony, Burlinp,n Transeript, pp. 104-14. 

bers of our society, and pervades every aspect of 
relations between black and white Americans. 
American racism is the multifaceted oppression 
of black Americans by white Americans who 
wield power. There can be no such thing as re­
verse racism. The power imbalance is decidedly 
in one direction. 

Racism is not the only form of oppreasion 
which disfigures the American dream. Sexism, 
classism, homophobia, ablism, to name a few, 
not only oppress people who are not black but 
also feed and maintain a racially hostile envi­
ronment. Today we see a growing gap between 
the extremely rich and the rest of us. To main­
tain this imbalance of power and privilege, his­
torical antagonisms between races, men and 
women. gay and straight. citizens, and immi­
grants and others must be fanned into flame. 

As the economic pie is divided even more 
unequally between the owners of capital and the 
working majority of Americans, struggles to ae­
cure a private safety net exacerbate the misun­
derstandings and fear asaociated with the issue 
of difference. In this context, -while neceaaary, 
efforts to combat individual acts of bigotry will 
serve to suppreu the boiling discontent which 
underlies them. 

I ask you to use the special platform which is 
available to you to call attention to oppression in 
the U.S. in all its forms, economic, social, politi­
cal, and racial. Only when we name and remove 
the root causes of racism which are found in 
these other faces of oppression coupled with the 
idea of zero tolerance of racial harassment. a 
steady diminishment of acts of hatred and big­
otry in our schools will occur. 

Help Increase the Peace Project. What the 
American Friends Service Committee is offering 
in the State is a program called "Help Increase 
the Peace." The program consists of a series of 
interactive exercises that work with people on 
issues of prejudice reduction, community build­
ing, and nonviolent conflict resolution. We try t.o 
engage students at the level of their experience 
about how they perceive themselves and how 
they ~perceive • people who· are different from 
themselves and to engage them in ideas about 
how they might be able to lower the intensity of 
anger and misunderstanding that sometimea 
happens when people who have different back­
grounds. different ethnic or racial backgrounds 
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come t.ogether in a school setting. What Ameri­ Merryn Rutledge 21 

Use of inappropriate curriculum and itscan Friends tries t.o do, in not only cases of racial 
relation to racial harassment, Need for teacherharassment in schools but in the broader com­

munity, is t.o bring people t.ogether in a comfort­ training on recognizing prejudice 

able environment so that they can begin t.o see Today I'll focus on course units, materials, and 
each other as individu.als, share each other's sto­ pedagogy to give you a picture of what Vermont 
ries, and begin t.o see that the fear that they teachers are doing in their classrooms. What I 
have developed is based on nothing other than see in Vermont mirrors what I have seen as I 
fear itself. have worked with teachers all over New Eng­

land. Vermont classrooms show glaring omis­
DISCUSSION sions and damaging images of women and men 

DR. JOHNSON: Is there some way that you of color. Some Vermont teachers are creating 
have t.o determine how effective your "Help In­ wonderful e:umples of inclusive antiracist cur­
crease the Peace" activities are as they go for­ riculum. 
ward int.o these various problem areas? 

MR. GAINZA: Help Increase the Peace has DISCUSSION 
been running in other parts of the country for MR. CHENEY: I'm interested in impact and 
longer than it has here in Vermont. Here are two results/changes that you have brought about. • 
examples: In Syracuse, New York. where we MS. RUTLEDGE: The reason I describe both 
have a program going for the last 7 years where parts of the picture was to suggest that the re­
young people take action around these issues, sult.s are immediate in the changed perspective 
they have set up committees within the schools and behavior of the teachers (see appendix 7). 
that young people run and address issues of ra• COMMITrEE QUESTION:32 What's happen-
cial harassment and violence. ing in the schools when you do this? What kind 

In western Massachusetts, members of the . of impact over time on the children? 
Cambodian American community have begun to MS. RUTLEDGE: It takes about a third of 
address issues of police harassment for minori• the total stafl' in my view in order to make any 
ties. These are young people who go through this kind of impact beyond the individual teacher's 
workshop and begin t.o find language and skills interest in the topic. I think it's immeasurable 
to address these issues in nonviolent ways. when the children begin to see that their lives 
These young people have been accused of being are no longer tokenized, marginalized, excluded, 
gang members and inciting violence in the demeaned. White children begin to understand 
schools. They are learning ways to. respond that that multicultural education is not about the 
doesn't heighten the level of anger and distnist. other; it's an integral. systemic change in the 

MR. CHENEY: Have you tried to share cur- way every teacher does business. 
riculum with educators, people from the univer- MR. CHENEY: How often do you present this 
sity, or State Department of Education officials in Vermont schools? 
to develop something that would be useful? MS. RUTLEDGE: For 4 years I have worked 

MR. GAINZA: Not with the department itself. with teachers in Burlington, about one in m in 
I've been approaching individual schools, but I'd the whole district, each for a whole year or an 
be very open to that. I have worked some with intensive semester. In addition, I have given 
the Vermont antiracism action team, and we did workshops and conferences in the Rochester, 
a 2-hour workshop on trying to come to a clear Vermont. school district and run a year-long 
understanding of what racial prejudice means in Humanities Council project in South Burlington. 
school settings and in society. I also did a work- I've talked with the School Development Inati­
shop in the Brattleboro Union High-School on •·. -tutes at the University of Vermont. They're not 
their diversity days, which tried to come to the interested in what I have to offer. Trinity Col· 
same understandings among student.a. 

a1 Rutledp t.aetimony, Burlington Tronacript, pp. 212-26. 
• Questiona by two Committee memben have been com­
bined. 
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lege has been rather hospitable, I must say. The 
school districts have been hospitable to the ex­
tent I could interest teachers in doing this work. 

MR. CHENEY: You're attacking the whole 
textbook' system too. Are they inherently biased 
in the deficiencies that you've noted? 

MS. RUTLEDGE: Yes. And because those 
systems are in place, and they're going to be in 
place for a long time, children have to be taught 
to see and X-ray the cultural systems that we're 
in the middle of. 

MR. CHENEY: I'm still seeking for an under­
standing of how often you get in the schools, how 
often you get to make your presentation. 

MS. RUTLEDGE: In Burlington I am begin­
ning the fourth year of a semester-long cycle of 
seminars for teachers. 

MR. CHENEY: Have you been in other school 
systems? 

MS. RUTLEDGE: I have given shorter work­
shops, but not with the opportunity to work for 
the long period of time that it takes to make sub­
stantial change. I'd like to add a kind of pr&­
scription for what the kinds of units that teach­
ers have to understand in order to really begin to 
get the whole picture: Teachers need frame­
works for how to evaluate materials. There are 
teachers aplenty in Vermont who have taken 
this or that stray course at one of the Vermont 
college systems. There's very little work in sys­
temic racism. Teachers need to see that periodic 
celebrations of diversity, like diversity days 
which so many schools brag about, are superfi­
cial when they're not accompanied by curricular 
attention. Teachers need to know how to recog­
nize the dynamics of prejudice when course units 
and materials marginalize and make mere to­
kens of peoples of color. Teachers need frame• 
works and practical tools, not just theory, which 
allow teachers to systematically integrate the 
lives of women and men of color, white women, 
and others into the curriculum. When teachers 
merely add to curriculum "recipes" a few women 
or a few black people "and stir," which is often 
the approach, without revising core assump­
tions, the curriculum keeps its· white EUl'opean 
norms. 

Teachers need tools and ideas for teaching 
even very young children about race, gender, 
culture, and stereotyping. The Vermont Equity 
Project has seen teachers being very successful 

with children 88 young 88 5-years-old in kinder­
garten. 

And, finally, teachers need education about 
the connection between curriculum and harass­
ment in the hallways and on playgrounds. Chil­
dren get mixed messages in Vermont schools 
with very responsible programs taught by guid­
ance cou.naelora on harassment. These programs 
are diminished when students walk into the 
classroom and their curriculum excludes people 
of color and demeans them. It is further dimin­
ished whenever students leave the classroom 
and perpetuate more harassment. 

David Shlman a 
Lack ofinstitutional commitment to add1Bss 
harassment issues, Pressrvice teacher training 
I teach at the University of Vermont in the Col­
lege of Education and Social Services. I've been 
there for apprcmmately 25 years. I also have a 2-
year-old child who is biracial and I anticipate 
that she will encounter some of the issues that 
the Committee heard yesterday in Burlington. 

We can regard students who call others de­
rogatory names or persons who put buming 
crosaes on someone's lawn as sick. However, 
when we do this it leads us away from looking at 
our institutions and to only blaming bad people. 
I think that's a problem that we have to look at 
when we look at the institutional context that 
allows or condones racial harassment. 

Sonia Nieto, in her book Affirming Di:uersity, 
writes that, "The ruckus of inm.vidual racism 
obscures the silence of institutional racisD;l.• And 
I think it's a very powerful statement because it 
looks at the role of our schools in constructing 
and contributing to the construction of racists, 
and the role our schools can play to change it. 
I'm working with student teachers right now and 
doing seminars. I have observed a lack of ur­
gency to address the question of race in Vermont 
among many of the white student teachers and 
students I work with. I have found lately an UD• 
patience with the demands being made on them 
by others whose voices have not been heard in 
thepaat. 

In many other communities a.round the State, 
high schools have a diversity day or a diversity 
week. Not that that's all they do, but it's a ahow-

13 Shiman t.eatimony, Butland Tranacnpt, pp. 136-11. 
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case week. As an example of the level of institu­
tional commitment around this issue at one in­
stitution. the students in the multicultural club 
at South Burlington have to raise all the money 
for the event. The school has not contributed in 
the last 2 or 3 years even though the issue has 
been raised by the diversity committee. What is 
that saying to other students about how much 
the institution values all students' learning 
about this when no support has been given? 
Some support has been given in the form of fac. 
ulty working with the club, but almost nothing 
else. 

There is a nice policy statement that's part of 
the strategic plan, and I would say not very 
much is going on, particularly in the areas of 
staff development, recruitment, and curriculum 
change. I can hit three or four different areas 
that I think are not just unique to South Bur­
lington. Very little has been done in the State 
with respect to hiring people of color to teach in 
schools. And invariably if there is a hiring effort. 
it's to hire somebody to teach African American 
history as if that's all people of color can do. I 
think there's sort of an association there that's 
not a healthy one. A number of times I've heard 
that African Americans don't like to be in Ver• 
mont because it's too cold or there isn't a critical 
mass in the community. I think it's just our ex• 
cuses for lack of commitment and effort on our 
part. I think we all need to see diverse faces in 
front of us. Our teachers and every student need 
that sort of thing. This an area that needs to be 
addressed in every district in the State. 

DISCUSSION 
MR. CHENEY: We've heard recommenda­

tions that there be either in-service training or 
requirements for recertification that there be 
training. Does the College of Education have 
anything to offer? 

MR. SHIMAN: I think we have developed a 
variety of very good courses that deal with di­
versity. It's just how do we help our students 
who are generally students of relative privilege 
feel this. A workshop and·a,course.doesn't do·it. 
It must be woven into the fabric of their educa­
tion. A diversity day in a high school is a nice 
thing, but it doesn't do anything unless it is ac­
companied by sustained staff development for 
faculty and woven into curriculum courses. 

MR. CHENEY: What's your impression of the 
South Burlington curriculum? 

MR. SIDMAN: I was chair of the Social 
Studies Review Committee. They are revising 
the whole social studies curriculum. I don't know 
what the new one's going to be like, but they 
have an elective course in black history. I have 
not in my analyais seen the experience of people 
of color woven into the curriculum. 

MR. CHENEY: What about stereotypes of 
Native Americans or others? 

MR. SHIMAN: I think there's been more of 
an effort to address some of that in curriculum. 
What's happened is that issues of racism· and 
diversity in curriculum almost always get asso­
ciated with social studies. That's a real copout 
for other people because they don't include it in 
their particular curriculum. The danger is only 
seeing it as a curriculum response, rather than 
recognizing that diversity concerns need to be 
woven into every aspect of the school experience. 

Some research that I just read recently talks 
about addressing sexual and racial harassment 
in the kinderprten and 1st grade where the is­
sue is more bullying than harassment. As bul­
lying is the precursor to the harassment, we 
should start with antibullying lessons before the 
behavior issue becomes specifically race con­
scious. 

MR. CHENEY: We heard testimony about a 
disciplinary scheme in which the school says if 
two kids are fighting, they'll both be suspended. 
What inevitably happens is the white kids pick 
serially on the black kid so he gets suspended 
five times and five of them get suspended once. 
Have you done anything in your teaching in the 
College of Education about discipline? 

MR. SHIMAN: The methods and human de­
velopment courses do address questions of disci­
pline and strive to relate these to diversity con­
cerns. This must be a sustained focus throughout 
an educator's professional life. 

MR. TUCKER: Since even the worst acboola 
that I've observed (not only in Vermont but in a 
lot of other places) don't have a curriculum on 

;. :racism,s·how. do·you·see -reaching a school com­
munity outside ofthe teachers? 

MR. SHIMAN: I think that the boundary 
lines between school and community need to be 
blurred. We need to find effective ways to help 
people who didn't have a lot of succeas in achoo! 
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as students to feel more comfortable with school 
as parents. The people who have a bad school 
experience, often in the lower socioeconomic 
groups, often people of color, don't want to go 
back to a place that was a bad place for them. 
And somehow we need to bring all people into 
the conversation. There are some organizations 
in· the Burlington area, such as REAP (Race 
Education Action Project) that are trying to 
build bridges. Last year some guidelines from 
the State Department of Education which came 
out included a set of competencies for beginning 
teachers, and in one of the drafts they had 
eliminated a statement that related to teachers' 
commitment to equity. However, the final copy 
does have a competency with respect to that. 
Every institution, particularly the school, needs 
to be actively against racism and sexism, not just 
promoting a tolerance and understanding of dif. 
ferences in a passive curricular sense. 

MR. CHENEY: Since you know these people, 
does it surprise you that not a single superin• 
tendent or principal has volunteered to come 
before this Cnrnmisrrion and talk about solutions 
to the problem? 

MR. SHIMAN: Surprise me, yes. I know some 
people who I feel really care about this problem. 
So it disappoints me. 

MS. ELMER: In South Burlington is there 
any coordination between what you called the 
diverrrity committee and school administrators 
regarding their analysis of antiharassment poli­
cies? 

MR. SHIMAN: The diversity committee ad­
vised the superintendent. Our job was to help in 
getting a principle written into the strategic 
plan. We haven't met in 8 months. When we 
view diversity as a special item, a discrete con­
cem, it never seems to rise up to high enough on 
the "action" list unless there is an incident. If we 
saw it as part of curriculum budget, personnel, 
or staff development, and all other aspects of 
school life, then it would be there all the time. 
"We can't do it now" or "You get to it when you 
can" is the mindset about the way you think 
about issues-around diversity.-Needless to say, I 
haven't been very satisfied with the South Bur­
lington diversity effort. 

DR. HAND: Can you provide a list of superin­
tendents who might be willing to consult with 
the Advisory Committee? 

MR. SHIMAN: That would be really bard. I 
think I could identify some teachers and princi­
pals who would be willing. In terms of superin­
tendents, I would be hard pushed. I know some 
good, concerned people, but that doesn't mean 
anything much is going on in the districts. Bur­
lington is well ahead in terms of developing a 
sustained diversity committee that tried to do 
things such as a needs assessment. 

MS. SAUDEK: What can be done in preserv• 
ice training to get a systemwide solution? Do you 
think work can be done in recertification of 
teachers that can address the issue? 

MR. SHIMAN: In preservice, some are very 
hard to do at the University of Vermont due to 
geographical and demographic reasons. Student 
teachers need experiences working with diverse 
cultures and encounter people other than those 
they grew up with. We need to unpack the cul­
tural baggage and critically e:mmine how we 
explain away why people are poor or why people 
don't succeed. An effort should be made to de­
velop challenging curriculum materials so that 
students look at things from different perspec­
tives. 

MS. SAUDEK: We heard a great deal of tes­
timony from parents of children who were feel• 
ing extraordinarily overburdened and having to 
teach their children's schools how to respond to 
their kids' needs, and having to do it teacher by 
teacher, year by year, ,administrator by 11dminie­
trator to give them the information they needed 
in order to respond appropriately to their chil· 
dren's needs. It would seem to me that part of 
that burden should be home by the teacher 
preparation institutions. 

MR. SHIMAN: Yes. And I think it is. Efforts 
are made to ensure that when a student teacher 
picks books for kids to read in an elementary 
school, or makes decisions how to group kids for 
learning or selects curriculum themes, he or she 
will be thinking about diversity issues. 

MR. TUCKER: I see large amounts of money 
in Vermont being spent going off to Beijing and 
Tokyo, etc. and yet they go past Chinatown and 
•Harlem. It w.ould seem· to me that if you want to 
learn how to teach diverse populations, you 
would be sent to diverse populations in the 
United States rather than in Beijing. An inci• 
dent occurring in a school in San Fnmciaco or 
Harlem will have a greater impact to admiuie-
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trators completing recertification than an inci­
dent in Beijing. 

MR. SHIMAN: I think we need both perspec­
tives. In our teacher preparation program we 
don't send anybody overseas as part of their pro­
fessional program. Most of this type of staff de• 
velopment work is done with present not future 
teachers. The China and Asian studies projects 
have not been for people pursuing licensure. 
These are valuable programs. I think it makes 
them more culturally sensitive teachers. They 
might not focus on what's going on within their 
own communities, but they engage themselves 
and their ethnocentrism when they go overseas. 
This will positively affect their teaching. 

Heather Clark/Jay Simmons M 

Adapting diversity programs used in other 
State agencies to the school setting, 
Vennont Department of Correction approach 
In terms of diversity and training, the Depart­
ment of Corrections seeks to become a better, 
more organized learning organization and make 
better connections with the community as part of 
our restorative justice initiatives and community 
policing. The department considers -the educa­
tional eystem as part of our community. 

In terms of the target audience, one of the 
differences I see between young students and 
corrections staff is their willingneu to partici­
pate in trainings and programs. The most com­
mon phrase we hear in cultural awareneu 
training is "Oh, we don't have diversity in the 
Department of Corrections and so we don't have 
a problem. So, why don't you go away because 
we've got other more important things to deal 
with." The biggest struggle for our department is 
getting people interested, getting them to come 
and listen and participate productively and re­
spectfully in a topic that's value laden. 

Some of our learning objectives around diver­
sity training are about self-awareneu. We 
started asking our staff, Where do you come 
from? How do you see yourself? What kinds of 
things are you proud of and what kinds of things 
are embarrassing? ..We're-having more .succeu 
doing that than we are lecturing them on how 
we define racism, or stereotyping what we think 

34 Clark and Simmons testimony, Rutlal&d Transcript, pp. 
165-80. 

is prejudice. Not that we don't value that, but we 
needed to get dialogue going. 

The project takes a middle to top down ap­
proach. It was based on our highly effective 
needs 88Sessment that identified mostly anecdo­
tal data. Our Agency of Human Services collects 
all of the information around grievances, com­
plaints, hostile work environment grievances. 
Since oftentimes the incidents themselves are 
confidential, the information I get as a trainer is 
that we've identified a problem: Please put to­
gether a curriculum. 

DISCUSSION 
MR. CHENEY: ls your training to keep staff 

from chewing each other up or is it related to the 
inmates? 

MS. CLARK: Both. Our informal needs as­
sessment came from a couple of places. One is 
our changing tJffender population. 

MR. SIMONS: My facility is approximately 
10 percent minority. There was some talk about 
sending teachers to other countries to study cul· 
ture. If you want to send teachers to a place to 
learn about a diverse population, send them to a 
correctional facility. To get our training from our 
central office level down to the officers on the 
blocks, we implement a training that isn't scary 
for people to go to. We get people to talk about 
themselves. That's extremely safe. When I talk 
about myself, what I want to do is find the com­
ponents of their culture so that I become aware 
of why I do the things I do and the behaviors 
that other people see. Now when I see somebody 
different from me, I see myself as the average 
and the norm, and when I see myself as the av­
erage and the norm, then I'm what's right. Look 
at yourself objectively. When they do that, they 
don't see themselves as being right or different, 
they see how am I different from you. That's 
pretty safe; that's not as scary. We then train 
their peers in these techniques and modules, and 
their peers then go and maintain the traininp 
at those levels. We're addre8Sing topics such as 
language that perpetuates stereotypes and how 
-that ,can. be· dangerous. All of these areas we're 
training specific modules and then we recertify 
staff through a set of these modules that their 
peers deliver. 

MS. CLARK: Some of the feedback that we 
get from our participants in these traiDin.ga ia 
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that the most effective learning moment for 
them has been exposure. The kinds of stories I 
hear is, "I grew up in Vermont and I haven't met 
this group of people and I learned the most 
having finally been exposed to this group of peo­
ple or that group." Not only having this exposure 
but putting their foot in their mouth or doing 
something unintentionally inappropriate or 
hurtful and having the person or people they do 
that to be forgiving. 

In our training plan, we try to take away the 
risk, encourage respectful dialogue for the folks 
in the department, increase awareness, and take 
away the fear. It's not an easy task getting them 
interested and enthusiastic about this topic. 
They're afraid of words like diversity, affirma­
tive action, difference in the workplace, EEOC, 
ADA. 

One of the elements of the training plan is 
called the components of culture which is getting 
folks talking about how they see culture, what 
it's made up of. We start with the iceberg exer­
cise: when you look at an iceberg, what do you 
see, you see the tip, you see the behaviors, and 
the clothes people wear, and the things people 
eat and who they hang around with and what 
don't you see? You don't see the attitudes and 
beliefs. 
• MR. TUCKER: So you think this is appropri­

ate for school-aged children? How • wowd you 
monitor it to see that it wowd work? 

MS. CLARK: Well, it's not complicated. The 
key isn't the target audience; it is a confident 
facilitator who tracks where the conversation's 
going and how people are reacting. 

MR. CHENEY: You can do a workshop, but 
how do you sustain it? 

MS. CLARK: When I look at Corrections as a 
learning organization, my feeling is that how I 
measure success is very important to the organi­
zation and to me because really our large objec­
tive is that our staff are respectful of each other 
and respectful to offenders. The sustainability to 
me is recognizing we work in. a place where 
there's potential violence and danger all the 
time, and to staying-on top--of. the-issues by en­
couraging improvement through constant expo­
sure and coming up with a good evaluation plan. 

You can draw parallels between what we've 
done within the Department of Corrections in 
terms of diversity training and the Department 

of Education. However, is one coordinator in 
Montpelier going to make a difference? Does it 
need to be staffing at each supervisory union 
level? Does it have to be at each school? Talk to 
us about how you think from your experience. 
How do we get it into the schools right down to 
the level where it's working with kids? It's the 
amount of dedication we have to talking to each 
other first and finding out what is it that these 
kids see as a problem. It was interesting to find 
out that a lot of people don't see a problem. 

Tory Rhodln » 
Counseling for adoptive families to promote 
positive racial identity, Subtle forms of racism 
AB a clinical aocial worker, I provide a range of 
counseling, training, conswtation, and educa­
tional aerrices to people helping adoptive fami. 
lies throughout Vermont. I also am the mother 
by adoption of a 2-year-old African American 
child. I can eom.m.ent on experiences told to me 
by transracial adoptive families in Vermont. 
Compared to many other States around the 
country, there are a significant number of chil­
dren placed transracially in. Vermont (i.e., pri­
marily children of various racial backgrounds 
adopted by white families). In the past a large 
number of ABian children, particularly from In­
dia and Korea. have been placed with families in 
Vermont. More recently a large number of Afri­
can American children and Chinese girls have 
been placed primarily with white families. 

My feeling, both as a parent and as a person 
who's been working professionally with adoptive 
families for a number of years, ,is that families 
need to be very proactive in creating a positive 
environment for their children and working in 
the larger world to help that happen. I think 
that adoptive families face a double challenge 
both of promoting positive racial identity devel­
opment for their children as well as building a 
strong attachment to the family and to the 
larger community. My own experience, both as a 
parent and as a clinical aocial worker. is that the 
development of a positive racial identity in a 
child. and the development of a strong attach• 
ment to the family work hand in hand becauae 
that's what will help the child feel known and 
connected to the family. I repeatedly stress to 

1111 Rhodia testimony, Rutland 'l'ronscript, pp. 1~93. 
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families that we need to begin tbinking of our­
selves as families of color who are parenting a 
child, not as white families that have a child 
from "a different racial background." Something 
needs to change in the racial identity of tbe 
family that will help· a stronger identity develop 
in the child. 

Some adoptive families have experienced ra­
cial harassment in tbe schools. I've heard of that 
from one family. What I've heard of very fre­
quently is what l believe is a more subtle racist 
experience in the Vermont school community 
where the child day after day does not see any­
thing or anybody that reflects who the child is in 
terms of race and culture. A very stressful situa• 
tion for a child who's been adopted by a white 
family is tbat the child is not seeing their iden• 
tity reflected when they look at their parents 
and siblings. This experience of seeing them­
selves not reflected in a world they live in can be 
very demoralizing and emptying. 

Certainly our children are exposed, as are all 
children of color in this country, to a fairly con­
stant onslaught of negative media images of 
themselves and their culture. I've talked with 
families and experienced in my own family peo­
ple who have what l consider to be a subtle kind 
of racism. Initially it is framed as being some­
thing very positive such as people commenting 
"how cute" your child is when they don't know 
you or your child and your child isn't any cuter 
than anybody else. 

In addition to doing counseling and therapy, 
part of what I do involves training for adoptive 
families· and staff' working with them. I led an 
annual workshop called "Taking a Stand Against 
Racism" at the Vermont Adoption Conference 
which attracts several hundred adoptive par­
ents. Our intention was to help prospective 
adoptive families explore tbeir own racial and 
ethnic background and their experiences with 
racism and come to some understanding of what 
this experience has meant for parenting their 
child. Our intention was to help them both to be 
reflective about their own experience and under• 
stand that they were, moving. into, a time .when 
they need to take practical action against racism 
in the world. 

My feeling is that schools need to be very 
proactive with regard to racial issues. I think 
that anybody involved with the school, including 

tbe parents, needs to think about whose history 
is being taught in the school. what images the 
child sees, and what are the stories that are in­
terwoven into every aspect of tbe curriculum. To 
me, as a high school student 30 years ago, I 
think there was a lot more consciousness among 
white high achoo} students about the fact that 
there were vast areas of history that we were not 
being taught in the United States history. My 
high school had a student initiated course on 
African American history which led me later to 
study that in college. As part of my own training, 
l was st:rongJy encouraged to live and work in an 
African American community. I had the privi- • 
lege of being able to study at the time when af. 
firmative action was taken seriously and when it 
waa seen as a necessary goal for every student 
and teacher that there be a genuinely diverse 
population. The background environment, in­
cluding the population of the school and the ad­
ministration. makes a huge difference in what 
you learn and what is considered important. 

DISCUSSION 
MR. CHENEY: We've heard a lot of testimony 

from adoptive mothers of multiracial children. lt 
seems there's a cadre of skills being built up by 
parents to counteract racist experiences. This 
group may have a lot of news for the educational 
establishment. I wonder if you have developed 
strategies that you can pass on, not only to your 
adoptive parents, but to others who might want 
touae it? 

MS. RHODIN: A lot of the work that we do is 
to link parents and families with other families 
who are like them in some way. There are sev­
eral multicultural family groups around the 
State of Vermont. Some of them are primarily 
adoptive families, and some are a combination of 
families formed by marriage. We strongly en­
courage transracial adoptive families and people 
who are thinking about adopting a child of color, 
if they happen to be white, to become involved 
with the multicultural family groups ao that 
both tbe children and the parents are spending a 

. • significant amount ·of their time with children 
and adults of color. But it's not only important 
for the child; it's at least as important for the 
adult, because it's the adult who's got the power 
in the family. A group of African American and 
Latino students at Dartmouth formed the Dart-
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mouth Alliance for Children of Color which pro-, 
vides a range of activities and a big brother/big 
sister program and student-parent, faculty• 
parent conversations for adoptive families. 
That's been a very strong intervention for fami. 
lies. 

MR. CHENEY: Some of the specific issues 
people speak of is that their kids are invisible. 
And they have adopted strategies to deal with 
that. Do you have specific intervention strategies 
that could be used in the schools? 

MS. RHODIN: The best thoughts I have are 
for the family to be spending as much time as 
they can with families of color and multiracial 
families so that the child is regularly seeing 
children and adults like him or herself. It is also 
important that the child's and the family's 
friends, the church, the images that are avail­
able in the home or television, the history that's 
talked about in the home, are experiences that 
reflect the child's culture of origin. We help 
schools around general issues of adoption and 
encourage families to live where their child is 
not the only child of color and where it's possible 
not to have their child be in isolation at school A 
number of the families also had the experience of 
the child feeling invisible and the child not hav­
ing words for what they're experiencing. If the 
child is the only child of a particular race in the 
school and the parents aren't willing or able to 
move to a community where that won't need to 
be so, I think it's important that the rest of the 
child's life be more culturally diverse. Adults 
should work with the child to help him or her 
find words to describe what they're experiencing 
so at least it's not just an inner suffering that 
there aren't any words for. 

Shay Totten • 
Media coverage of racial harassment 
The Vermont fimes is an institution that tries to 
pride itself on being the truth seekers, the ones 
that go after to find the greater truth of things 
that affect our community on a regular basis. 
Many times we fall short of that goal And we try 
our best for the most.part to try and at.least add 
perspective to any debate. But I think that if you 
asked any of my colleagues, I don't think any­
body could say that they wanted to see the kind 

88 Totten t.estimony, Rutland Transtript, pp. 264-70. 

of strife and divisiveness that can occur when we 
talk about issues .of racial discrimination and 
racial harassment. or any kind of harassment. I 
don't think there's anybody in the media that 
would say he or she eajoys covering these issues. 

I've been covering issues surrounding racial 
disc:rimination and racial diversity for a number 
of years in this State. I think Vermonters do 
want to have the kind of comm.unity where eve­
ryone's accepted. But I've also witnessed first. 
hand the kind of basic misunderstanding and 
basic lack of understanding of who people are 
and what makes people tick, rather than focus­
ing on what they look like, and that that is per• 
vasive in Vermont. It's pervasive in our society, 
and it's something that the media in general can 
help try to shine a light on to some extent to 
show that this is a very difficult issue, but it is 
one that we need to discuaa. And if the media's 
going to be a member ofthis community at J.arce, 
it's going to be trying to shine some light on this 
and not just keep on reporting the same old 
problems again and again. Having covered stuff 
around this area for about 5 plus years, I've been 
to a number of community forums regarding 
race and you hear the same stories again and 
again being told to the same people, but for some 
reason neither the media nor community seems 
to hold people to the high standard that they 
should and ask the tough questions on why 
nothing is happening. 

The important part that we all need to-focus 
on is that as we talk about this, each individual 
situation merits its own airing. And I think we 
can't deny anyone a chance to do that, but we 
also need to look at the greater picture and find 
what's going to come out of all of this. Certainly 
there can never be enough dialogue in a com.mu• 
nity around this topic. I know the. media can 
help that dialogue along; it can also hinder it too 
if we ourselves don't have the kind of steep 
learning curve that we need to have in discusa­
ing these issues. 

Aundrie Robinson ST 

.Establishing an.appreciation of.cultural diversity 
I've been a resident of Brattleboro, Vermont, for 
3½ years. I'm the director of the Round Table of 

37 Robinson t.eatimony, Bulland 7'nmscript, pp. 231-40. Tllil 
aummar,y of her Nov. 5, 1997, pnaentation is buecl upon 
herrequeatofJan.11,1999. • 
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Unity. The Round Table of Unity's mission is to 
create a model for building a healthy, diverse 
community united in commitment to change. It 
promotes harmonious relationships by working 
collaboratively with local businesses, nonprofit, 
and grassroots organizations offering educa­
tional, social, and cultural activities in an inte­
grated environment. It also develops and en­
courages awareness of the positive aspects of 
diversity to increase understanding of our 
changing multicultural community through pro­
grams that promote conscious self-

• empowerment. mutual respect, empathy, and 
compassion for others. 

In order to make a difference it's important 
for groups to work together. As far as reaching 
the community, it's important to establish cul­
turally inclusive educational programs and 
learning environments that refiect all races, na­
tionalities, and beliefs in a factual and realistic 
manner. 

DISCUSSION 
MR. TUCKER: Do you think the schools and 

certain agencies in Brattleboro are band in band 
when it comes to t.alking about racial issues if 
they talk about them at all? 

MS. ROBINSON: I think that they are mak­
ing an effort to work toward them. 

Summary 
Representatives from community organizations, 
the University of Vermont, and the Vermont De­
partment of Corrections discussed the existence 
of racism and racial harassment in the State, 
teacher training issues, and prospective methods 
to increase diversity in the State's educational 
system. Mr. Rhodin, a clinical social worker, 
identified subtle forms of racism experienced by 
parents who have adopted transracially. Ms. 
Rutledge of the Vermont Equity Project noted· 
significant omissions in school curriculum mate­
rials and proposed remedial corrective measures 
(for details, see appendix 7). Other panelists 
spoke of the need for a statewide proactive re­
sponse to racism and racial harassment and a 
general acknowledgment by Vermont in.atitu­
tions that the population is becoming increas­
ingly diverse. Panelists recommended that the 
State Department of Education mandate racial 
sensitivity training as a prerequisite for teacher 
certification and collaborate with community 
organizations and the University of Vermont to 
develop a statewide curriculum for prospective 
teachers. 

Two panelists from the Vermont Department 
of Corrections described a diversity training pro­
gram currently being administered to correction 
officers that could be tailored to public school 
teachers and students. The program's compo­
nents include developing an understanding and 
appreciation for other cultures and identifying 
racial stereotypes. 
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Chapter3 

Overview of the Vermont Public School System 
and State Enforcement Agencies 

Intended as an overview of the Vermont public 
school system and State enforcement of anti.har­
assment laws, this chapter provides State demo­
graphic and school enrollment data and a de­
scription of three Vermont State agencies 
charged with monitoring civil rights. A descrip­
tion of the organizational structure of the school 
system is included in addition to a review of the 
respective jurisdictional boundaries of the com­
missioner of the Department of Education and 
school supervisory unions. This is followed by a 
brief overview of the State's Equal Educational 
Opportunity Act (Act 60) and ways it fails to ad­
dress racial harassment issues. Lastly, the chap­
ter reviews the Vermont Department of Educa­
tion, Vermont Human Rights Commission, and 
the Vermont Attomey General's Criminal and 
Civil Rights Enforcement Units.I For each 
agency listed, the Committee describes the ju­
risdiction, staffing, and enforcement difficulties 
stemming from statutory or financial con­
straints. 

Elementary and Secondary 
Public School Enrollment 
According to the 1990 census, Vermont has a 
total minority population of 10,523, which repre• 
sents 1.84 percent of the State's total population 
of 571,334 residents. Of Vermont's 14 counties, 
Chittenden, Franklin, and Washington Counties 
account for the largest percentage of minorities 
in the State. Chittenden, the State's most popu­
lous county, has the highest number of African 

1 Agency deacriptiona, their functiona, and enforcement 
methods were gathered at the commuaity forums from tes­
timony by of&cials from the Vermont State Depanment of 
Education and Vermont Human Righu Commiuion. Jnfor• 
mation was alao provided by Katherine A. Hayes, Assistant 
~ey General for Civil Righu, Vermont Attorney Gen­
eral's Office, and Max Schlueter, Vermont Department of 
Public Safety, Criminal Information Center in written corre­
spondence and telephone interviews with Eastern Regional 
Office ataf[ 

American, Asian American, and Hispanic resi­
dents (see table 3.1). 

In 1996 Vermont had an estimated popula­
tion of 588,654, an increase of 4.6 percent from 
the April 1990 census count of 562,758.2 Ver­
mont's total population is projected to increase to 
617~000 in the year 2000 and 678,000 in 2005.3 

The U.S. Census Bureau estimates that between 
1995 and 2005, Vermont will experience one of 
the largest increases in minority population in 
the country.4 

Over the past 20 years, Vermont has seen an 
increase in public school enrollment. As shown 
in table 3.2, in fiscal year 1996, there were 2,905 
minority students in Vermont's elementary and 
secondary schools (1,025 Asian Americans, 837 
African Americans, 621 Native Americans, and 
422 Hispanics).' Between 1993 and 1997, the 
number of Asian American students grew by 9. 7 
percent per year followed closely by Hispanic 
enrollments with a rate of 9.2 percent, and 8.5 
percent for African Americans. 6 One reason for 

l? Vermont Department or Health, Agency of Human Serv• 
ices, "Population and HollBing Eatimates 1996; p.1, Novem• 
ber 1997. 
3 See U.S. Department oCCommen:e, Bureau of the CeD81l8, 
Vermo1d:t Population Projections: 1995to 2025. 
4 Hispanic growth rate ranks 2nd largest, followed by 
Asian/Pacific Islander at 14%, American Indian/Eskimo/ 
Aleut (18th largest), and African Americana rank:inc &6th 
largest. See U.S. Cenaua Bureau, Vermont~ Populalion 
Projections: 1995 to 1015, p. 5. The atat:istica reCenaced aN 
for non-Hispanic African Americana, Americu ln• 
dian/Eskimo/Aleut, and Asian Pacific lslanden. 
s Vermont Department of Education, "Vermont Public Edu­
cation Enrollment Report: Executive Summary 1995-1996,­
p. ii, May 6. 1996. 
6 Ibid. Vermont experienced a decreaae in the namlier of 
minority studenu between fiscal yean 1996 and 1997. The 
Vermont Department of Education attribute• thia decreue 
t.o the reporting of atudenta of m.iud ethnic backgmunda u 
"other," a category not included in 6acal year 1997. ln 19915 
atudenu in thia category repreaented 59i of the total ethnic 
population, and 149i in 1996. The department attributea thia 
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Table 3.1 

Population Characteristics by County (1990 Census) 

Amer. lndJ Asian/ Total 
Eskimof Pacific minority % 

Islander Hispanic population minorityCounty White Biack Aleut 
77 193 208 611 1.879%Addison 32,506 133 

Bennington 35,464 116 54 184 220 574 1.618% 
90 314 1.137%Caledonia 27,607 54 100 70 

Chittenden 128,897 819 294 1,466 1,179 3,758 2.915% 
1.132%Essex 6,356 13 18 11 30 72 

Franklin 39,201 58 585 99 136 878 2.239% 
Grand Isle 5,268 15 23 11 20 69 1.309% 
Lamoille 19.557 27 48 71 89 235 1.201% 
Orange 25,935 46 67 71 103 287 1.106% 
Orleans 23,873 49 56 50 92 247 1.034% 
Rutland 61,639 152 70 214 273 709 1.150% 
Washington 54,334 177 106 236 663 1,182 2.175% 
Windham 41,012 157 74 259 303 793 1.933% 
Windsor 53,439 135 124 280 255 794 1.485% 

Tots/ 555,088 1,951 1,696 3,215 3,661 10,523 1.841" 

Source: U.S. Department of Commerce, Bun,au of the Census, Anta and Populalion, County and City Data Book, 
Washingion. DC. U.S. Government Printing omc,, 1994, pp. 518-9. 

Table 3.2 

Vennont Elementary and Secondary Public Schools Ethnic Enrollment, 1985-1997 

Total number 
Native Asian/ %of and% of 
AmerJ Pacific Total white minority 

Year White Black Alask. Isl. Hispanic Other atudenta atudenta atudenta 
85-86 89,047 334 246 422 108 NA 90,157 98.77% 1,110(1.23%) 
86-87 NA NA NA NA NA NA 91,720 NA NA 
87-88 91.250 428 441 473 163 NA 92,755 98.38% 1,505 (1.62%) 
88-89 91,867 398 458 466 192 NA 93,381 98.38% 1,514 (1.62%) 
89-90 93,069 461 483 520 246 NA 94,779 98.20% 1,710 (1.80%) 
90-91 93,881 464 552 608 257 NA 95,762 98.04% 1,881 (1.98%) 
91-92 95,057 544 590 676 257 NA 97,124 97.87% 2,067 (2.13%) 
92-93 96,336 605 612 708 297 NA 98,558 97.75% 2.222 (2.25%) 
93-94* 100,184 724 634 889 324 NA 102,755 97.50% 2,571 (2.50%) 
94-95* 
95-96* 

101,796 
102,271 • 

73p 
784 

544 
634 

961 
1,015 

350 
390 

147 
471 

104,533 
105,565 

97.38% 
96.88% 

2,737 (2.62%) 
3,294 (3.12%) 

96-97* 103,436 837 621 1,025 422 NA 106,341 97.27% 2,905 (2.73%) 

Soun»: Vermont Depettment ofEducelion School Finance Opetalions, Vermont EJementary and s«:ondatyPublic Schools 
enrollment Report. Feb. 26, 11197. 

*Includes 5 inr:Jepenclent high schools acting as public 8Chools for ,ears 1993-1996. 
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the dramatic increase in the number of minority 
students is the large numbers of nonminority 
parents who adopt children from other races 
each year. i 

Jurisdictional Boundaries - Overview 
of the Vennont Public School System 
Like many other States in the Nation, ad.mini• 
strati.on and oversight of Vermont's approxi• 
mately 328 public elementary and secondary 
schools is divided among several State and local 
entities. By virtue of Vermont's State and local 
government structure, three major entities over• 
see some aspects of school administration: the 
Vermont State Board of Education, area super• 
visory union boards, and superintendents of in• 
dividual supervisory unions. 

The State Board of Education, consisting of 
seven board members appointed by the Gover­
nor, has general supervision of all educational 
entities in the State and regulates the qual.ilica­
tions, licensing, and certification of teachers. The 
board oversees the Vermont Department of Edu­
cation, which ~dministers the policies of the 
State board and State law relating to schools 
and distributes funds received by the State 
board from the legislature. The cnrnrnissioner of 
the Department of Education identifies the edu­
cational goals of the public schools and executes 
policies of the State Board of Education.8 In ad• 
dition, the commissioner accepts, distributes, 
and accounts for Federal funds for elementary 
and secondary education received by the State 
board.9 

Supervisory unions are approved by the State 
Board of Education and serve as the administra• 
tive, planning, and educational units for school 
districts in their respective areas.10 Supervisory 
unions set curriculum plans, identify educational 
goals and objectives for each school district in 

jump to the poaaible em,ra in cluaifying students in par• 
ticular ethnic groups. Ibid. 
7 Dianne De:ner, state adoption coordinator, Vermont De· 
partment of Social and Rehabilitation Services, testimony 
before the Vermont Almaory. Committee to the .U.S. Qim• 
miaaion on Civil Righta-, community forum, Nov. 4, 1997 
(hereafter cited as Burlington Tranat:ript.), p. 118. See also 
Tory Rhodin, clinical aocia1 worker, Casey Family Services, 
Post-Adoption Program, Rutland Transcript, p. 181. 
8 VT. STAT. ANN. tit. 16, § 212 (1997). 
9 Ibid. 
io Ibid.§ 11. 

the union, and establish written policies on 
teacher professional development.11 The State's 
60 supervisory unions manage over 300 school 
districts.12 Each supervisory union may hire a 
person or persons to serve as superintendent of 
the s·upervisory union. Superintendents have 
statutory responsibility in areas of policy ad­
ministration, educational goal setting, and per• 
aonnel matters.13 

Vennont Equal Educational 
Opportunity Act of 1997 
The enactment of the Equal Educational Oppor• 
tunity Act, 1, comm.only known 88 Act 60, consti• 
tuted a significant change in how the State and 
its school districts raise funds for education. As 
debate concerning the act's major provisions con• 
tinuea, u the Advisory Committee off'ers a brief 
description of its salient portions, while noting 
the absence of specific provisions relating to the 
prevention or eJirninatfon of racial harasament 
incidents.11 

Before 1997, Vermont public schools were 
generally funded by two means: funds raised by 
property tax assessments by ~ties and towns, 
and funds distributed by the State Board of Edu• 
cation using an aid formula known 88 the Foun• 
dation Plan.17 Since the State supported ap-

11 Ibid.§ 261(a). 
12 MOl'Jt, but not all of the State's 251 towns constitute a 
school district. William Reedy, legal counael, Vermont 
Department of Education, telephone interview, Oct. 9, 1998. 
A copy of the interview notes is on file at the Qimmi.uion'• 
Eastern Regional Office. 
13 VT. STAT. ANN. tit. 16, § 1563 (1997). See alto Dr. Marc 
Hull, commissioner, and John Nelson, project manapr, 
Vermont Department of Education, "Draft Working Paper 
on Public School Governance," July 1998. 
14 VT. STAT. ANN. tit. 16, § 165 (1997). 
15 See Nancy Remsen, "Now fur the Good News.• Burlington 
Free Prus, Nov. 5, 1997, and Carol Innerst, "Qiurt Battlea 
Over School Choice loom in Wiaconsin and Vermont, 77le 
Washington Times, Mar. 4, 1998. 
16 See Vermont School Boards Asaociation and the Vermont 
Superintendents Asaociation, •Act 60 Handbook: laaple­
ment.ing Vermont's Equal Educational Opportunity J,,,:t.,• 
(October 1997) fur a deac:ription of specific educational 
funding components or formulae. 
17 Brigham v. State, 692 A.2d 384, 387-88 (1997). Under tbe 
Foundation Plan, a formula is pnerated each year by tbe 
legislature by which the State measures per pupil apendill( 
and funding to indmdual achool clistricta. Id. Note a1ao tut 
Vermont public ac:hoola recei-ve Federal and State and other 
sources of finances. William Reedy, legal counael, Vermoat 
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proximately 32 percent of public school expendi­
tures, with the remainder generated by individ­
ual towns and regions, this system created stark 
contrasts in the levels of educational funding 
between rich and poor towns or regions.18 As a 
result, many in the State, particularly property 
owners from tax-poor school di.st:ricts, felt that 
the State's school financing scheme rendered 
some poorer, less-populated school districts un­
able to raise sufficient funds to provide educa­
tional services equal to those afforded students 
in wealthier school districts. IS 

In February 1997, the Vermont Supreme 
Court ruled in Brigham v. State that the State 
has a responsibility to provide all students sub­
stantially equal access to similar education 
revenues regardless of the student's place of 
residence.2° The ruling caused the legislature to 
embark on a 6-month endeavor to address ineq­
uitable school finance distribution among school 
districts resulting in passage of Act 60 in June 
1997. Although the State covered only 26.9 per­
cent of the general school expenses, the legisla­
ture sought to implement a measure to ensure 
that all schools would receive State aid through 
a variety of funding mechanisms.21 These funds 
are contingent on schools meeting basic quality 
and student performance standards and partici­
pating in the State's comprehensive assessment 
program..22 With the help of parents, teachers, 
and community members, schools are required 
to develop a comprehensive action plan to im• 

Department of Education, t.elephone int.erview, Oct. 9, 1998. 
A copy of the int.erview not.ea is on file at the Commiaaion'a 
East.em Regional Of&ce. 
18 Vermont School Boards Aaaociation and the Vermont 
Superint.endents Aaaociation, "'Act 60 Handbook: Imple­
menting Vermont's Equal Educational Opportunity Act," 
(October 1997). As an example of the at.ark level of funding, 
coDSider that in fiscal year 1995 the town of Richford'• aver­
age e:q,enditure per lltlldent was $3,743, which was c:alcu· 
lated on its property cu base of approximately $140,000. In 
contrast. the town of Peru spent almost twice the amount 
per student ($6,476) baaed on its cu base of $2.2 million. 
Bn,ham v. State, 692 A.2d 384, 389 (1997). 
19 1d. 
20 Id. at 397. See alllO Vermont School Boarda Aaaociation 
and the Vermont Superint.endenta Aaaociation, "'Act 60 
Handbook: Implementing Vermont's Equal Educational 
Opportunity Act,· (October 1997), p.4. 
11 These include grants, property cu diaburaemen&a, and 
local education tu: allotments. Ibid. 
22 Ibid. 

prove student performance and must establish a 
"'needs-based" professional development pro­
gram. Schools must annually report to their re­
spective school boards the number of teacher 
and support staff. student performance rates, • 
and provide an overall assessment of the health 
and "social well-being"23 of children in the dis· 
trict." 

In order to ensure that these quality stan­
dards are met, the Commissioner of Education is 
required to conduct assessments of each Ver• 
mont school to determine if educational oppor• 
tunities are substantially equal to those provided 
in other achools. The cnmrnissioner is empow­
ered to take immediate steps if schools fail to 
meet these standards. The commjssinner, for 
uample, may adjust supervisory union bounda­
ries or responsibilities, assume administrative 
control, or cloae the achoo!. 

Although Act 60 requires school districts to 
report sch.ool performance data and the social 
well-being of all students, the law does not man• 
date reporting of efforts to ensure bias and har­
asament•free learning environments. Therefore, 
individual sch.ool districts are not required to 
undertake assessments of racial harassment in• 
cidents and/or racial tensions within schools, or 
to improve teacher skills in teaching tolerance 
and sensitivity to minority concems25 (see chap­
ter 4, conclusion 7). 

Vennont State Agencies and Their Role 
in Investigating Racial Harassment 
Incidents Against Students 
This section contains a simplified summary of 
three State agencies: the Vermont Department 
of Education, Vermont Human Rights Commis­
sion, and the Civil Rights Unit of the Of&.ce of 
the Attorney General. Their roles in investigat• 
ing racial harassment incidents against students 
and their jurisdiction, staffing, and civil rights 
enforcement difficulties are described below. 

State school districts receiving Federal funds 
must provide equal educational opportunity to 
students in nonhostile learning environments. 

23 Since this phrase is uaed without definition in the mtate, 
it is not clear whether •aociaJ well-being" includes haraa­
ment-free learning environments. See VT. ffAT. ANN. tit. 
16, § 16& (1997). 
14 Ibid. 
15 8eeibid. 
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This responsibility includes protection of all stu• 
dents from discriminatory conduct or actions 
likely to constitute harassment. To ,meet this 
objective, two State agencies, the Vermont De­
partment of Education and Vermont Human 
Rights Commission, are charged with investi­
gating racial harassment incidents among stu­
dents in Vermont's public schools. The Vermont 
Department of Education derives its authority to 
investigate incidents of racial harassment from 
its general mandate to ensure compliance with 
all laws relating to public schools. Pursuant to 
Vermont's public accommodation statute, the 
Human Rights Commission has been given sole 
jurisdiction over racial discrimination com­
plaints against schools. 26 

Although the Civil Rights Unit (CRU) of the 
Office of the Vermont Attorney General does not 
handle harassment complaints occurring in the 
schools, its efforts (along with States' attorneys 
for individual counties) to coordinate with other 
State agencies are noted here. 

Vennont Department of Education 
Although the Vermont Department of Education 
retains general jurisdiction over schools, day-to­
day operations are left in the hands of local 
school districts and supervisory union boards. As 
such, the department routinely refers harau­
ment cases to the Human Rights Commission for 
investigation and may at times facilitate resolu­
tion of the cases. As of May 1997, the Depart­
ment of Education initiated 10-15 investigations 
of sexual/racial harassment incidents. 21 

Department representatives identifi.ed vari­
ous factors that make it difficult for the depart­
ment and schools to effectively investigate and 
counter acts of discrimination. These factors in­
clude (1) staffing shortages, (2) limitations of the 

zs VT. STAT. ANN. tit. 9, H4501, 4552(b) (1997). Under the 
1tatute, diac:rimination in ac:hool■ , restaurant.a, at.ore■• or 
other facilities that pl"O\l:ide eerrice■, facilities, goods, privi• 
leges, advantages, benefit.a, or accommodation■ to the gen• 
eral public ia prohibited. Ibid. See al,o Katherine A Hayes, 
Aui■tant Attorney General i>r Civil Right.a, Vermont Attor• 
ney General's Oflice, telephone interview, Mar. 23, 1998. A 
copy of the interview note■ i.1 OD file at the Commmion'1 
Eastern Regional Oflice. 
11 Karen L. Richard■, legal coun■el, Vermont Department of 
Education, statement preaented to the Vermont Advi.lory 
Committee to the U.S. Commiuion on Civil Right.a, May 13, 
1997. A copy of the meeting notes ia OD file at the Commia­
aion' s Eastern Regional Oflice. 

Anti-Harassment in Education law.28 and (3) 
teachers' and ,11dmiuistrators' lack of experience 
and skills in dealing with racial harassment. 

l. Staffing Shortages. The department does not 
have staff assigned exclusively to investigate 
and respond to racial harassment incidents.• 
Currently, two attorneys on a part-time basis 
respond to reported incidents of harassment 
while performing their other duties at the 
department.80 The department was seeking to 
establish an investigator position for fiscal 
year 1998. However. even jf this request were 
granted, only one investigator would be em­
ployed who could only devote part of his or 
her work time to addressing racial harass­
ment issues.11 

3. Limitation.a of 1M State An.ti.-Harassment in 
Education Law. Additional limitations on the 
department's ability to enforce State law 
arise from the absence of specific provisions 
in the State Anti-Harassment in Education 
law. Pursuant t.o the act. each school district 
is required t.o implement and adopt antihar­
assment policies and procedures. However, 
the statute neither requires individual school 
districts to submit harassment policies or 
procedures for review by State officials, nor 
offers penalty provisions for failure to adopt 
or implement antiharassment policies. Given 
the jurisdictional boundaries previously de,. 
scribed, the Vermont Department of Educa­
tion has only general authority over supervi­
sory unions and does not have direct author­
ity over the maintenance of the harassment 
policy within schools. This makes it highly 
difficult for the department to monitor indi­
vidual school districts for their compliance 
with the Anti-Harassment in Education law. 
As of April 1998, the department had not 

211 VT. STAT. ANN. tit. 16, § 565 (1997). 
29 Paul Fualer, legal coumel, Vermont Department oCF.du­
cation, Burlill6t0n Tran.cri.pt, p. 815. 

• 30 Befare the paaaage of the State law S6S,. the depanment 
requested a budget that would haw allocated fund■ for addi­
tional inve■tigative 1td' and/or money &,r manda-,. 
training programs lbr ac:hool district&. However, that pron­
Ilion _wu removed during appropriation. Faaaler tNtimcmy, 
Burlington Tran.script, pp. 86-87. 
as Fualer and Ricbarda testimony, Burlln,fton Trana:c:ripc. p.
815. . 
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compiled a list of school boards that had 
adopted the State model policy on harass• 
ment. Should a school district fail to imple­
ment a model policy or procedures that do not 
adequately address harassment iss~es'. the 
State Board of Education and ComDllSSloner 
of the Department of Education could inter• 
vene. However, this is unlikely given the fact 
that some adrninisrrators may report only to· 
their respective school districts or supervisory 
union boards. 

3. Lack ofExperience and Skills in Dealing with 
Racial Harassment. Additional difficulties 
encountered by the department include (1) 
administrators' and teachers' lack of basic 
know ledge and experience in dealing with 
other cultures and people of other races, (2) 
reluctance by minority students and parents 
to report cases to the department for investi• 
gation, (3) a level of ignorance and fear on the 
part of administrators and teachers sur• 
rounding issues of racism., and (4) depart­
ment stafrs lack of skills necessary to assist 
school districts regarding what steps schools 
can take to teach greater tolerance.32 

To remedy some of these difficulties, Depart• 
ment of Education representatives identified 
potential solutions that could assist in eliminat­
ing incidents of discrimination and reduce the 
number of cases for the department to investi­
gate. These include (1) providing information 
and training to Bdrninistrators, teachers, and 
staff that offer a basic understanding of cultural 
differences and the needs of minority students 
and the problems they face, (2) conducting par• 
ent community forums in the schools to promote 
interaction with faculty and students, (3) creat­
ing a school culture that fosters zero tolerance 
for harassment in the school or on school 
grounds, (4) issuing a statewide mandate for the 
maintenance of a bias-free curriculum that is 
evaluated by the department in its standards 
review process, and (5) establishing l'Jlandatory 
annual training in all Vermont schools. that ad• 
dresses cultural differences and school antihar• 
assment . policies. 33 Department representatives 

32 Fauler testimony, Burlington. Tran.script, pp. 83-84; 
Richards t.eatimony, Bu.rlil'lllton Tronscript, p. 81. 
33 Richards t.eatimony, Bu.rlil'lllton Transcript, pp. 71-88 (in 

suggested that school administrators woul~ be 
more receptive to implemen'b.ng trammg if it 

were required by the State Board of Education 
and enough funds were allocated to achieve the 
goals of the training. lM 

Vennont Human Rights Commission 

lnnstlgation and Processing of 
Civil Rights Complaints 
In 1986 the Advisory Committee held a public 
hearing to review the State's civil rights stat• 
utes, agencies, and methods of enforcement.35 

Participants at the hearing cited a range of civil 
rights difficulties that have persisted in the 
State for some time.36 After the Committee pre­
sented its find.mp before key legislators, public 
awareness of the State's continued problems 
with racism. sparked an effort to revitalize the 
Vermont Human Rigbts Commission. In 1987 
the Vermont legislature established a new Hu­
man Rights Cnmrnission, which was autborm,d 
to strengthen public education for the impor­
tance of civil rights and to "examine and evalu­
ate the emtence of discrimination in the 
State."'17 

Currently. the commission consists of five 
eommissioners appointed by the Governor and 
has jurisdiction over discrimination in housing, 
public accommodations, workers' compensation, 
and State employment. The commission is 

general). See olao p.74, 80. 
14 Ibid. p. 80-81. 
311 Participants at the hearing included former Governor 
Madeline Kunin; State Supreme C.Ourt Chief Jutice Fre­
dericlt Allen; former State Representative Judy Stephany: 
and the executive director of the C.Onnecticut C-ommiaaion on 
Human Rights, Arthur Green. See Vermont Advisory C.Om• 
mittee to the U.S. Commiasilln on Civil Rights, Ciuil Ifi6,,.,. 
Enforcement in Vermont, A Summary Report, 1987. 
• Ibid. See olao R.T. Caaaidy, •Civil and Human Ripta in 
Vermont,• in Vl!.'rfflOnt State Gowrnment Sin« 1911, ed., 
Michael Sherwood (Burlington, VT: Snelling Center fbr ao.­
ernment. University of Vermont, forthcoming,1988). CuaidJ 
diacuaaes a range of civil righta problems that have piqued 
the State, including racial discrimination in public aa:om­
modatiom. 
n VT. flrAT. ANN. tit. 9, § 45S2 (1997). See a'- lt.T. Cu­
sidy, "Civil and Human Righta in Vermont.• in Vermont 
State Government Binet 1965, ed., Michael Sberwaod 
(Burlington, VT: Snelling Center fbr Government, Uaivv­
sity of Vermont, forthc:oming,1988). kcording to Cuaidy. in 
1987 the Vermont legwature adopted atatutea nlatinc to 
anti-di.ecrimination in public acmmmodatiou ud fur 
housing. 
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authorized to employ an executive director, one 
compliance officer, one investigator, and one sec­
retary. Currently, the commission employs an 
executive director, two investigators, and one 
part-time secretary.38 To carry out its mission, 
the commission may file lawsuits asking a court 
to enforce conciliation agreements and prohibi­
tions against discrimination, issue temporary or 
permanent injunctive relief, impose civil and 
punitive penalties, or remit attorney fees. 39 

Under Vermont statute, all persons who be­
lieve they have been subjected to unlawful dis­
crimination may file a complaint witj:,. the com­
mission.40 The commission receives a majority of 
the claims of school-based discrimination 
through calls to the Montpelier office and refer­
rals from the Vermont Department of Education 
and school staff. 41 

H the particular grievance falls within its ju­
risdiction, the commission accepts the charge 
and begins an investigation. The major steps in 
the complaint investigation and resolution proc­
ess are schematically highlighted in figure 3.1. 
The investigation process includes interviews 
with the parties and witnesses involved and col­
lection of supporting documentation. After com­
pleting the investigation, the investigator writes 
an investigative report that details the conten­
tions of the parties and relates facts and evi­
dence to applicable law. Before the commission­
ers reach a final determination in a case, the 
parties are given the opportunity to comment on 
the staffs recommended finding in the investiga­
tive report and to appear before the commission­
ers when they review the case presentations.42 If 
the commission finds reasonable grounds to sup­
port a charge of unlawful discrimination, the 
parties in the case are granted the opportunity 
to comment on the written report and may ap­
pear before the commission when the case is 
heard.43 At the case presentations, the parties 

18 Haney Golubock, uecutive direct.or, Vermont Human 
Righta Commiuion, Burlington TraMCript, p. 47. 
19 VT. STAT. ANN. tit. 9, § 4553 (a)(6)(A-F) (1997). 
411 Id. § 4554. 
41 Golubock testimony, Burlington 'l'rrwicript, p. 48. 
42 Haney Golubock, executive direct.or, Vermont Human 
Richta Commiuion, letter of Oct. US, 1998, to Marc Pentino. 
East.em Regional Office. A copy of the letter is on file at the 
Commiuion'a East.em Regional Office. 
43 VT. STAT. ANN. tit. 9, § 4554 {c) (1997). 

may explain their positions before the commis­
sioners determine whether there are reasonable 
grounds to believe that discrimination occurred 
in the case."" 

Throughout this process, the commission at­
tempts to facilitate settlement between the par­
ties. H a settlement cannot be reached, the com­
mission has the authority to seek a court injunc­
tion, compensatory and punitive damages, or 
fines of up to $10,000 per violation and attor­
ney's fees. 45 The majority of incidents of harass­
ment are settled by an agreement, which in 
many instances includes monetary payments to 
the parents of harassed students. Recently, the 
Vermont legislature appropriated funds for the 
commission to utilize a mediation program that 
the parties can use at no cost." 

Incidents ofRacial Harassment Reported to 
. the Vennont Human Rights Commission 

The emnmissinn tracks the number of charges 
accepted for investigation based on the alleged 
basis of discrimination. During fiscal years 
1994-1996, the cnmm1BS1on accepted 472 
charges for investigation, 72 (or 15 percent) of 
those were allegations of discrimination against 
public school students.47 Of those 72, 17 were 
claims of discrimin.ation on the basis of race.41 
Given the small numbers of minority students in 
Vermont, commission officials estimated that 
race-based discrimin.ation charges represent a 
disproportionately large number of discrimina­
tion complaints filed with the commission.~• The 

.c Harvey Golubock, e~utive clirector, Vermont Human 
Rights Commission, letter of Oct. US, 1998, to Marc Pentino, 
Eastern Regional Office. A copy of the letter is on &le at the 
Commission's East.em Regional Office. 
45 Vt. STAT. ANN. tit. 9, § 4553(a)(6)(A-D) (1997). 
46 Ibid. 
47 Golubock testimony, Burlington Transcript, p. IO. 
411 Ibid. 
49 Other cat.egories of diacrimination reported to the Com­
mission durinr this period include eexual haruament (31'6), 
harassment baaed on disability (21'6), and luuuament 
baaed on aexuaJ orientation (10'6). Michael Powen, inYNli­
ptor, Vermont ··Human R.ighta Commiaaion, atatementa 
made to the Committee at ita May 13, 1997, planainc 
meeting. A copy of the minut.es to this meetinr ia on &le at 
the Commiuion'a Eastern Regional Office. S. aim 
Golubock testimony, Burfflf61Dn Tran«ript, pp. 11-U and 
Golubock letter of Oct. 15, 1998, to Marc Pentino, Eut.era 
Regional Oflice. A copy of the letter ia on file at the Commia­
sion's East.em Regional O&ice. 
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Figure 3.1 

Vennont Human Rights Commission Complaint Initiation and Resolution Process 
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majority of harassment cases involved racial Case Study'5 
harassment by other students rather than by 
school employees.50 In those cases, the commis­ In the summer of 1996, the parent of a multi­
sion assesses whether the schools take prompt racial, disabled child moved into a new school 
and appropriate action to prevent and amelio­ district. In a January 1997 complaint to the Hu­
rate the situation.Ill man Rights Commission, the parent alleged that 

although school district officials initially offered 
Investigative and her a choice of two schools. upon learning that 
Enforcement D;fflculties the student was multiracial and had a learning 
Commission officials noted that the small staff of disability, It withdrew the offer. Classified as a 
investigators hinders their ability to quickly in• •charge of public accommodation discrimination.• 
vestigate harassment cases and monitor the suc­ the Human Rights Commission accepted the 
cess of settlement agreements.52 The average charge for investigation in February 1997. 
time for commission investigators to issue a re­ In early March 1997, the school district sub­
port of their investigation is 9 months following mitted Its response to the charge to the commis­
the receipt of the initial complaint.63 The fol­ sion at which time the allegations were investi­
lowing case study illustrates the length of time gated. At various times throughout 1997, the 
one parent experienced when she filed a charge parent contacted commission staff to inquire as 
of discrimination involving schools. M to the status of her case, only to be told the case 

Thus a complaint filed at the beginni:DJ of the was still pending and to call back in the following 
school year may not receive resolution until the month. In April 1998 (15 months after the initial 
following school year. When delays in processing filing of the complaint), the commission held a 
such as this occur, there is a great potential for hearing to resolve the matter. In May 1998. the 
devastating effects upon a child's educational commission found no reasonable grounds to be­
and emotional development. As each day passes - lieve that the school district discriminated against 
in which a student experiences racial harass­ the child on the basis of race or disability.• 
ment that is not timely investigated and re• 
solved, there is greater risk for long-term effects 
upon the student's self-esteem, socialization, and During and after its investigations, the Hu­
school performance. man Rights Commission attempts to assist 

schools and parents who allege that their chil­
dren have been harassed enter into settlement 
agreements with particular schools. &7 If the par• 
ties reach an agreement· the commission finds 

60 Golubock testimony, Burlington Transcript, p. 52. 511 In reviewing this aec:tion, executive director of the Ver-
51 Ibid. mont Human Rights Commission stated: -rhia gives the 
112 Ibid., pp. 60-61. See also Michael Powers, investigator, inaccurate impression that when the mother called about 
Vermont Human Rights Commission, statements made to the case, the Commission's staff would not diacuss it with 
the Committee at its May 13, 1997 planning meeting. A copy her and told her to call back. The investigator told me that 
of the minutes to this meeting ia on file at the Commission's she always spoke with the mother when the mother c:aUed 
Ea.mm Regional Office. or returned the mother's telephone calla and that abe n• 
53 Harvey Golubock, eucutive director, Vermont Human ' plained the status of the investigation and its prOgreu since 
Rights Commiaaion, telephone interview, Mar. 13, 1998. A the mother's last call. The investigator stat.ed that abe told 
copy of the interview not.es ia on file at the Commission's the mother that she was working on a number of inveatiga• 
Ea.mm 'Regional Office ttve reports and that she would complete the mother's u 
M Thia caae study ia constructed baaed on tranacript entries .. • 900D aa she could. The investigator also atat.ed that she told 
and materials fumiahed by the parent, such as the original the mother the date she anticipat.ed fillishing the report u 
complaint, response by the school district, and the Human aoon as she knew it.,. Harvey Golubock, executtve director, 
Rights Commission investigative report. Telephone inter- Vermont Human Rights Commiaaion, letter of Oct. 15, 1998, 
views conduct:ed between November 1997 and July 1998 t.o Marc Pentino, Ea.mm Regional Office. A copy of the let-
were also Wied. These materials are on file at the Commia• ter ia on file at the Commiuion'a Eastern 'Regional Office. 
•ion's Eastern Regional Office. At the request of the parent, 16 Ibid. 
the child and parent's names are omitted. 11 Ibid. 
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fair and appropriate, the commission will gener• 
ally accept the agreement and take no further 
action on the case except to enforce the terms of 
the agreement.118 In many cases, commission 
staff rely on parents to inform them of continu­
ing problems with the school and compliance 
with settlement agreements.• Although the 
commission maintains contact with parents who 
have reached settlement agreements or obtained 
monetary awards, it has little ability to track the 
success of these agreements, monitor reoccurring 
problems, or seek additional remedial actions if 
necessary. In addition, the commission does not 
enter into agreements or seek remedial efforts 
with the parents of the children who were perpe­
trators of the discrimination.eo The commission 
is also unable to regularly monitor efforts that 
schools take to ensure nondiscrimination or 
work with schools experiencing high numbers of 
racial harassment incidents. The current situa­
tion is especially troublesome, given the commis­
sion staff's observation that some school admin­
istrators view Vermont's antiharassment statute 
as an unnecessary regulatory burden not re­
quiring action by the school district.&1 An ad• 
ministrator's failure to act will compound the 
time needed to reach a resolution and will con• 
tribute to the investigative and enforcement dif. 
:6.culties inherent in the process. The Advisory 
Committee is concerned that this will cauae seri• 
ous educational and emotional damage to stu• 
dents who muat confront harassment on a daily 
basis. These concerns are addressed in chapter 
4, concluaion 8. 

State's Attorneys for Individual 
Counties and the Civil Rights Unit 
of the Office of the Attorney General 
The Vermont Attorney General and State's at­
torneys for individual counties have jurisdiction 
over racial assaults and are authorized to pursue 
criminal prosecution for these acts in the inter­
est of the State. While the State attorney general 

611 Ibid. 
as Golubock testimony, Burlinp,n Trmucript, pp.6()...4;2. 
60 Ibid., p.59. 
61 Michael Powera, inveatiptor, Vermont Human Rights 
Commission, ltatements made to the Committee at its May 
13, 1997, planning meeting. A copy or the minutes t.o this 
meeting is on file at the Commiaaion's Eastern Repmal 
Oflice. 

retains general supervision of cnmin.al prosecu­
tion, each State's attorney has broad discretion 
to prosecute offenses occurring within his or her 
individual county.62 In addition to the State's 
prohibitions against discrimination in commer­
cial transactions,63 employment,64 sale and 
rental of real estate,15 and public accommoda­
tions,86 Vermont has established criminal sanc­
tions for discriminatory conduct that is racially 
motivated.61 

Within the Attorney General's Public Protec­
tion Division, a Civil Rights Unit (CRU) has 
been assigned solely to investigate civil rights 
complaints. However, the CRU primarily inves­
tigates employment discrimination matters that 
it either litigates or refers to the U.S. Equal Em• 
ployment Opportunity Commission.• The CRU 
currently consists of one attorney and two inves.: 
tip.ton. Although the office is able to proceu all 
incoming complaints through preliminary tele,, 
phone inquiries and case referral letters. the of. 
fice cannot conduct full indepth investigations 
given its current staffing level.89 In the event 
acts of school-based racial harassment occur and 
are referred to the CRU, the case is immediately 
forwarded to the Vermont Human Rights Com-

12 VT. STAT. ANN. tit. 24, § 361(a) (1997). See alllC, VT. 
STAT. ANN. tit. 3, § 153 (1997) and State's Attorney "· At­
torney General. 409 A.2d 599 (1979). 
a VT. STAT. ANN. tit. 8, § 1211 (1997). 
14 VT. STAT. ANN. tit. IS, § 495(a)(l) (1997). 
11 VT. STAT. ANN. tit. 9, § 4503 (1997). 
16 Id. § 4502. 
67 VT. STAT. ANN. tit. 13, § 1455 (1997). See alllC, id. § 1486. 
In addition, the attorney general advisea elective of6cia1a 
and State agencies on queationa or laws and bas general 
supervision of actiona instituted by or against State oflicen. 
See VT. STAT. ANN. tit. 3, § 153(a), 159 (1997). 
118 In fiacal year 1997, the CRU proce&11ed 115 cuea or em­
ployment disc:rimination, u compared with 118 cuea in 
1996. In both years, the majority orcaees invohed cbarpa of 
diacrimination baaed on ees or disability. In 1997 and 1998. 
the CRU brought 6 charges or race-baaed diacrimination in 
employment. Two of the m cha.rps invohed alleptiona of 
race-baaed harassment and/or intimidation in employmut. 
One charge wu withdrawn with settlement. two were finmd 
to be without probable cauae, and thne were atilt peadinJ • 
or Mar. so, 1998. Katherine A. Hayes, Aaaiataat AUmneJ 
General for Civil Rirbts, letter to Marc Pentino, cm.I ripta 
analyst, U.S. Commiasion on Civil Rights, Eastern Regional 
Oflice. See alllC, Hayes, telephone interview, Sept.11, 1998. 
Copies or the letter and interview notes are on &le at die 
Commiuion's Eaatera Regional Oflice. 
t9 Ibid.. 
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mission (HRC) for investigation. 7° CRU staff es­
timated that approximately one to two cases per 
week are referred to the HRC by their ofiice.71 In 
comparison, the HRC forwards few cases to the 
CRU for investigation.72 HRC and the CRU rep­
resentatives jointly coordinate so that matters 
are referred to the State agency with the proper 
jurisdiction. The CRU has established a civil 
rights protection committee that is working to 
revise existing State law to permit the attorney 
general to pursue injunctive relief, compensatory 
damages, and other relief in hate crime cases.13 
The committee has drafted legislation that will 
be introduced in the January 1999 session of the 
Vermont legi.slature.74 

Difficulties that Limit Law Enforcement 
Agencies' Ability to Assist Victims 
The Advisory Committee has identified two diffi­
culties that hinder law enforcement agencies' 
ability to determine precisely the number of ra­
cial harassment incidents that occur in a given 
school or area: (1) the lack of complete informa­
tion on the number and frequency of acts of vio­
lence against students, and (2) the absence of an 
information sharing system among State agen­
cies for reporting these acts. 

1. Currently, the Vermont Department of Public 
Safety's Criminal Information Center tracks 
all calls to police departments that partici­
pate in the State data collection system. It is 
difficult for the center to determine accu­
rately how many racially motivated incidents 
are reported to police, since not all police de­
partments participate in the system or main­
tain statistical information on the number 
and types of hate crimes.75 For example, it 

10 VT. STAT. ANN. tit. 9, § 4552(b) (1997). See Katherine A. 
Hayes, Aaeiatant Attorney General, Vermont Attorney Gen­
eral's Office, t.elephone interriew, Mar. 23, 1998. A copy of 
the interview not.es ia on file at the Commission's Eastern 
Regional Office. 
71 Katherine A. Hayes, Aaaistant Attorney General for Civil 
Rights, telephone int.erriew, July 21, 1998. A copy of the 
interview not.es ia on file at the C>mmiaaion's East.em Re­
gional Office. 
'l'2 Ibid. 
73 The committee ia vobmt.eer and CODIUSts of CRU ataff, 
government oflic:ialt, and community leaders. Ibid. 
7
"' Ibid. telephone lnt.erview, Nov. 25, 1998. 

75 Mu Sc::hluet.er, Vermont Department of Public Safety, 

was not until January 15, 1998, that the 
Burlington Police Department (which has ju­
risdiction over the State's largest minority 
community) began submitting hate crime sta• 
tistics t.o the Criminal Information Center.1, 
Other communities with large minority 
populations (such as Barre, Brattleboro, and 
Montpelier) have not begun to submit their 
hate crime statistics.'l"7 During 1997 the cen­
ter recorded 79 assaults involving students in 
both public schools and Vermont colleges and 
universities.78 Criminal Information Center 
staff estimate that the actual number of ra­
cially motivated incidents may be much 
higher.78 Staff believe that if parents and 
student victims of racial incidents attempt t.o 
resolve their complaints through the school 
administration or by filing a complaint with 
the HRC, many acts will not be reported t.o 
the police and thus not recorded under the 
State's data collection system.80 An additional 
difficulty that limits accurate data collection 
by the center is the fact that many police of&.. 
cers are not trained t.o recognize certain 
c:riminal acts that may be racially moti­
vated.•1 As a result. many of the acts that 
could be considered as racially motivated 
crimes may not be reported as race related. 

2. According to the CRU, criminal prosecutions 
of acts considered racially motivated are han­
dled by State's attorneys, not the attorney 
general.82 State's attorneys are alerted of in­
cidents of violence when a report is filed by 
the police or by investigators working in a 

Criminal Information Center, t.elephone interview, July 2 • 
and 9, 1998. A copy of the int.erview notes is on file at the 
Commission's Eastern Regional Office. 
76 Ibid. 
77 Ibid. 
78 Ibid. Of these 79 caaes, the Burlinrton area accout.ed iJr 
four racially motivat.ed :incidents, two of which occurred at 
the Univenity of Vermont. 
19 lbid. 
IO Ibid. 
11 Katherine A. Hayes, Aaaiatant Attorney General 6,r Cml 
Rights, t.elephone int.erview, Sept. 11, 1998. A copy of tbe 
int.erview not.es ia on file at the Commission'• Eat.em Re­
gional Office. 
112 Ibid. Not.e, aa ofSept.ember 1998, the Attorney Genenl'• 
Office bu not pursued any proeecutiDne under thia prcm. 
am.Ibid. 
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State's attorneys office who receive a call 
from a complainant and choose to investigate 
the matter. CRU staff noted that complain• 
ants frequently do not know which State 
agency accepts and processes harassment 
complaints.83 Most cases of school-based 
harassment are referred to the HRC since 
they involve juvenile-to-juvenile conduct. 
Upon receipt of complaints, HRC staff may 
urge parents to contact police regarding acts 
of violence in the schools. However as HRC 
staff do not report incidents to the police 
without the consent of the parents, it is 

probable that many of these acts may never 
be reported to State's attorneys. M 

As a result of the above, the Advisory Com­
mittee is concerned that State's attorneys and 
the attorney general may not be fully informed 
of acts of harassment and violence. Due to the 
difficulties in determining with any certainty the 
frequency of incidents, State's attorneys and the 
attorney general are limited in their ability to 
assist State agencies, community groups, and 
victims in remedying the problem. 

83 Katherine A. Hayes, Auiatant At:tomey General for Civil 
Rights, telephone interview, Sept. 11, 1998. A copy of the 114 Information on the number of cues in which pannia
interview notes is on file at the Comm.iuion's Eutem Re­ elected not to contact law enforcement oOic:ia1a ii
gional Oflice. unavailable. 
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Chapter4 

Conclusions and Recommendations 

At its November 1997 community forum, the 
Vermont Advisory Committee received informa­
tion from parents, students, State government 
officials, and community organization represen­
tatives concerning incidents of racial harassment 
in both elementary and secondary public schools. 
The testimony gathered at the forum leads the 
Committee to believe that racial harassment is 
widespread and pervasive in and around the 
State's public schools and is a reflection of over­
all race relations in the State. The Committee is 
deeply concerned for the safety and welfare of all 
students, particularly minorities, who at times 
must cx,nfront these acts without assistance from 
school officials and State agencies. Panelists de­
scribed the public schools as unfriendly and hos­
tile to the needs of minority students, a setting 
wherein racial slurs, epithets, and physical as­
saults occur. Panelists also described the general 
ostracism of minority students from the total 
school community. As a result, minority students 
experience fear in attending schools and are re­
luctant to participate in school activities, ad• 
versely affecting their academic performance. 

According to many panelists, a climate of in­
sensitivity exists in Vermont communities 
whereby residents exhibit general intolerance to 
others of different racial and ethnic back­
grounds. This reality has served to inhibit the 
entire State's ability to develop a level of sensi• 
tivity to civil rights issues unrelated to racial 
harassment. The Committee fears that the det­
rimental effects of racism will be evidenced in 
today's students long after completion of a par­
ticular school year and graduation from the 
public school system. As students leave the 
school system, many maintain their racial 
stereotypes. and may perpetuate harmful atti• 
tudes towards minorities and feelings of ani­
mosity to others in the community. In addition, 
students who have experienced racial harass­
ment will likely exhibit negative self-esteem, 
lowered self-confidence, and a sense of es-

trangement. These feelings may persist into 
adulthood and contribute to racial tensions in 
other contexts. 

As schools play a major role in making posi­
tive changes for a cx,mmunity. it is vital that an 
emphasis be placed on ensuring that attitudes of 
racial intolerance are cx,rrected at an early age. 
Messages of tolerance and sensitivity to minority 
concerns, transmitted to students and staff. can 
positively influence Vermont residents and can 
play a role w changing a culture of intolerance 
that currently exists. The following mnclusions 
and recx,mmendations are offered by the Advi­
sory Committee to summarize the report's major 
findings and to provide proactive suggestions for 
Vermont leaders and educators. 

Conclusion 1 
Racism in Vermont Communities 
According to many panelists, acts of harassment. 
bigotry, and violence have been directed at 
members of all racial and ethnic minority groups 
and frequently occur in the public schools. The 
Committee believes that these acts are merely a 
symptom of racism that is embedded within the 
larger Vermont community. As in many other 
States, racism has permeated into the very fab­
ric of Vermont life, undermining residents• abil­
ity to contribute to the productivity and stability 
of the State. It has also added to the statewide 
difficulty to launch and sustain vigorous civil 
rights protection for minority residents (chapt.er 
1, pp. 1-4, chapter 2, pp. 6-8, 11-13, 16-19, 20-
30, 31-33, 48-50). 

Recommendation 1.1 
State officials, civil rights and civic orpmza. 
tions, religious organizations, and busineaa lead• 
ers must alert Vermont citizens that racism con• 
tinues to exist in the State, adversely affecting 
both minority and nonminority citizens in 
schools, the workplace, and in everyday interac-
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tion. State and community leaders must actively 
help develop a consensus that racism is no 
longer acceptable and must be eliminated. Rec­
ognizing that this goal takes a sustained effort 
over a long period of time, government, advo­
cacy, business, and religious organizations must 
develop a long-range, coordinated plan to deal 
with the problem statewide. 

Conclusion 2 
Elimination c,f Racial Harassment 
as a Statewide Priority 
As the numbers of minority students increase in 
the State, information gathered at the forum 
and followup research suggest there will be a 
concurrent rise in the number of racial harass­
ment incidents and that these incidents will not 
be adequately dealt with by school administra­
tors or State agencies. Although there have been 
efforts by the State legislature to addreas this 
issue, it has not become a priority among school 
administrators, school boards, elected officials, 
and State agencies charged with civil rights en­
forcement. In some instances, administrators 
and government leaders have den:ied the exis­
tence of the problem and do not acknowledge the 
need for improvements in overall race relations 
within the State. The busineas community and 
private groups (who possess the knowledge and 
expertise in dealing with harassment) have not 
elevated the debate to the State level to direct 
public attention and promote meaningful solu­
tions. Although the Committee repeatedly of­
fered school Bdmiuistrators and government 
leaders an opportunity to present their view­
points on the issue, only two gdmiuistrators at­
tended the forum, while one organization (and 
one government official) submitted written ma­
terials to the Committee subsequent to the 
event. Their failure to respond, the Committee 
believes, is a reflection of general indifference 
and denial or avoidance of the problem of racial 
haraBSment (chapter 2, pp. 5, 8-11, 13-14, 17, 
27-29, 44-47). 

Recommendation 2.1 
As Vermont's minority population increases, 
State officials, civil rights and civic organiza­
tions, and business leaders must join forces to 
enhance community awareneBB that racial har­
assment in public schools is a statewide problem 

adversely affecting minority and nonminority 
students alike. The problem deserves immediate 
attention by all segments of the Vermont busi• 
ness, education, and religious communities. The 
Governor should provide direct and coordinated 
organization and leadership to raise the collec­
tive consciousness to the problem of racial har­
assment. It is only through coordination and 
broad community involvement that improve­
ments will be made. Business and government 
agencies should pool their resources to develop 
appropriate educational programs and teaching 
plans, promote community outreach events, and 
iBBue public service announcements. Organiza­
tions that should lend their support include eco­
nomic development agencies, the busineas 
roundtable, civic clubs, religious organizations, 
local chambers of commerce, and Vermont 
teachers/superintendents unions. These organi­
zations, in coordination with State officials 
should strive to promote a deeper understan~ 
in every sector of the State of the debilitating 
effects of racism upon minority and majority 
students, school staff, and the surrounding 
community. 

Conclusion 3 
The Need for School-Baaed Responses to 
Incidents of Racial Harassment 
According to some panelists, even when alleged 
instances of racial harassment occur in schools, 
it has been reported that •dminist1'ators are re­
luctant to accept them as racial incidents and 
may deny the existence of racial bias in the pub­
lic schools. Panelists reported that this problem 
may be due to Administrators' lack of training 
and ability to recognize and effectively respond 
to racism in the schools. Training that has been 
provided to teachers and tldministraton may not 
be successful in raising the consciousness or sen­
sitivity of persons in the school system to prob­
lems of racial bias. Although administrators are 
dedicated to their profession, many purportedly 
exhibit an inability to .deal with persons of other 
races, lacking an understanding on how to in• 
struct students on ways to cope with cultural 
differences. As a result, adrniuietraton may fail 
to take appropriate steps to discipline the perpe­
trators of racial harassment and lack akills to 
remedy the problem (chapter 2, pp. 5-6, 8-11, 
13-14, 27-29, 44-47, 51). 
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Recommendation 3.1 
State lawmakers, local school boards, and ad­
ministrators should support diversity in the 
public schools and actively strive to eliminate 
racial and other forms of harassment. More spe­
cifically, the State Board of Education and the 
Commissioner of the Vermont Department of 
Education should allocate sufficient resources to 
provide preservice and in-service training for all 
teachers, thus underscoring the importance of 
the prevention of racial harassment. The goal of 
all training should be to develop a class of teach­
ers who anticipate potential situations wherein 
harassment may occur and can act swiftly to 
remedy the problem. Training should include 
techniques to identify and prevent harassment 
in school settings and proper instruction on bow 
to immediately resolve incidents when they are 
witnessed by staff or called to their attention. All 
training should stress the importance of school­
based resolution of the problems so that referral 
of the incident to State agencies is viewed as a 
last resort. 

Conclusion 4 
The Ineffectiveness of Existing State Law to 
Address Racial Harassment and Compliance by 
School Boards 
Existing State law is deficient in addressing the 
problem of racial harassment on a systemwide 
basis. Vermont's Anti-Harassment in Education 
law does not grant the Vermont Department of 
Education direct oversight responsibility for su­
pervisory unions and local school boards with 
regard to racial harassment issues. In addition, 
the law does not provide any penalty provisions 
fQr the department to impose sanctions in the 
event particular boards fail to develop or imple­
ment antibarassment policies and procedures. 
As found by the U.S. Department of Education's 
Office for Civil Rights, various school boards 
have not adopted provisions of the State model 
harassment policy and, in some Cl;l&es, even ne­
glected to adopt any policy. At present, schools 
report on the existence of racial harassment on a 
voluntary basis to their local school boards. Be­
cause this information is potentially damaging to 
the school, sdminist.rators may be reluctant to 
assess voluntarily their school's compliance with 
the objectives of the statute, disciplinary actions, 

or the existence of racial tensions (chapter 1, p.3. 
chapter 3, pp. 54-55). 

Recommendation 4.1 
The legislature should amend the Anti­
Harassment in Education law to give the State 
Board of Education and the commissioner ad­
ministrative and enforcement oversight author­
ity over race-related issues in school districts so 
that stronger enforcement mechanisms and ap­
propriate sanctions Cl[lil be developed. This will 
enable the Department of Education to deter­
mine whether school boards have failed to de­
velop and implement antibarassment polices 
and procedures that conform to the State model. 
Directing the cnrnrni88inner to impose stricter 
standards for oversight should improve better 
data collection and reporting and compliance 
with the Anti-Harassment in Education law by 
individual schools. 

Recommendation 4.2 
The State Board of Education should make the 
P]irnination of harassment against any student a 
major agenda item of the State school system. 
The State Board should require disciplinary ac­
tion for students who harass their peers. The 
disciplinary action should be commensurate to 
the severity of the offense and students should 
be aware that repeat offenses will result in 
greater consequences. The State board should 
lead the systemwide effort to instill in teachers a 
greater appreciation of minority student con­
cerns. The State board should actively support a 
comprehensive training program on the State 
policy, the State Anti-Harassment in Education 
law, and proper disciplinary options that could 
stop racial harassment from occurring. The State 
board should ensure that this training program 
bas taken place and report annually to the Gov­
ernor and legislature on training programs im­
plemented in State schools. 

Recommendation 4.3 
Schools should report their compliance with the 
Anti-Harassment in Education law in their BD• 
nual school report submitted to the Vermont De­
partment of Education. The cornrni88i,.,ner 
should require all school boards to compile and 
report the number of minority students, the 
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number of racial harassment incidents in each 
school, the type of disciplinary actions im~osed 
upon the perpetrators, and the vi~'s _satJ.sfac­
tion with the resolution process. This informa• 
tion will enable department staff to assess prog­
ress by keeping a record of: 

l. The total number of complaints registered 
with schools, school boards, supervisory un­
ions and/or the Human Rights Commission. 

2. Whether perpetrat.ors receive appropriate 
disciplinary action for acts of harassment. 

3. Whether supervisory unions, school boards, 
school districts, and individual schools em• 
ploy effective measures to prevent racial har­
assment incidents. 

4. Whether schools experiencing a high number 
of incidents have endeavored t.o improve the 
overall school climate. 

5. Individual outcomes of cases. Every effort 
should be made to ensure that information 
collected will remain confidential. • 

Recommendation 4.4 
The Vermont Department of Education should 
consider developing an incident report form for 
distribution and use in schools. This form will 
allow parents and. victims to communicate for­
mally instances of racial harassment to school 
personnel, record their understanding of the in­
cident {including responses by school staff), and 
suggest ways to ameliorate the situation. Once 
completed by the parent, the form can be used 
by administTators and/or Vermont State en• 
forcement agencies t.o resolve the case. 

Recommendation 4.5 
The Vermont Commissioner of Education should 
report annually to the Governor and legislature 
on systemwide compliance with the Anti­
Harassment in Education law and make the re­
sults of this report available to the public. 

Conclusion 5 
Inadequate Staffing at 
the Vermont Department of Education 
The Vermont Department of Education brought 
to the Committee's attention serious staff short• 
ages and limited resources available to the de­
partment t.o combat the problem of racial har· 
assment. Because of this staff shortage, it is dif. 
ficult for the department t.o set the P.limination 
of racial harassment as a statewide priority and 
conduct statewide assessments of the effective­
ness of local efforts t.o promote bias-free school 
environments. It also becomes difficult for the 
department t.o help districts implement profes­
sional development programs around this issue 
and serve as a source for local schools for techni­
cal expertise (chapter 3, pp. 55-57). 

Recommendation 5.1 
The Cc>mmiesioner of the Vermont Department 
of Education should create at least one full-time 
staff position within the department solely to 
address racial harassment and promote racial 
and ethnic tolerance. This staff person would 
assess the overall success or failure of a school's 
attempts t.o promote a bias-free environment and 
assist school districts. The Advisory Committee 
recommends that the commissioner request ad­
ditional funds from the legislature to support 
this initiative. We also recommend that the leg­
islature approve this request for increased 
funds: 

Recommendation 5.2 
The Commissioner of the Vermont Department 
of Education should mandate that schools de­
velop and provide each parent with information 
on ways to register their complaints with either 
the Vermont Department of Education, the Hu­
man Rights Commission, or the U.S. Depart­
ment of Education's Office for Civil Rights. The 
information should describe what steps each 
educational entity and State enforcement agency 
must take when complaints are received and the 

.. level of monitoring and followup that will occur. 
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Conclusion 6 
Use of Racially Biased Curriculum Material 
and Lesson Plans 
Serious curriculum issues exist in the State's 
public schools. In some instances, teachers em­
ploy curriculum materials and leS&0n plans that 
promote racial stereotypes. There appears to be 
no statewide effort to ensure that the Vermont 
school curriculum is free of racial bias (chapter 
2, pp. 10-14, 18-20, 31-34, 43--44, app. 7). 

Recommendation 6.1 
The Vermont Department of Education should 
take a leadership role in developing and dis­
seminating to all school districts comprehensive, 
age-appropriate curricula that celebrate diver­
sity, teach respectful behavior to all people, and 
develop skills to handle conflict. 

Recommendation 6.2 
Vermont schools should incorporate multicul­
tural learning materials in individual schools 
that reflect the diversity of the State population 
and not simply the diversity present in the indi­
vidual classroom in any given school. year. 
Schools should endeavor to promote better toler­
ance among students by incorporating into lee• 
son plans anti-bias curricula and information 
regarding diversity issues. 

Recommendation 6.3 
The Commissioner of the Vermont Department 
of Education and local school boards should de­
velop a joint task force to assist school reviews of 
curriculum materials. The commissioner and 
school boards should notify schools when they 
are found to be using a curriculum that pro­
motes racial stereotypes. 

Recommendation 6.4 
The Advisory Committee encourages schools to 
conduct mandatory teacher and staff training on 
the issues of racial harassment and proper cur­
riculum selection and development. 

Conclusion 7 
Reviews and Assessments Pursuant to 
the Equal Educational Opportunity Act 
The 1997 Equal Educational Opportunity Act 
(Act 60) is an effort by State legislators to 
equalize school funding across school district 
lines and to promote overall school quality. The 
act mandates the Commissioner of the Vermont 
Department of Education to conduct assess­
ments of each school to determine if educational 
opportunities are substantially equal to those 
provided in other schools. However, the act is 
silent on the issue of racial harassment of mi­
nority students and the reporting by each school 
of its efforts to prevent racial harassment and 
foster safe and harassment-free environments 
(chapter 3, pp. 54-55). 

Recommendation 7.1 
The Advisory Committee urges the Commis­
sioner of the Vermont Department of Education 
to include in his school quality determination an 
assessment of the existence of bias-free learning 
environments in each school. 

Conclusion 8 
Dlfflculties In Processing Complaints by the 
Vermont Human Rights Commission 
The Vermont Human Rights Commission. the 
only State agency specifically empowered to in­
vestigate racial harassment incidents, does not 
have sufficient resources to address effectively 
incidents in the schools once they are reported. 
When complaints are made to the agency, par­
ents of minority students experience long delaya 
between the time a complaint is filed and a 
"reasonable grounds" determination is made. 
This is due in part to the small number of staff 
and the infrequency in which commissioners 
meet to discuss cases. Even when the commis­
sion issues a "reasonable grounds" finding, addi· 
tional delays may occur while an appropriate 
remedy is fashioned by the agency, victim, and 
school district. For this reason, minorities are 
reluctant to .come -forward with their concema 
and feel that assistance from State agenciea will 
not be forthcoming. The experience of peraona 
dealing with the Human Rights Commission ia 
that they are not informed of the atatus af their 
complaints. This has resulted in frustration by 
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parents. In addition, complaint processing delays 
often have serious implications for students who 
must confront harassment on a daily basis. In 
some instances, a parent who files a complaint at 
the beginning of a school year may not receive 
notice from the Human Rights Commission that 
it has found reasonable grounds supporting a 
charge of discrimination until a substantial por• 
tion of the school year is over. It is also likely 
that some charges may not be investigated and 
completed before a student graduates from ele­
mentary to middle, or middle to high school. As­
suming the perpetrator is approximately the 
same age as the victim, the student(s) perpe­
trating the harassment may end up in the same 
school (ordassroom) as the victim. Parents re• 
ported that having to "start over" with adminis­
trators in the new school is problematic, given 
the fact that they are not aware of the severity of 
the perpetrator's previous offenses or their effect 
upon the victim. Parents at the forum under• 
scored that it is at this time when their children 
are most vulnerable for repeat instances of racial 
harassment (chapter 2, pp. 11-13, 22-27, chap­
ter 3, pp. 57-61). 

Recommendation 8.1 
The Vermont Human Rights Commission should 
request (and the legislature provide) increased 
funding so that it can commit sufficient re­
sources to the timely resolution of racial har­
assment complaints in public schools. Given the 
damaging effects upon children and the commu­
nity at large, • racial harassment complaints 
should be given high priority. When incidents of 
harassment are reported and "accepted" by the 

commission, staff should immediately communi­
cate with the victim's parents in writing to in­

form them of anticipated processing time and 
steps that will be taken on their behalf. Commis­
sion staff should make every effort to process 
complaints in a timely manner and seek to expe­
dite resolution of the charge. Commission staff 
should promptly convene a meeting with the vic­
tim, the perpetrator, and his or her parents to 
gather information and remedy the problem. 

In the event both the perpetrator and victim 
have matriculated into the same school, the 
commission should ensure that administrators 
are informed of the perpetrator's prior conduct. 
Throughout the cc,mmission's investigation, staff 
should contact parents monthly to inform them 
of the ongoing status of their complaint. 

Recommendation 8.2 
The Vermont Department of Education should 
develop a coordinated system to process racial 
harassment complaints in public schools. The 
department should work with the Human Rights 
Cornrnissinu and the U.S. Department of Educa­
tion's Office for Civil Rights to accomplish this 
objective. This information sharing system 
should include the periodic reporting by agencies 
of their intake and disposition of racial harass­
ment cases. The agencies should develop a com­
prehensive brochure describing the roles and 
responsibilities of each agency and the complaint 
resolution process that can be distributed to par• 
ents, teachers, and students. These efforts will 
assist in eliminating confusion experienced by 
parents who initiate a complaint to public agen­
cies. 
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Appendix 1 

Vermont Law-16 Vermont Statutes Annotated-665: 
Anti-Harassment in Education Act 
(Adoption of Policy Prohibiting Unlawful Harassment of Students) 

{a} Each school board shall develop. adopt and make available in the manner described under 
subdivision 563( 1} of this title a harassment policy which includes: 

(1) A statement prohibiting unlawful harassment of a student. 
(2) The definition of harassment pursuant to subdivision 11 (a)(26) of this title. 
(3) Consequences and appropriate remedial action for staff or students who commit 

harassment. 

(b} Each school district shall establish rules setting forth procedures for dealing with harassment 
of students. The rules shall include: 

(1} Procedures for reporting harassment of students, including annual designation of two or 
more people within the institution to receive complaints and a procedure for 
publicizing those people's availability. 

(2) A procedure for publicizing the availability of the Vermont human rights commission and 
the federal Department of Education's Office of Civil Rights and other appropriate state 
and federal agencies to receive complaints of harassment. 

(3) A statement that acts of retaliation for reporting of harassment or for cooperating in an 
investigation of harassment is unlawful pursuant to subarvision 4503(0)(5) of Title 9. 

(c) The school board shall provide notice of the policy and procedures developed under this 
section to students. custodial parents or guardians of students, and staff members. Notice to 
students shall be in age-appropriate language and should include examples of harassment. At a 
minimum, this notice shall appear in any publication of the school district that sets forth the 
comprehensive rules. procedures and standards of conduct for the school. The board shall use 
its discretion in developing and initiating age-appropriate programs to effectively inform 
students and staff about the substance of the policy and procedures in order to help prevent 
harassment. The harassment policies and procedures shall be implemented by August 1, 1995. 

(d) For purposes of this section. staff means teachers. support staff. administrators, agents of the 
school. board members and unpaid volunteers. 

HISTORY: Added 1993, No. 162 (Adj. Sess.). @4. 
NOTES: 
CROSS REFERENCES: 

Harassment poticies for independent schools, see @ 166 of this title. 
Harassment policy for state colleges. see@ 2182 of this title. 
Harassment policy for University of Vermont, see @2284 of this title. 
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Appendix 2 

Vennont Department of Education Model Harassment Policy 

UNLAWFUL HARASSMENT 

A. STATEMENT OF POLICY 
This policy is intended mcomply wuh. me requirrme:rus of 16 V .S.A. §565 regarding die 
prohibition by school boards of unlawful harassment. 

It is the policy or _________ (the ..School Disaict1 to mainmin a 
teaming and woricing enviromncnt dw is free from unlawful barassmcnc. The School 
District prohibits any form of unlawful barassmc:nt on r:bc basis of disability. maria&l 
starus. national origin. race. religion.. sex. or sexual oricnlllion. 

B. GENERAL PROVISIONS 
1. Vjplarinn It is a violation of this policy for any smdent, mache:r, administtamr, 

or Olhm' scboal pc:aoanel unlawfully ID harass a smdent, reacher, adnrizrisnmr, 
or other school personnel throup conduct or c:ommumcadon on the basis of 
disatrnry.. mmra1 srams.. aalioaal origin. race. religicm. sex. or sexual orientation. 

2. Cam:plainr Any student. ieacber. admizrisntor.. or other school personnel who 
believes be or she bas been subjected to unlawful harassment may make ID 
imemal campJamtas dcsc;riJxd below and/or pursue other remedies provided by 
federal and sram law. • 

C. DEFINII'lONS AND EXAMPLES 
1. Peflnjrinns 

a. ·unlawful. lrarcmmenl'" means verbal or physical conduct based OD a 
person's disability. marital swus. national origin. race. religion.. sex. or 
sexual orieoa.rion which bas the purpose or effect of substantially 
interfering with a person's peEformance or creating an intimida:dng, 
bosdlc or offensive environment. 

. b. ..•sa:ua1 hlzr~ is a form of unlawful harassment which means 
unwelcome se:xm1 advana:s. nquests for sexual favors, and other verbal 
orphysical conduct of a sex-Jal namre when: 
(I) S,1bmission m that coadua is made either explicitly or implicitly 

a =m or condition of dw person's position; 
(111 Submission m or rejeaian of such conduct by a person is used as 

a component of the basis for decisions affecting that person; or 
(iil1 The candua bas the purpose or effect of subscmtially ina:rfering 

wilh a penon•s performance or creating an intimidating, host:ile 
or offensive environment. 

c. ••school pmonMI'" means school board members, school district 
employees. agentS of the school district. unpaid voluni=rs. contraelOIS 
and pc:rsons. other than StUdcna. who arc subject to the supervision and 
conrrol of the School District. • 
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2. 

D. 

E. 

F. 

Exai:m,lcs, Examples of behaviors which. if sufficiendy severe, pervasive or persistent 
to interfere with a person·s ability to participate in or benefit from school programs, 
would be unlawful harassment include but are not limiled ID physical aggression or 
force. the threat ofphysical aggression or~demeaning comments or behavior. slurs. 
mimicking. jokes, gestures. name.calling, graffiti. mlldng. sexual advances. use of 
nicknames empbasiz:iog stere0typeS, commenis on manner of speaking, negative 
references to customs. and de:rogatory comments -regarding surnames. 

REPORTING 
l. YAluuma rcpoa 

a. Sllldt:nls. A sa1dcot may ~ 111 allcgm:ion of unlawful barassmt he 
orshe bas experimced or wimes5l:s as: school ar during school sponsand 
activities u, any adult school personnel designated, in ICCOldance with 
procedures developed under this policy. U) receive complaims of 
unlawful banssment. 

b. Adult school penOMld. Alty adult school personnel may n:pon an 
• • aJlegmion of IIDlawful ba:rassment he or sbe bas experienced ar: school or 

during school sponsored activities ID a p:rsoa designated, in accordance 
with procedmes developed under mis policy. u, ==ivc complaints of 
unlawful banssment. 

2. Mffldamc,, n:pga,, Alty adult school personnel who wimesses or n:ceives a 
mpcmr-tmma1 or mfon:ml. wrim:n or oral, of unlawful barassmcnt at school or 
during school sponsored activities shall report it in accordance wim procedures 
developed under this policy. • 

3. PriYIS.Y 'lbe School Dimict shall respect me privacy of the complainant. the 
individual(s) against whom me n:pon: is direcn:d. and me wimesses to the extent 
consisamt with me School District's oblip.tions u, investigate. lake appropriate 
action. and conform wim any discovery or disclosure obligations. 

INVESTIGATION 
The School District shall condUct an investigatio~ in accordance with procedun:s 
adopa:d anderdlis policy, as soon as practicable but not later than _ days following 
!==iPt of a report or complaint. formal or informal. written or oral, alleging unlawful 
harassment. 

AcrION 
1. Pmx tp IQ The School Disaict shall take appropriate action in all cases whi:n: 

mis~ bas b:c::n ~am Any person found to have violated this policy may 
be sabjca to appropnare conscqucnccs and/or remeciiaJ action including, bm DOC 
•limited 10. warning. exclusion. suspension, expulsion. transfer. dismissal. or 
ft!fflCdial action such as aaining, education. or counseling.. The School District 
shall. n_ot take any action. which is inconsismm with applicable collective 
.bmgammg acr=men1.:oo swe and fc:dcral laws. and other School District policies. 
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E. RETALIATION 
Retaliation for rqxming harassment or cooperuing in an investigation of harassment 
is unlawful under 9 V .S.A. §4502 (a) (5). 

F. RECORD KEEPING AND NOTlFICATION 
1. Rccatrl k:ccpinf. The Superintendcru shall assme that a n:cord of any 

complaint and invesligalion of unlawful harassment is maintained by the 
School District in a confidem:ial file. 

2. Ngtificarioo The Supc:rinl=ldent shall assure mat die complainant is notified 
whether allegations of unlawful ban.ssmcm WCft found to be c::ont:e:t.. 
whether a violation of the policy was found, and wbcme:r action was taken 
as aresulL 

G. NOTICE 
1be Supcrin=ndcnt shall provide noricc of the policy on unlawful harassment and 
these procedures t0 all school personnel and u, custOdial parents or pardjans of 
students. The notice shall: 

1. Be in age-approprial:r; language; 
2. Include examples of behaviors which., if sufficic:ntly severe. pervasive or 

pcrsisa::nt to iml:rfi:re with a person•s ability t0 pan:icipare in or benefit from 
school programs., would be unlawful harassment; and 

3. Provide the following information about additional methods of pursuing 
claims of unlawful ba:rassmcnc 
A person may make a complaint of harassment to the Vermont Homan 
Rights Commission or the federal Office of Ovil Righrs at the followinc 
places: 

Vermont Human Rights Commission 
133 State Street 
,Montpelier VT 0S633-0001 
(802)828-2480 

Di:reaor, Compliance Division Area II 
Office for Ovil Rights 
U.S. Depamncnt ofEducation., Region 1 
John W. McCarmack Post Office and Courthouse. Room 222 
Post Office Square 
Boston. MA 02109 
(617)223-9667 

In addition. an individual may seek other n:medies through privue lepl 
action and. in some circumstances. through c:riminal prosecution. 
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MODEL PROCEDt.JRE.S: UNLAWFlJL HARASSMENT 

The School Board hereby adopts the followin& pn,ccdures to implement the School 
DiStrict's policy with respect to unlawful harassmeDL 

A.. MANDATORYREPORTING 
1. Ia princiJ:,aJ Any adult school pe:sound who wimc::ssc:s or receives a report. 

formal or informal. wrim:n or oral. of unlawful harassment at school or 
during school sponsored activities shall rcpart it to the principal. If the report 
involves the school principal. die rcpona shall make the n:pon diredy to 
the School Dimict Equity Cocm::tinaur or Sapc:1iumdent. 

2. Priudpa,J•s duty Upon receipt of a iq,art of unlawful harassment. the 
principal shall decide whether u, nain and act upon it au: the school site or 
to forwud. it directly to me School District Equity Coordinamr. 
a. Retlli.Md by prillcipal. If the principal acts upon the n:pon at the 

scboal sia: and ifdie mll'll'Zis 1101: :resolved infmmally. in acc:ordancc 
wid1 Seaian B. be ershe shall fotwud to the School District Equity 
Coordinatar, wimin S days, a report ofany action cate:a.. 

b. fm:wentcd mSGboaJ Pisa:icr BQma Ccxm:Unemc If the principal 
decides to forward. the report directly to the School District Equity 
Comdinamr., be er she shall do so irnmfflwrely. without screening or 
invcsripdng the report. The principal may request. but not insist 
upm. a wrim:n complaint. The principal shall forward to the School 
District Equity Coordinator: 
(i) a written statement of the complaint within 24 hours; and 
fli) any available supporting documentation as soon as 

practicable. 

3. Equity Coonttaamc. The Superintendent shall designate one individual 
within.the School Disuict/Supc:rvisory Union as the School District Equity 
CcardiDamr to m::c:i.ve reporr:s of unlawful harassment. If the report involves 
me School Disa:ict Equity Coordinator. the repom:r shall make it clirectly to 
the Superintcndc:nL The Scbool District shall post the name. mailing address. 
and telephone number of ilS Equity Coordinalor conspicuously. For the 
19_-_ school year, the District Equity Coordinator is: 

[Name] 
[Mailing address] 
rre1cpbone Number] 

B. INFORMAL RESOLUTION 
1. Sgzdcnr:, If rhe complainant and respondent(s) arc smdc:nts. they may agn:e 

ro a m=ing fadlilared by a school employee. If each smdent involved agrees 
me simalion has bc::c:n :n:solved by such a meeting, the school employee shall 
report to the principal only that the maaer has been resolved informally. If 
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any smdcnt involved does not ag:n= that the situation has been resolved. be 
or she may pmceed to a formal investigation. 

2. Adult scbaoI pcr:sonocJ, If the complainant and n:spondent(s) are adult 
school personnel, they may agree 10 a meeting facilitaD:d by a school 
employee. If each school personnel involved agn:es the siawion has been 
resolved by such a me.ering. the school employee shall report to the principal 
only that the mam:r has been resolved informally. If any school personnel 
involved does not agn:e 1:lw the sinw:ion bas been resolved. he or she may 
proc:ced to a formal invesli.prion. 

C. INVESTIGATION 
1. Em,. Ualc:ss me mam::r is n:solwd in accxxdauce wirh Section B. the School 

DimiaEquity Coon:linamr ar designee shall c:oaduct an investiplion upon 
receipt of a report ar complaim alleging unlawful harassment. 

2. Ha. The invesl:igucr may inta'Yiew iDdividDals mvolved and any other 
pmons who may bave knowledge of the circ::umsanx:es Jiving me to me . 
complaint and may use other memods and documenmdtm.. 

3. Wbca The invc:sd.plm sball complem the invesligmion as soon as· 
pracricable. but in no ewmt 1aa:r1ban foura:en (14) days following ieccipt of 
mecompwm. 

4. R,c:mlt, Upon complaioa of the iDvesl:igmoa.. the invcsdptor shall decide 
if a violar:ion ofmis policy bas occumd and report mar decision.. alone with 
the evidc:nc: supparug a. to me Supcriasendem «9 if the compliint involves 
the Supcri'!umdent. directly to the School Boani, for appropri8lc action in 
acccm:lance with School Dimict ctisc:iplinary policy. 

D. APPEAL 
A person dea:::rmmcd to have violm:d the policy on unlawful hanssmc:nt and 
subjecmd to action 1lllder it may appeal the deu:rm:inaJ::ion md/or the action taken as 
follows: 

1. 5mclcat Ifme pc:rmn filing the appeal is a smdcnt. me appeal shall proceed 
in accamancc wicb school disaict policy pm:ming discipline of smdcnts and· 
wi.th Jaw. 

2. Ssaft 
L Applicable c:oluaiv« bargaining agrlU!mlmt. If the penon filing the 

appeal is an adult school personnel who bas applicable appeal rights 
under me grievance procedmc in a collective barpming agrcc:ment. 
me appeal shall proceed in accardance wirh the person•s rights in that 
qrc:c:mc:at. 
OrMr. If die person filing me appeal is an adult school pcnoDDd 
wbo does not have applicable appeal ri.pts andcr the gricvaace 
procedure in a collacaw bargaining q:ramem. the appeal sblJl 
proceed in acc:ardance wilb school disaict policy pcming 
pc:sonnel discipliDc and with Jaw. 
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Vermont Model Policy Man.ual. 

2. false rs:pm::t The School Dimict-shall_Jake appropriate action a.as.inst any 
student, teaeher. administrator or other school personnel who makes a false 
n:pon of unlawful harassment kno~,1.it_to he fal11e._.. 

3. Rmaliadm The Scbcol DiSU'ict sna.u aucc approprwc action against any student. 
reacher, administrator, or other school personnel who n:raliau:s against any 
person for ma.king a good faith report of unlawful harassment or for participating 
in an investigation ar other part of the process established by this policy. 
Rmliarion includes. but is not limited to. any form of unirnidation. reprisal. or 
harassment. The procedures established to implement this policy shall include 
a sanement that n:taliarion for n:poning harassment or cooperating in an 
investigation of harassment is u.nla.wful under 9 V.S.A. §4502 (a) (5). 

G. APPEAL 
A person determined to have violated this policy and subjeca:d to action under it may 
appeal the dea::rminalion am/at me: acr:ian taken in accordaace with procedures adopud 
under this policy. which shall be cnasisten~ wilh me provisions of any applicable 
collective bargaining ap::cmenL 

H. MANDATORY REPORTING OF ABUSE 
U nde.r cen:ain cilcumstance:s,. alleged bm.ssment may also be poss1'ble abase under 
Vermont law. The sram!O'Y oblip.non to n:pon suspected a~ therefore. may be 
applicable. 

DISSEMINATION AND TRAINING 
L Pisscminaapn This policy shall be: 

a. Poszed ccaspic:uously mroughout each school building in areas acccssi'ble 
to all persons; . 

b. Printed in any school district publication that setS forth the 
c:ompn:hc:mive nzle:s. proceclures. and standards of condua for smdenu; 
and 

c. ~ted in any school district publication that setS forth lhe 
comprehensive rules., procedures. and Standards of conduet for school 
district e:mployees. 

2. ImiDinr The Superintendent shall develop a method of discussing this policy 
wilh StudentS and employees. 

3. Reyj,:w The Sc:bool Board shall review this policy periodically for compliance 
wilh swc and fede:ral law. 

DIie Warned: 
Da:Adoped: 
Legal Refen:n=(s): 16 V.s.A.1565 

16 V.s.A.111 (a) {Z6) 
PV.s.A.~139 

Crass R.efa.-.nc::e: 
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Appendix 3 
U.S. Oeparbnent of Education: Profile, Assessment, and Resolution Agreement 

l "lilTI::&) STUES UEPART'1C~T UF FDL·c ATIU'­
ntFIC"r tell i·I\IL llK,Hn 

RfCilnll. I 
,nH, \I ,t..t """"' It ,un UtYtn -l'-D nH •THOl SI:.. 1100\.1 ::: 

aosru, VUll,,4C'HI SfTTS Q!lnrl 

Jum 27. IWI 

t>FttU: nr rm 
aE0IOH4l 01a1c1n11: 

Dr. Donm IC. Jem.ilo 
Supcrin1£ndenrof5c:boob 
Burqtao Public Schools 
150 Colchester Avenue 
Burlin,1on. Vermont 0540J 

Re: Review No. 01•97-501 I 

Dear Superintendent Jemilo: 

lbc Offace far Civil Riahts (OCR). U.S. Depanment of Ednc:1dcm.. bis ruolved lbe Profile. 
Assessment. and Resolution (PAR) n:view wllich lbe BurlfflllOII Public ScbDall (District) am1 OClt 
conducWS m partnership m May 1997. •lbis ttvie>w was conducled under die aucboril)' of Tide VI of 
the Civil Ripu Ace of 1964 and focused on die issues of disciplim, na:ial barusmcDt and bosdle 
environmem. 

Convnunil'.'f and school-based focus paups were a si1nifac:am pan of Ibis review. OCR facilitated a 
number or focus 1raups dunna die week of May 12 with members of die Burlqton Public Schools 
and lhc Bw'lin11on community. n. purpose of these locus poups was ID provide lhe opponunil)' for 
any community ar school mc:mbcr IO anend and panicipaa: by sharinC lheir views on these issues and 
10 1encrall! ideas for funare acaviries. Additionally. OCR reviewed information provided by die 
D11ffict and others relative to lbese assues The anfonnation from rhele various sources wu used to 
develop die agreement which was sisned by die Dasrrac:1 cm June 27. 1997. No disc:iplinc•n:lau:d issues 
were adenrified which require funare action on lhe pan or lhe District. 

Whn fully implcmi:nu:id. dus Apecmen1 will resolve lbe issues of Ibis review. Continued compliala 
is continaen1 upon r.he Di11ric:t·1 unplemen1111on of d11s Aareemc:m (copy enclosed). We rccosnile 
I.he steps lbe Disa'ict has already taken 10 address lhese issues and du:reby enhanc:c educational scn,i&:es 
to stUdcnu. We commend the Dasmct for worluna to conunue to improve die services it provides 
scudencs. We undcntand lhat the D11trac1 wall work 10 implc11111:111 chis AsnclDllll over lbe mxt snenJ 
years in accordance with &he aarccO•upon liU&et dares. Based on Ibis Apaemeru., as of die daa: ol dlia 
leaer. OCR considen lhis phase of Che revacew cumplell:d. OCR will wort with the District and will 
monitor lhe Districl'1 implemen1.1uon or lhe A1reemcn1 until it is fully impJ~mented. at which lime 
OCR will close th.is review. 
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Pap 2 • Dr. Donna K. Jemilo 

Tbmk you for )'OW' cooperation and that of your staff duria& Ibis nrview. Should you have any 
quur.ions. you may comact Frederick Dow. Equal Oppon:uniry Specialist. at (6J7) 223·9663 or me 
at (617) 223"91567. 

EncJosure 

cc: Honorable Marc Hull 
Commissioner of Education 
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impfcmcmalimt af1br: JarassmcDr proa:cturc. Th.ii process will be daip,d .,., easure that: 

- ar:ticms laka ID nmedY a complaim do mt..-wJJimpa,=r lbie complsmec 

. c:JMr, amsilta:lt &ad wwwm ~D bpt CCIIIICIIIDial the JIWeHiq ad 
ourcome '),~ 

. crmpl&inmn 1ft mrva:r nquind 10 CDllf:roal. • IIC:Clllld ba&aHt,, and ca:afnmt:laicm ia DDt 

caasidlnd to 'be an opaan in GUCS wllm k ii JIDl -,p1IDJl',rialll, • 

. ~ aisnificmt am1 Cl'lllli.lamt COl'IIOqLICDCel am ■ctmhriftlllll mr'Violati.cml oru. 
harulmc.at policy; ■ad 

- rmapt•isaenra md lbeir'pa.nms an: pnnicW wilb. d laplb' reJ_.Ne ~ 
co.acemial tbe outcome ofinwltl:ipdaas. iDdudills th.. DCJ11111qumrrs • fbe -=cued 
bans.... 

3. ByDamn• 1, 1997. bJ>ismct will c:omplltla• •• •flll-=1,1:lail&flDa••niai.ac 
and cm:r.icalum.meds wi1b mpec.t 1D diwnity and,-nlllialll. n... ?F8'll tbould a1,o 
addnss wa)'I mwhic:b tbc Diatrict can fadli11111:b m■zia:w-, _,,ofa:ilti"I----. 
aad 6ctive mauls claipc.d IO fosu:r a illdulive. llllllliflllllanl e&miallum &y Pm-, 
2, 1991. tbo l)imiCI will 'bcg.iD ID ilaJ,lllmml lnliaiDa ad am■r.ai'rilia alucan:lm wida 
its IIISCISrDellL 

4. By Del: r.11MI' 1, 1"7. tbc Dimict will iaitiD: a-aom& bw • jliiilllMM &Jope lllllDDC 
Sl11dcds. :Dimiat m.tt paam ad Olbc,-ca:mnemity ~.NPfttiDI _.....willl 1bt 
1aal ofenhw:in& commumcalioa bctweca. .U p,rti& n.. tmam will pl)mr' iaput ill 
• variety afael!I iacJ:udiac· 

• a campl&im procc::du:n= far p,1mm1mil)' aDd pnllll ID 'VCricc lbar' COIIOlll'IIS awr tM ar:::lions 
or pwcia af'lbll Di11ric1: 

.. 1be l'ICl'UillD&lll offiM:uky and staffwbo mar tbe aeecls ofmiaarity a:uc1cm, includmc 
ltl.ldeaa wtaD an: limilld P..np,b pm5cialt; 

• lb.II role ad nspomibilitiN of1be I>i'venmy/Equity- Oxmliaa1lar to idl:Dlify iaues wbida 
blrve ~ effectively addrewd ..t lbalC iD whir:b rbael!'l'e mt-cailac com:am~ ad 

• 1M CID'Jal ltia&qie plam wbich addrmes ia,a ofdiw:nily an4 nu::,c n:Jwtiom, bow 
dae illua cauld 1-madc • clearer priority £err 1hr: Dist:ri=.-.. ifllppl'DJlli,ml: 
~ ofimpsoMd me::belli■ms for 'bmr:1- ..,.,,,,,,,,,.;ClltioD ......lllcDillricl•1 
implem■11tal:im of'&be ma:rq¥ pl&. 
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s. By Ocmbar I. 1'9'7, tbl: Diltricl wW cllMdop a mrbeaj-m.ID pnmdc ~ cm III an-­
laiae blsis 1D lblr coram11nit)'. paaU. ad audmts Hipidirc tbe Jaoldm.l ofme. fanam wl 
ct. ....IIWMIICI dunDI1:blm-

6 .. By 0clllDII' 1. UW7, tm Dil&ria wfD dlMrJop.,,,, ienpfnamtaplak~ 
cwnmumc:art:iaa widt &mtJiu..,.. limilld Enaiw' ,-1 • 11t. Tbis plaD will iadude: 

. palic:ios 1IDd J'IIIGliCIDI far tbe pmvuicm GflCbaol iah eeion ..t notia:s iD atudmll' 
primary )Jame .lmpapl; 

• p:tlici• and pm:dc:as f'ar lhe ~ afniDld -~ ID fadlit,alC 
commvai~Clll between12:lc Dimict an4 pucms whD arc liiahlld ED11W. p-aficicm; 
ad 

• pn,vision ofaips iD the ldlool buildmp aad msdllaol pnmdl ill lanp,tps odN:r' 
lbam En1liah. 

BROBIJNG PBQYIIJQJII 

1. By l>licmlt- 30. 1997, lbe District will sulmait ID OCllalllpml• lbe mllilll ofi1:I n'¥i8w of 
i11 blrullDmt pcalicy a prucatus■ in ICCCll'daw wldl._ l afdll: All 1 ,,cm. iachafina 
ay lfliaiau ID IMpalic)- md proc ■ dlllll.. 

2. ByMay 2!. 19'1. die Disrrict will ,ubmit ID 00t. a n:pclll ma .........ofila &niew ofIlle 
impJl'ID""l2.1ldicm ofill: J:un.t.mNml palic;y a procedurm iD ac::cantacs with ill:m 2 of1hl 
Aav•awm-

l. By Da:zmber 30. 1997, lhc Dillrict will submit ID OCR. a npaft oa. dw: namb:s of ill 
Ule&fflUml of lniDia& IICIC=rb iD 4iC1:01'C1111ce with i11::m. 3 af lbc A,pccmam 1111d • cop)' oCib 
pllll ofninia& ud atbaa- ac:tivitics to add.rms 1:bis: needs. 

4. By fcbrua:1)- 6, J991, 1bc Dillric:t will l&IDIZlit to OCR. a IIIJIUII • lhr: ,._.ofID ldfans ID 
i:mprDw C01111Duairldio.as amoac ffttdcuta,. Dislrict st&ttpm:ms ad olbcr commuDily 
mm:ibas DD m:c iaues. iD accordlllcc wilb i1mJ 4 oflbe ApN11wat, iru:hldinc a dac:ripdcm 
oftbe tpa:ifie actiDDS taken wilt. ••IJWC'l 10 tM idmti!wl IDpicl. u '11111111 a any utha- inua 
IIUl-1. By Jaae 30, 1991 tbe District will pvridc .. da.iaiJJDA ofadacr·rm mldrad 
tbnnap tlae rormm. ---lllkm u a nswi. wl itit .........~.. impec:t oftbac 
ac:liviti-. 

5. By 0aobcr 11. J997. thi: Dislrict wW RJbmit 1u OCk 1. descripliaD af1= pDC.&IS deftlopad 
iraaccanluce with iMm 5 ofdl&t Aanemcm. . 
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6. By DeaamlMr JO, 1'97, Ille Dimic:t -uJ submit to OCR.a capy of ils plu far imprDYUII 
coma:nmi,:ariaa with &miiics wllD uw limimd En,Jilb JIIQ5cicnr. iD armnlace wi1b item 6 of 
the A&ncm eat 

The Dimica aodm-....ts thllr cert will candua add.hiaml foDow.up fDc:111 paup d.i!,n-,;.,. 
wl vi.tia• pll't ofill muailmm, • nahlltioa. Tlaw llCtiwilia-, • aalucllld hcfiin or 
......... to die Dimict'1 IIIJ,GIII 111d ...,..._am. n...ad1inll9 will br _,hlished tbal at 
mUDIIIJyrmt-.icswl 11:alf&uw to OCJlud ._J>illrict.ad..Um•madvm 1D 
allowfarlimdy P61Wation far.._ vilill. 
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May 16. 1997 

DRAFT 
RECOMMENDATIONS TO BURLINGTON SCHOOL DISTRICT 

REU.TED TO DISCIPLINE AND RA.CUL BAllASSMENT 

Below an: draft n:c:ammendalians p,CJliiied by tbe.Offtce far Cml Ripls (OCR.) smf' wbo 
condvcu:d a Profile, Assesmumt. and Raollllicm (PAR.) lftic:w of the Burlinp,n School 
Dislrict (Di.strict) du:rin1 the week of May 12 • 16, 1997. 111D foc:as of &bl: PAR review 
was an whether the District ensures that SlUdem:s are not lralllld difl'ac::atly OD 1be basis of 
race. color. or national origin in lbe adminismaioD of cti.-::ipfinc, ad wblllber 1:be district 
ensures an educational environment free from .racial baru:lmml. Tbae iaua fall within 
OCR's jurisdiction under Title VI of the Civil Ripts Act of )964. Tbs draft 
recommendations below WC"C discussed with Superiaractmt I>mma IC. Jemilo., lbe Cbair af 
the school board. cennl adrninimatian and building principals. ,,__ draft 
recommendations were presented at du: team's exit ccmfc:nmc:e cm. May 16, 1997. 

One feature of the· PAR review is to provide sc:bool officials witb immediate feedback on 
any issues examined during the review to fiu:iliwe quick nsolulian of maams rewed IO 
c:ompliancc with civil rights statuu:s enforced by OCR.. Alic full di-nassimi of the 
recommendations and related information. OCR ud Burlinp,n School Dimict will cala' 
into a n:solution agreement. 

OCR RECOM.'W:'.NOS THAT TH.E DISTRJCT SHOULD: 

RACIAL HARASSMENT POLICY/GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE 

J. Revae~ ab h.ualiiSment pohcy ilnd prucc:dun: to ensure that the followin& conc:c:ms 
arc: addressed: 

there are timefr:imes for the ffllJOr mges of the process; 

the procedure: is wnttcn 1n language that is easily undc:rstoocl by studcnu and 
their parents~ 

it 1s clear that the complainant bas the option of. but is not required 10. • 
confront the accused harasser. 

• clear explanation of wha1 wall happen at the informal level is included; 

it is. cJar ·that . the c:omplaanant can repan the complaint to any staff pc:rsc:m. 
not Just the pnncipal~ 

there 1s the ahilihy t~ have complaints which are more than JO days old 
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Pare 2 - Draft Recommendations to Burlington School District 

addn:ssed; 

ind• an assuru,ce that tbc school will akc steps ID c:om:ct any adverse 
cffecrs of tbe barusmmt on the complainalll ad othm; ud 

includes approprialc disciphnary sanctiaas that me sufficicnlly severe to have 
• detemmt effect. 

2. Review the implc:mcnWion of its harusmcnt policy ad proceclurc to msur: lbat: 

actions taken to remedy a complaint !lo not ncp!n'llly impact the 
complainant; 

clear. consiste:nt and accuraic documc:amian is kept crmc:e:rnins the 
proccssin& and outcome of complaints; 

complainanu an: never required to confront 1be 1cc1..-d haruscr. and 
confronmian is not considered to be u aptims ill cuc:s whim it is not 
appropriate; 

appropriate:, sipificant and consistent consequences are ■dmiaictered for 
vaolations of the barusment policy; and 

complamanlS and their parcnLS arc provided wi1h all lepl)y releasable 
,nformauon conccmang the outcome of investipuaas. including the 
consequences to the accused harasser. 

CQMMJ.,;'llCATIO't\: 

I. Jnc:ludc parents, smdcnts and commwmy members in any revision or developmmt of 
harassment and diversity pul1c1es .&nd procedures 

:?. Organ17..e communication forums bc&ween S'\udenLS and District staff. and be1wa:n 
District sULtl'. parents and other conunumt} member,. to promote: on-going dialap 
regan:hn1 race issues. 

3. Consider how central admuumauon can bener communicate: its vision and su-aiqic 
plan for addressing issues concenun& d1vcrstty and race relations. 

4. Consader ways to improve commwucauon between the Dinrict and the: community 
as 10 actions taken -to IIClc:lrt:55 issues conccmin& diversity and nee relations. 
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Pa1e 3 - Draft Rer:ommc:ndatiom 10 Burlington School Di.striel 

TRAINING 
1. Jniliatc an usessmc:nt of each school buildin&'s minin& amds with respect 10 

diversity and rac:c relations. 

2. Explon: ways of implementina a more inclusive. muhicula.n.l c:urriculwn. ancluding 
the sharing among staff af effective models and lnlb:rials. 

LANGUAGE 

t. Develop policies and prae1ices for provisian of critical a:bool iafonu&&ioD and 
materials in students• primary home languages. 

2. Develop policies and practices for provisioa af niaed tnmslatDrs to facilitate 
communication between the Oisuicl and pan:nts wbase pammy lanpap is not 
EagJish. 

3. Consider the need for and provide signs in the school buildinp ill lanpqc:s other 
than English. 

GENERAL ISSUES 

Consider whether the cunen1 s1nneg1c: plan adcqwnely ad effectively addresses 
issues of diversity and race rc:lataons. and wbelhc:r lbac issues should be made a 
clea.rcr priority for the D11mct. 

:? T arper facutly and staff recruitment cffons at candidates who meet the needs of 
n11non1y students. including students whose pnmary home language is not En,lish. 

Tlte prunar~· role of the new D1versny Coordinator sbould be to ensure onaoing 
cons1s1cncy and conunwty an the D1smct" s cffons to address issues of diversity and 
race n:lauoas 
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A.ppeada 
FOCUS GROUPS SUMMARIES 

ISSUES, PERCEPTIONS AND CONCERNS: 

Communication 

- Lack of U'\ISt betWeen school and c:ommumty 

- Perception that there is never any follow through or COD.llqUICli'DCC wb:D hatassmcnt is 
alleged. 

- Failure ~f District to communicate any effons tbal baw bem impJr:meated t.o addn:s:s 
issues of diversity and racial harassment. especially with n:spect to 1be Stratceic Plan. 

- Lack of inicgration of school with c:ommunil)' 

- Lack of ability for staff 10 call each other DD failure to ra:opm rac:ial harusmcot and 
racism. 

• Failure to communicate: that addn:ssin& ra-.:c relations is a Disl:rict priarity. 

- Failure 10 involve students. parents and community mrmbc:n in tbe process of developq 
policies and procedures. • 

• Lack of commun,cation with and rc:spcc1 for 1M experiences of community members. 

• Lael of cnmmunu:ataon to parents as 10 what programs, services·and resoun::cs an: 
available 

TrdlOJDt: 

• lnc:ffecuvc. sporadic and supcrficaal 1ra1111n,; on diversity issues that doesn't address needs 
of individual build1n1r SllCS 

• Studc:n1s oon't have an undcrstanchn~ or the same understanding u faculty of definiticm of 
racism. 

Language 

-.lnadequatc truuda1ion of notices (field trip.i.. etc.) 

• Difficulty in oblairuDg mu:rpn:tcrs~ no system for nquc:sling and obtaining intcrpretc:IL 
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. LacJc of ability to communicate wilb LEP parents n:sultiag in delays in n:layia,g key 
in.formation about child's school experience. 

- Hard ro get io know or befriend students who don't speak &,lilb 

Attitud;s 

- Perception that siudc::nts lpf'8king ui a foreip lqiap me beiaa exc:lusivc. 

- Failure to valu.c and lack of 1espcct for individual cliffae..:es .and divaniry . 

• Stw:lenzs' Jack of tolerance 'for those who don't 1JR111k. Eaalilb well. 

- Stcrcotypins 

- Not a vielcoming environment 

- Failure 10 understand that race issues are everyone•, problem,, not just people of color. 

- Lack af respect of faculty for SIUdeau. 

- Assumptinn that all stw:lam are the 11mc ud bave die same nacds. 

• Assumption that aU students of color are "'at risk.• 
• Studc:nu • 1eneral lack of civility towards each other 

Cumculun1 

- Lack or anu:grauon of materials conccminJ people of color 

- Laack ot work.s b!-· people of color 

- M1sanforma110n concermng people of colo1 

• Tokenis: .ippro.ach C"Eutcr c:gs") 

• Lack ol n:sourcc::s 10 address issue!. and ituppnn students of coJor. 

• School buddings don't n:flc:ct muh.acuhural community, and arc not welcoming 

• Lack af &:nderstanchng of US hisaory and the immigration experience. 
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Syffing 

- Homoseneity of ittaff; lack of diversity in mt! 

~ Lack of acc:ountlbilty as ID bow mff perform vis • vis 1bae issues 

Policv lmplementation 

- Tolc:rance for racial harassment 

• Failure to implement policy 

• No consequences for harassment 

• Students don't feel that there is a safe way to n:paft harusmc:at. and viclim ends up bciDa 
re-v.ictimin..-d by process. 

- Incidents which ·occur during panicipation in sports pn:,parm lft\ll1t addressed 

Leadmhtp 

- Lack of knowlqc: about issues and leadership an issue. 

- No plan. v1S1on nr 1oal for achievina .improved nee n:lalians 

• No sys1cmic actions to address issue • pacccmc:al approach only 

- Failure of admin11tratton and school board to acknowledge that lbcr'c is a problem 

• Prorram) are isolated and not coord1na1ed With each other. 

• issue 1s not a pr1orit)'. 

STEPSIACTMTIES 

Commumc:ataon 

• Build communny-school hllks and pannerstup 

• More torums and tocus groups for Sludcnts. parents. faculty ud community members 

- Facibtare parucipation of-parc:nu an focus groups by ensuring 1lua meetings are held ia a 
variety of places accessible to all, at various times. ud with cbild care provided.. 
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- Continuous media prcseacc to publicizl: effons and increu: communi'I)' involvement 

. Working with ,wr to develop a process for fosu:riraa cormcclions bctw=n SEUdenlS of 
different backgrounds. 

: Involve studenlS and pa.ram ill dcYelopin& and evaluatiaa polic:ics wl tcacbfls 

. Public service announc:crnerm on TV to promou: mvol'W:IDCDl of community 

- Provide regular progress n:pons on their childn:m tD panm1:S 

. Parent liaison to help teachers with issuqs of l'll&Z and diwnity. 

- View parents as pan of the team. 

Training 

- Systematic. comprehensive. onaoin,. building-hued traia.ina far all .llaft Should be 
inte,rated into daily life of school. 

- DcdicatanG significant Staff development time and resoun:a 10 issues of diversil)' and nu:c 

• Makini school environment more weJcomiaa to new llUdcmu. 

Languavc 

• Placinr value and pubhcally recognizing ability to speak mon: than one language. 

- EncouraJr LEP s1udenu to get involved an ans and spans programs 

- Translate stsns in buiJdinps into other lanJuages 

• Effec&ive system for provision of tamely antcrprr:1cr and nansJations services. 

• Regular translataon· of all wnncn matenal:. 1nto lhe home languases of the studeDIS and 
thear parents. 

Annudes 

- Student empowerment; helping srudents feel responsible and able to rectify situation. 

• Develop sensitrvny to seriousness of harassment; its not just "kids will be kids.• 

• Making sure that people acc:q,t personal responsibility for eradicating racism 
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• Offer courses to parents and other community members through adult educauon classes . 

• Re-ex.amine neighborhood scbaaJ concepl and consider whetbcr' elcmcatary schools should 
be mon: proponionatel} aepnsmwioaal of the district-wide pap11laricm 

Cw,:icwum 

. Suppon poups and suppon center for studc:a11 aad pamm of calar 

- Have advocate or u:.am of advocates (racially diw:ne) fDr srortr:Dts of color 

- Library of resources an multicultural education.. iacludiac a raoun::c coordinator 

- MuhiculNral center in schools or commu.a.ity 

- Incorporating issue!I of diversity and anti-racimn into the c:u:rriculm:D in a c:ompzebcmive 
fashion. 

- Have conflict resolution ttainina for all students 

• Sbaring model materials that teac:hcrs have developed amd Jameel a'bom ill 1niniap 

- Increase understanding of immigration experience and what it means 10 be 1111 Ami:rican. 

- Create a multicultural an projecr 10 decorate the school 

• Train teachers m diftcrc:at methods of pedagOI)', e.g. cooperative laming and modellq. 

• Bring in more of student's culture. includmg celebrations. 

~ Add more divene publicanioas to the library tmapazmes. books, c:1c.) 

• Offer more small r:mup extracurricular ac:uvitic:s and encourage fflldenu of color to 
participate. 

Staffme 

• More staff of color 

• More ,nvl:'lvcmcnt of commu.a.iry in hum,s .111d 1n commiuncm to divcrsifying staff 

• Make staff accountable for c:nswq no tolerance for racial hmnsmc:nt_ 

• Make swT accountable far implr:mcnung what they Jam iD lraininc 

5 

[91] 



- Use people in the community u role models or mentors. 

Policv lmplemc;ntatiop 

:- Someone identifir:d u c:ampl&iat ombudsman in ac:b sc:booJ • 

- Consistent follow-up with all srudeats and prue.ars aflm' mmplaint is iDVCS111atcd. 

- Ensure that students UDdenands tbeir ripts. ad the ami•bluammmt policies and 
procedures. 

- Suppon c:,:ntcr far students and panmts of color • 

- Sagruficam consequences and no blame for victim wbm racial banlSSmc:nt complaint is 
fiJcd. 

- Enforce zero tolc:ram:e policy 

Leadership 

- Several people should be responsible for eoordin&tiaa tbe"Diltric:t's df'orts in the areas of 
divc:rsi1y and race relations. 

• Top down comprehensive, coordinated systcmalic cmaoina llpJll'Dllda to daJiac with issua 
of race and diversity. . 
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Appendix4 

History of Racial Harassment Law in Vennont 
Submission by Speaker Michael Obuchowski, Vennont House of Representatives 

STATE OF VERMONT 
MICHAl!!LJ. 08UCHOWSICI ......... 
~ OF Rl!Pllt!IIIUffATI'IES 

.........,.,..,aff 
'l'll!l:---·

I!......._ ADDRS•: 
Na:--=■11 

•s.a•■AeUO.STAT5.V'l".ua 

MEMORANDUM 

TO: Kimhcrly B. Cbemey, a.ii' 
Vcsee--aat Advismy Cammitteo 
U.S. Cf'mrnimon • Civil Rip1I 

FROM: Barl:taraF.Ap,:w ~. 
Assistmt ID 1bc Spaar 

DATE: 31 October 1997 

RE: Fona. Now::mbcr 4 & S. Burlingtan, VT 

Speab:r Mic:bld J. Ohuchawm bas abd rm: ID prmdc you wieh tbe mdaec:d histaa)' of 
Vermont mcial harassmmt law far the information ofthe Commitb:e durina the Forum m:xt 
week. 

As we haw discussed with Marc Pc:ntino oftbe Wubingtoll, DC offic:e. neither Lt. OoWIDDr 
Douglas Raciae Mr Speabr Obudlowsk:i is able: ID attr:n41hc Fonma in pcnon.. However. the 
Spcakc:r wisbes 1hc Committee to bow that ifnc:nmmmdatiom mr qislalian n:prdil,a the 
civil rights ofVe:nnoldln should n:sult from 1he wutk oftbl: Fonma., be will make evmy ctrart to 
advmc:e IIXli1cp1ation. 

We hope this infimnation is belpfid 1D you. 

c:c: ~Pc:nlino via Facsimile: 2fD.•1376-7541 
u Oovemor Douglas A. Racuc 
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Vermont Lllgislallvll Counr::11 
11sStatll Street- Drawer 33 

Phone: 802-821-2231 
Fa: 102-ISZl-2424 

Mon1pllier, vermant 05833 
MEMORANDUM 

To: SpeakerMichael Obw::hawlki 

From: Micbul Jay Chlmick. llellln:h CoWIIIII 

October 30, 1997 

Subjec:t: lw:i&I Harassment Sta.lute 

y au have requested a wory history ofnaal barulmmlt law in ValDUDt. A. rmmber of 
sw,na_ bolb civil and crimiml. probibit clilc:liminatio that ia ndlJ1y mativmcL Thia rc:pan 
eaollllUta tbe abstultiva lqilllfflfe er,Mtwen•• tbat e:itber'prallibit ndally mativated 
disciimimtory coaduct, nwucd tbo dcdiaitiml of111ml ccmdnct ar im::nwd tbl: peaaltr for 
er,pp,g in such mnduct. A mview aftlle Vermont Stabna Allaatltlld wauld lbow addmcmal 
)egili,m,ic c:itations or histodcal llOtlll tbllowm& 1bP codified ....,.wtiom. Tbele lllpflllllll 
the additian afother protm:ted cl ■sa ,,Ciadividuall, 1bc: Fffll1lina l!Jf.deplrtmaD or agau:ica er 
the statutory n:visian ofan mJling codified sedian. None aftbe omitted c:itatioDI mbltlllll:iwlJ 
affected tllc prohibition 011 mpging iu tbo naally discriminatoly coachw:t, <the~or tbe lepl 
f'IIIDcdy tbat the w:mn is au.ttmrized to leek. 

The &st c:oramporary •nridircriminatian proviaion in Vermont law wu enacted m 1957. 
and prohibited tm daul ofpublic accmnawtlri~ns chats to a penoA•s "nee, c:reed, color or 
national origin". and iad.ud.ed, uci1111,m tnc orssoo.oo. ar a prilon 111rm ofnot more dim JO 
clays or botb.1 It was codmm a 13 V.SA, Chapter 31. 1n 1974. die dc6nitioll ofpublic 
accommodation wu de&md u, •-,Cltlblishmmt which eaten ar atrm. its Nr'Vices or facilitiel 
or goods to tbe pnenl public. -a Submqucntly in 1977, the dd•wi1ioa mpubDc ~etioa 

• wu tiarther n:vucd to read, •any sdsool. rmtaunnt.. store or Uf1J otba' estabJilbmear which cmn • 
or o8i:n its servica ar &c:ilit:i• or gaads to the pnen1 public."' • 

Chapter 31 ofTJtle 13 wu n:pe■lecl in 1917 wbm the leplature adopted anew Chapter 
139 to Title 9 pmbibiting discrimination in tbe atraina afpublic au:coaunodadom u we1l • with 
respect to tbe rmtal aad Ale ofreal estate Nsed on "nee. rwligiDus cned. color. national aript. 

1 No. 109 aftbe La• af' 1957. 

2 No. 142oftheLawsofl973 (Adj. Seu.). 

, No. 36 oftho Laws of 1977 (Biam. Sea.). 
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marital status or..... The n.w lt&tUte included c:enain rc:atal cxc:mptiam aac:h u for DWDllf 

occupied bwJdinp that contained 3 or P'CI' unitl and on age grounds for hauliD& im:ended for 
penam ap 62. or older.' TIie 1917 pnmsian mo mtbmized m agieYed individual to file suit 
in wparior murt for ccmpmutmy aar1 punitive darmpl and far the coun to awan:I costs md 
reuaaable al:IOIUyl" faM.' It also atablilbed a GrimiDl1 pmalty not to exceed 11.000.00. 

With rmpec:t to commen:ial traauctiom, then are aewira11aWI that p,.,bibit nciaJly 
discriminatory pncuc:a. BaciaUy motivated cndil dilc:rimi:nltim wu prohibited in 1987 ' and is 
codified at I V.S.A. § 1211. The victim ofracially bucd credit dia:i immmr.m.111&)' bring a Givil 
action for ac:IIJII llld pu.niliYe damages, .costa 1111d nrunnable lltarn&y'1 fw. The c:omhu:tiag af 
agricuhura.' easing must be on a n.ciaDy nondi1aiuriDl!OI)' bub u tbe rault ofa 1990 lqilll■m 
caar:bnw1r' mat is codified at 9 V.S.A. § 2411. A victim afrac:ia1 clillClimimtion in ID agriadtunl 
lcuiDg matter 11111)' ICek reclrm ill mpcriar COUit U p,ovidal far ia a. CDIIPfflW' mud statute t 
In 1919". tbP lcgis1~ prohibited nc:ial cliwc:,b,■inlliml n.imattann:latad to ntlil iD..,JJmmr 
cantnc'tS or retail dmges by a pn:nrision which ii c:oc:liial It 9 V.S.A § 2410. Thi! 1mc-111t af 
mODCtlry campeaution that may be recxwaml forwillld violeticm '1f'V11mant'1 retail iastlDlmlll 
law, ala111 with ralODlble attm:Dlly'a f=I. ii•fodla iatV.I.A § 2409. 

In a laba. wn1-t_ in 196311• tJ. legilJ..,.... tirlll p.rohlhited tba atm afVmnont. any 
penoa COJJtnCtiDg with the ...u well u tba private IICtoriml' ..... in n.dal • 
discrimination iD amploymem or Jahor orpaintinm. Thia bam wu codified at 21 V.S.A. § 495 
and while aiace subject to tedmi.-..1 modiliamon1 has nm,,rirw:I IUNtaatively tba w with 
respect to racial diac:rimiaatioa. In addition, the State Labar llelaticml A12 since ils 11J1Jctmmt ill 

'No. 74 ofthe Laws af1987 Sec. 1 Uld cadmed 11 § 9 V.S.A. § 4S02(a) (publu; 
accommoCl•tiom). 9 V .S.A. § 4503 (real estate) ad, V.S.A. § 4504(•) (natall). 

. 
5 No. 74 aftlle Lawa Df 1917 (Birm. Sas.) § 1, eoditic:d es 9 V.S.A § 4504. 

'No. 7-4 ofthe Laws of1917 (Bi.ear&. Sea.) § 1. codmed u 9 V.S.A. § 4506. 

"No. 44 aftbe Laws or 1917 (Bicnn. Sea. ) § 1. 

1 No. 214 ofthe Lawa af 1919 (Biean. Sc:ss.) § 1. 

• 9 V.S.A...§ 2480( 

10 No. 122 oftbcLawsof 1919 (Biam. Seu.)§ 23. 

11 No. 196 of'the Lawa af1963 (Biam. Sms.). 

UllMUN,.J 
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1967u bu prohibited racial discrimination in state emplo,meat11 and by c:losed abap labor 
09DizltiODS that conttaet with the state. 1' 

Tbe Munic:ipal llmtions Act,. IUICC it.a adoption in 1973as bu~ racially bued 
cliscrimiUlioa both by an employer &111111 by a labor mpnizatioa 1bllt 1cpr11cntr municipal 
employees." 

Perhaps the Vmmoat statutory prlMlia.D that most dinlc:tly ad&lnuel racial harmment ia 
the ne:nacu:d 13 V.S.A. Cbapta' 31 which ii aow codiW at f 1454-1457 ad w adapted iD 
1990.II Tbac: statutory lec:ticma establish c:rimiDIII MDdioas mf lam awtiwled crimes incmlding 
tho.11: that are n&Gially motivated. Tbe ltatutD ._mt Gatea IIJNICific: "'1me crime,• but l'l!bll' it 
iDcreuel the penal'¥ far 1111 undatying c:aimll when ti. J1RMD motMliaa ii, -..., color, ntti,lion 
natioDa1 origin. ..,, ancestry. ap. eervicc iD the armed.._ afdae tJDited Sma or Jvmdicap u 
dmim:d by 21 V.S.A.. § 49S(d)(7•11) or IIIX'UII a.w1Hl•lioA.•• 

Specifically. the pencm cmrvic:ted ofa ncially DIDtivated crime, 'MIID tbe ml penalty 
mr1bc umlcrlyiag erime ii a prilaa term ofa ,ear or-. may lao pmitbcd by 11 •nhnnm oftwo 
yems in prison or a fine DDt to aceccl 12,000.00 or both.• Papebatu.a ofracially motivated 
crimes that ammaDy carry a prison tcrJD of,.....tbmaac,-r, IIUt lasdim &w: years. may lie 
imprisoned far• maximum of5 ,-n or a fine mt to aa:lllld s1O.000.00 ar both.aa Ifthe pcmlcy 
far a conviction afthll lllldc:rlying crime is 5 ,anac..... thin ia ao atamtmy .la\llf'u::aigg of 
the prilan mm. but thejudge i8 to .. consider the IDatiYalian aftbe defimdant u a factor in 
JC!l'IU!OCiag...a 

u No. 191 ofthe Laws of1967 (Bienn. Sess.) codified u 13 V.SA .Chaptc:r 19. 

0 No. 198 ofthe Laws of1967 (Bienn. Seu.) I 14 c:adific:d u 13 V.S.A. § 1621(a)(7) . 

.,. No. 191 afthe Laws of 1967 (Bienn. Sell.) § 14 codified u 21 V.S.A. § 162l(b)(I). 

11 No. 111 oftbc Laws of 1973 (Bienn. Sea.) codified u 21 V.S.A., Cbaptar 22. 

111 No. 111 afthe Laws of1973 (Biam. Seu.)§ 1 codified u 13 V.S.A. § ·1726(a)(7). 

17 No. 111 ofthe La,.,. of 1973 (Bic:zm..Saa.) § 1 codified u 13 V.S.A. § 1726(1,)(9). 

11 No. 172 aftbcLaws of 1989 (Adj. Sas.). 

II 13 V.S.A. § 1455. 

• 13 V.S.A. § 14S~l). 

21 13 V.S.A. § 1455(2). 

23 13 V.S.A. § 1455(3). 
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Cbapta' JS a1ro c::rimin•tizea IKIUal m mppartiw: acts afbumina craaa or othm" n:tigious 
symbols wbm die ac:tian ii doac, "with the iDtenbon oftmmizing ar banlling a patic:ular pcnan 
or pcnoas.....a Tbe pmalty ii a m•ximum prison tam oftwo years or a fine not k" cx:ceed 
ss.000.00 or both. FmaDy, the c:bapta' also IDaws tbe vic:dm ofa newly ar nigimll.y matimlld 
crime to llriDg & c:ivD acdcm..,.. ~ nlil( RIIIJW'Mtm.)" ad punitive damlpl. COltl ad 
!n■oDlble mameyfNI.•• 

11 13 V.SA § 1456. 

a. 13 V .. 1.A I 14S7. 
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Appendix 5 
Responses by Vennont NEA, Human and Civil Rights Standing Committee 

To: Ktmberly B. Cheney. Vermont Ad.v:lsOry Committee. United States 
Commission on C1v1l Rights • 

From: Beth Dutton and Marlene Burke. Vcr
Rights Standing Committee 

mont-NEA ffnman and CiVt1 

Re: Vermont-NEA Report ~ Ctvil Rights 

• Date: February 8. 1998 

We are subrn1tttng a part of the mformatton you requested of us 1n the 
form of answers to questtons three, four, five, stx. and seven. with the rest to 
be followed by a report from Vermont-NEA Headquarters. 

Questlon number one regarding the number of mmortt;y teachers ID 
Vermont. broken down by race and school dlstrtcts, wtll be dlfBcult to answer. 
But since women are sttll lcgally classlfled as a rnlDortt;y group. it's obvious 
that an overwhf"lmtng maJortt;y of our teachers are iD a mmortty group. As to 
Jews. Asians. Hispanics, Hindus. Buddhists, People of Color, Muslims. etc.. l 
stncerely doubt those figures are available. In our own dlstrtct those questions 
aren't asked. If they ever are. our Human and Ctvtl Rights Group would 
protest. But headquarters w1ll have to try to answer you. 

(3) The responsibilities and accomplishments of the Buman and Civil 
Rights St•ndtng Committee. 

The responsibll!Ues of the committee are to propose policies and 
acttvitles to achieve equitable treatment for all people 1n Vermont's public 
schools and to seek to eUrntnate discrtrnlDaUon 1n all forms and at all levels. 
As with the national commlttee after which we are pattcmcd, we try to review 
the full range of human and civil rtghts. including the ell:mination of 
d.tscrtmJnatlon from our public schools and from our state and local 
assoctatlons. We revtew school board and contract pollctes, as well as the 
policies of the Vermont State Legislature regarding dlscrtrnination. 

Our accompltshments have been many and varied, most notably the 
formaUon from Within our group of the Vermont-NEA Advisory Standing 
Committee C')f Gay, Lesbian and Blscxual Educators and Allies. _whose pr1mmy 
responstbillUes are to monitor lnStances of dlscrtmlnaUon ID public 
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schools agatn.st Gay. Lcsbtan. and St.sexual students and educators; to provtde 
safe havens 1n all our public schools for Gay and Lesbian Students; to 
coordinate efforts With the Parents and Frtcnds of Lesbtans and Gays CPFL.AG): 
to monitor school board and contractual polictes regarding discrtm.mation on 
the basis of sexual•ortcntatton: to propose legislation to the Vermont State 
Legislation. wb1cb we arc now 1n the process of d01ng. regarding d1scnmtnatton 
and vtolation of constttuttonal rights: and to conduct surveys of instances of 
d1scrtm1natton. There arc. of course. other actlvtt1es of that group. 

We have alligned ourselves With the Vermont Anti-RadSt Action Team to 
help put into place an anti-Radsm Hotline for those fadJll or e:x:pertenctng 
racial discrtmtnatton and harassment In public schools: wtth '"Outright 
Vermont.· another group working wtth and concerned about Gay. Lesbian. and 
Bi.sexual Youth: wtth '"Seeds for Peace,· which teaches tolerance, respect. and 
non-violence in the public schools: wtth "Parents. T~chers, and Students for 
Social Responstbtllty.· an afflUat,e ofVermont-NEA. whose director is Dr. 
Glenn Hawkes. 

With the latter group. we support and help to sponsor the Annual 
International Holocaust Institute for Youth. where, while the major emphasis 
is on teaching students the b.lstory of ant1-Sc:mlt1sm and of the Holocaust. we 
and they help students understand how stereotyptng. fa.Jae accusations, 
rumors, and c:llscr1m1nation can create the foundation for bate c:rtmes and for 
Genoctde in any culture. 

We have Instituted the annual Human and C1vtl Rights Awards given 
eveiy yeaT at the Vermont-NEA Representattve Assembly. 

(4) The Jtuman and Civil IUgbta Awards. 

Since our inception 1n 1994, under the guidance and direction of one of 
our Vermont Association members and a four-year member of the national 
BSl$0Ciation's Human and Ctvtl Rights CommJ.ttee, Barbara Barbour, we have 
given eight awards. Followtng after the pattern set by the national association. 
we have given the followtng: 

Ftve to students in the followmg category "a K-12 student whose 
actMties have served to enhance the rtgbts and self-esteem of student peers... 
They have all five won the awards on the strength of their wtde vartety of 
commltted. community servtcc. their tnstrumcntation in the formation of and 
thdr servtcc wtth the Windsor County Youth Court. a pilot program for the 
State of Vermont: their work in helptng to eUm1n~te dlscrimtoation against 
m1norlties in publlc-·schools: ·their work in ~peaking ·throughout Vermont 
about. an~worklng•-to tnstitute.-safe havens·m·publlc schools for Gay and 
Lesbian students; their scrvtce on the stecrtn.g committee for the 5th World 
Peace Congress. wbich was held In Nonvlch. Vermont in 1995; and their 
committed membership in PTSSR. lnc. 
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One award was gtven to a person not an NEA member 1n the category of: 
"Tb.at person whose act1Vlties have protected and/or enhanced. the rights of 
teachers. the teacbJ.ng profession. and students ln a stgn1flcant. way.· It was 
awanied to Dr. Glenn Hawkes. the Dt.rector of PTSSR. for more than twenty 
years ofwork to achieve equity for all persons ln Vermont. 

And two have been gtven to teachers "whose professional act:Mties have 
protected and/or enhanced the rlghts ofstudents and teachers In public 
schools.· One of the them was the organizer of-Seeds For Peace.· who 
conducts school workshops for students throughout Vermont around such 
tssues as ctiscmnlnation, harasSIDCDt. and hate; and the other of them was 
awarded for work wtth PISSR: for teacbtng 11t the Intrmational Holocaust 
Institute; for gtvmg birth to the Windsor County Youth Court; for 
collaboration wtth PFLAO .to create safe havens in public schools; for work 
wttb GLBEA: for community service: for serving on the Peace Congress Steermg 
Committee; and for organJZlDg lnServ1ce programs for teachers on the subject of. 
harassment and discr1m.1natton ln schools . 

. 
The crttena for decidtDg who recetves the award are p1etty much included 

1n the three categortes of awards. but our coun:ntttee casts a wt.de net. and we 
carefully consider every nominee presented to us, gtvtn.g care to take Into 
account what the tndtvtdual bas done to cont:11bute to equity. peaceful 
resolution of dtfncultles. contributions to the rlghta of educators and students 
1n public schools. and public servtce to both small and large commUDlttes. 

Vermont-NEA Today. put out by Vermont-NEA"s comm.unlcatlOns 
director. Laurtc Huse. beglns early 1n Janumy to publish announcements of 
the upcomtng awards and gm:s clear direct1oDs about the categortes to be 
considered. deadline dates for applications. etc. 'lb.en. tbe nomlnations are 
sent to our committee for consideration and a vote. The recommendatlOns are 
then presented to the Vermont-NEA Board of Directors for approval. 

(5) Barusment iD. Vermont 

Any harassment based upon n:llglon. race. sex. mtnortty status, sexual· 
ortentatlon, socto-economlc status, ethnic ortgm. or anything else lS 
constden:d to be a problem by Vermont-NEA and by our committee. though 
harassment of People of Color ln Vermont lS less of a problem than lS another 
kind of racial harassment. antt-Semtttsm. and the harassment of the Gay and 
Lesbian populatlOn, both of wb1ch are fairly Wide-spread. Our only major 
urban center, Burltngton. does on occasion see lneldences of harassment of 
People of Color, but both the ctty and the state are qulck to get to the root of 
the situation and eonect tt. One member of our committee lives in that area 
and rnakes certain to keep us-aware.of mddences of the harassment ofPeople 
of Color. Buster members are those 1Mng In the area of .. or reasonably close 
to - Barre and Montpelier, where lDCtdcnces of hate crtmes against Jews are far 
more frequent.: desecration of gravesttes. swast:lkaa on stores and houses, etc. 
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{By reason of our by-laws regarding the stze of standing committees. we 
feel that our seven-member committee is unhappily too small to keep abreast 
of everything that happens tn Vermont. but we do our best. We always know we 
can call upon PTSSR. Inc. VARAT. PFl.AG. GLBEA (our Advisory Standing 
Committee). Out:11gb.t Vennont, and others to help us keep Informed about 
where our attention most needs to be directed. And·we also feel comfortable 
taking tssues of possible c:UscrimmatlOD. to Vermont-NEA's Board of Dtrectors.) 

(6 and 7) Activities to address barallsmeDt and recommendations to IIChool 
boards and staff development committees. 

We have conducted several SUJ"\l'eyS of schools tn Vermont to uncover 
incidences of harassment of any sort based upon any minority classiflcatton, 
and we follow up on anything reported to us. most usually with 
recommendations to the local assodation or to the school board. Vermont has 
some of the strictest anti-d1scrtl:mnat1on laws on the books. and most school 
boards are required to patte:m their polid.es In accord wtth those laws. We bave 
done statewide 'checks of school board antt-dtscrtmlnatton po11ctes. and as 
frequently as possible we make recornrneudatlons to school boards where they 
may strengthen their own policlea. In my own dist:rtct. for example. Barbara 
Barbour and I pressed for the board. to tnclude sexual-ortentation In thetr 
pollcy. which was done with no argument whatever. 

Others of our members have done the same wtth other school boards. 
though It goes Without saytng that we have not yet been able to get to all of 
them. We likew:1.Se collect from Vermont-NEA and from other sources copies of 
school contracts to monitor the language regarding cUsc:nmination and have 
recently won some Victories regarding domestic partner bendlts. sexual 
orientation language mcontracts, and tncluston of committee-approved books 
on homoscx:uallty tn school libraries. 

Yes. we have pressed widely and usually successfully for staff 
development tnscrvlce programs on cultural diversity. harassment. 
discrtmJnation. In my own school and others. the year's very flrst adviSOry 
program 1n every mJ.ddle school and b.Jgh school group addresses to the 
students themselves issues of harassment, discrtmtnatton. and cultural 
diversity. Ou:r committees are relattvely new, and we have a ways to go. of 
course. Both the Ruman and CtvU Rights Committee and Its offshoot the 
GLBEA w1l1 be making recommendattons to Vermont-NEA and its members at 
the annual Representative Assembly tn April. What recommendations we make 
we then bclleve w1l1 be carrted by our lobbyist and counsel. Joel Cook. and by 
our Executive Dtrector. Peny Kacik. to the legtslature.·--Ii-there.is more.lnfonnatton - other.than that to be provided by 
headquarters - please feel free to contact one or both of us. 

cc: Angelo Dorta. Peny Kadk. Joel Cook 
4. 
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10 WhHlock Stnet 
MonlpNar, V....,., 0.5602-3737t1i vermont-NEA (802J 223-637.5 fl,;1,. (802) 223-12.53 

Mr. Marc Pentino 
U.S. Commission on Civil Rights 
624 Ninth Street N.W. 
Washington, O.C. 20425 

Apri] 14, 1998 

Dear Mr. Pentino: 

P2ease. find enclosed the responses to the questions you pmed in your letter of 
February 2-'. I thank you for your patience and am sorry that the task: could not have 
been finished earlier. In our very small office., the prqect became my resp:msibility and 
happened to occur during a very busy period, includm3 our ~tion in the current 
important legislative session. 

However, as you can see,great care wu tabm to craft very thouptfuJ and 
detailed answers. In addition, ) made every effort topther Yirtually ever, item of 
available documentation for the Append.ix to aid your understanding ofour pasitions 
and activities regarding all forms of bias and haramnent in Vermont schcols. 1he task 
was more time-conmming than I had estimated, but the final pn,duct is more complete 
and more accurate as a result 

Please feel free to contact me if you have further questi9111 or concerns. 

An afflllate Of tbe National Education ASsodatlon 
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VtJr111ont-NEA b:sponsf:s to Questions Pmt:d in the Lt:tlt:r' ofFt:bruzy~ J998 
From Mr. Marc l'r:ntino, Unitl:d Sl1lJeS Commission an Cipj] llights 

I. Numbt:rs 1111dEtJmic/RM:iJIJ CJ«snficdaru ofMinaril;y Tt!IIChen in Vc:nnont 

Over 1,800 members belong 10 Vcrmont-NEA (includina 614 NEA•R.etircd 
members) and represent approx:imamly 87% ofcunent teachers and approx imamly S00/4 
ofthe current education support personnel (ESP) worlcforce (adminisUators are excluded 
by law}. Membership in the National Education Association, in Vermont-NE.A., and in 
the more than 150 local affiJiau:s in Vermont is totally volummy within a unified 
membership structure. Prospective members initially are requjnd to camplete asingle 
Association membership form which certifies 1bem to join their local. state., and national 
t'l'JJBDizations. 

Howewr, as long as Association members rrmain in tbe same school district and 
wae members ofn:cord for the prior year, new meznbc?sbiP forms do not need to be 
completed annually. Instead, the member's name ml relevant data is shown from the 
prior year on a local school district/local teachers' Association COIDJJllll=rizl roster 
generated by the Comroller at Vermont-NE.A's office in Mon1pelier. who has official 
n:spons1bility for maintaining our statewide mc:mbersbiJ:, n:cmds. To nmew their 
membership, members ofrec::ord :in successive yaus simply need to correct any enoneous 
personal information relative 10 their ~ teachin1 assipment. p:refened method of 
dues payment, and other necessary information and then initial tbe rosmr. 

The computerized rosters are delivered at the ~ginning ofeach new school year 
to Association. leaders in each school district who are n:spoDS1ble for signing-up new 
members and re-siping former members. ~ long as an individual's Association 
membership is unbroken within the same school district, he/she simply must correct and 
initial the roster. Ifthe individual previously bas never been an Association member, or 
had declined membership during the prior year. or bas pm new employment :in a 
different town school district or supcrvisozy union. then the single Association 
membership form must be completed.. 

As required by the National Education Association, the form contains a section 
for edmk/racial self-disclosure which should be marked by the applicant. The numbers 
and classifications ofetbnic/mcial minority teachers in Vermont are derived solely from 
the membership form. based on the willingness ofour members to self-c:tisclose this type 
ofinformation. ID 1997-98, only 237 individuals (less than 3% ofour tD1Bl active 
membc:rship) identified themselves as belonging 10 an c:tlmichacial minority. ID addition. 
37.5% (3.088 members) of:Vcrmont..NEA members-did not know·their cthniclrlcial 
category or simply did not disclose the information at all, either intentionally or 
inadvertently. 
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By far, the most dominant cau:gories among the 237 active minority members 
were American Indian/Native Alaskan (108 individuals, or 43%) and Asian/Pacific 
Islander (80 individuals, or 34%). Only 32 iDdividuals (14%) were Chicano-Hispano. and 
jmt 7 educators were black (3%) . A ~ breakdown in table fmm of our 
membelship can be found intbe Appendix ofthis report. 

(Vermont's Department ofF.dncarlon also may have a procedure for uack:iDg this type of 
teacher information, and perhaps they also should be consulted.) 

2. Numbt:rofJlJlcilJJJ/Jlnls!JmtJllt Jnt:idlmts /l4poltlld ID Vennant-NEA, l!JIJS-1998 

Members ofVcrmont-NEA do not automatically think oftbeir lacal, state, and 
national Associations as the first organization -or even one ofscwn1 posia"ble 
""P"izarions- to which they could or should report such incident& ~mprising as it may 
seem to some people, the same lack ofconnection with tbeir Associmom u a pos.n"ble 
resource or provider ofassistance IJll this type ofissue ofam is obsc:m:d wbm other 
issues arise, even including ccnain maum penaiDina to instruction and teecber 
professinnalism. Despite recent initiatives since 1995 u, cbanp the mditicmal mindset, 
the vast majority ofVermont members still tmd 10think oftheir Associations primarily 
in uas draJing with collective bargaining conc:rms and with legisJtrtiw lobbying. 

Comequently, since I first became Pn:sidcnt ofVermont-NBA in July of1995, 
my office has not received a single report ofracial barassment in Vermont public 
schools. Since incidems are known to have occuned, it probably means tbat members are 
most likely 10 first report these mmt:s to officials in their employing school district, to 
local law enforcement or municipal offices, churches, and social service orpnizatinm, to 
the Vermont Human Rights Commimnu, amd/or10 the Vermont Department of 
Education. At the pnsem time in comparison with these other entities, Vermont-NBA 
simply is too distant physically and in members' minds and also lacks 1he necessary lepl 
sumcling and invcstig:ati'Ye p:,wers to provide timely and direct assistance to members and 
students who are involved or who witness such incidents. 

Additionally, Vermont legislation passed in 1994 charps each Vermont school 
district to develop anti-harassment p:,licies, procedures for n:portm& incidents of 
harassment, and notices 10 parents and students citing the Vermont Human Rights 
Commiwon and the Department ofEducation as appropriate agencies to n:ceiw 
complaints and to handle cases ofharassment. Since Vc:rmont-NEA members are school 
district employees, it is reasonable to assume tbat our members loot first to their local 
school district officials and employers for guidance on filing reports ofbarassmc:Dt and 
that tbey_also n:alize 1be primacy of.the two agmcies cited in the lc:gisiatim. Making a 
ieport to Vermont•NEA becomes highly unlikely under these CUCUIIISbrllCC: 

s. Rl!JSpansibi/itit:S 11,11dAcCDlllplishmt:na oftht: Ver:mont-N&t Hamlin adCivil 
lligha Standing Cmrunittl:t: 
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Vcrmoat-NEA's Human and Civil Rights Committee was first formed in 1994 and 
approved as an affihared group by the Vcrmont-NEA Board ofDu=:tors. However, in 
on:ler to ensure c:omisamcy with relevant Association Bylaws covaing •ffiJiatiaas, a 
Bylaws amendment was developed and passed in 1996 which conferred status IS a 
~av,ding Committee on the HCR. group. The Vermont-NBA Human and Civil Rights 
Committee meets two or more times per year, and its respmmbilities are c,utJincd in 
Aniclc 11 (..Committees and Review Boanl"). Section 1, subsection ix, oftbe Bylaws of 
Vermont-NEA, which are included IS a document in the Appendix ofthis report 

"l. To monitor federal and state litigation and. legislation imol'ling the civil 
rights of educational onployea and studlmts and11ll:01tlllUmdb:locialion action m 
needed: 

2. To monitor atroni# activities within the educational .,,.,;ro,,,,,a,, 
particularly m it might influence curriculum and edJa:ational policy, and ret:a1'11111end 

.Association action as Medell: 
3. To mah nco"'1nffldations as appropriate ngarding 1'GO'll1'CG and/or 

strategies to elimi'llate bia.fu rel/lied to c:u/tlln and to aa:m1. orientation.; 
4. To nCOl'fl1IUfflll to the E:ucutm Committee ncipiam ofthe annml Ycmnont­

NEA. Human and Civil Rights Awards; and 
5. To rniew annmlly impltDMIIIOtion ofthe Aj/in,,atit,e Action Plan. " 

An objective view ofthe work ofVc:rmont-NEA's Human and Civil Rights 
Committee will note several imponant accomplishments in less than 4 years: 

1. raising awar=ess about community activity in defense ofhuman and civil 
rights via the presemation ofnearly a dozen awards to u:achers, students, and 
private cit:izens at the annual Vermont-NEA Awards Dumcr/Lunchcon held 
each spring; 

2. guidance and assistance provided in the establishment ofVermont-NEA's Gay, 
Lesbian. and Bisexual Educators and Allies advisory Sllmding committee. whose 
goals are: • 

• to monitor and to com:ct bamssment ofand discrimination against py. 
lesbian. and bisexual teachc:rs and stud.ants in Vermont's public schools; 
• to create workshops and programs to counteract discrimination in 
schools on the basis ofsexual oricmation and to esmblish safe ba'Y'CD.5 in 
all schools for homosexual studaats; 
• to advocate for domestic partner benefits in educator contracts and legal 
recognition ofsame-sex marriages. 

3. ··the creauon·and publication-ofa Holocaust social studies unit which appears 
on Vermont-NE.A's web site (www.vmea.org); 

4. promotion ofthe annual lntemational Holocaust lDstitutc for Youth held at 
the University ofVermont in August, 1997, in partnership with Parents, 

105 

www.vmea.org


Teachers, and Students for Social Responsibility (an affiliate ofVermont• 
NEA); 

s. collaboration with the Vermont Anti-Racist Action Team (VARAT) on two 
vital activities: 

• support ofatelephone hotline to monitor incidences ofethnicJracial 
harassment and to advise victims about assistance; 

• disscmmari"D of"An Ami-Bias Resource Guide for Vermont Educators" 
to ta.chm. administrators, pments. school boards, ml citiza:ts who need to 
know individuals and orpniDbOllS who CID usist public schools in tbe fight 
apiDst all fonns ofintolerance, discrimination, m:l hamsmeDt. 

The Resource Guide was composed by Raee LaRue,, member ofVezmcmt-NEA, oftbe 
U-32 Teachers' Association local •ffi1iaie, and oftbe VezmcmtAnti-RacistAction Team 
(VARAT). A copy ofthe Guide also is included in the Appmdix. 

4. Information /leg1lrding Yt!Jl"lllont-NEA Hlll'JJm adCiri1 llighb OJaDtlitllJe A wards 

The three categories ofthe Vermont-NBA Human and Civil Rights Committee 
Awards are pattcmed after those ofthe NEA HUIDID ad Civil Rights CommiUee and an: 
meant to cover all fonns ofharassment. discrimination,, and bias. including racial bigouy. 
The category descriptors also sc:n-e as the awards criteria for the Vermont-NEA Human 
and Civil Rights Committee. They are as follows: 

• Category 1: To the person or pmons whose activities bave protected and/or 
enbauced the rights ofteachers and the tea.chin& profession in a significant way. 

• Category 2: To that member of the profession whose professional activities have 
proteeted and/or enlutDCNJ the rights ofteachers and students 

• Category 3: To a K-12 student or group ofstudents whose activities have served 
to enhance the rights and self-esteem oft.heir peers • 

Awards bave been em=n since 1995 in one or more ofthe categories listed above. 
Solicnations for nominees begin to appear in ell Vermont-NBA publications i,toi:ginning iu 
the fall The Committee has developed its own nominating form which must be 
submitted to the Committee by Association members on or before March 1st The 
Committee itselfevaluates-all llODliDees and n:commeuds its selections 10 the Vermont­
NEA Executive Committee ad to111e·11-member Board ofDirectors for final approval 
at the March Board meeting. W'umers are publicly honored with program citations. 
personal ildroductions, and presentation ofcertificates or plaques at a dinner or luncheon 
which is held at OID' annual April genenl membership meeting called the Vermont-NBA 

· Represemative Assembly. Their names and achievements also may be forwarded to the 
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National Education Association for consideration ofnational awards bestowed annually 
by the NEA Human and Civil Rights CommiUee at the NEA Annual Meeting each July. 

Past n:cipiems ofthe Vermont-NEA Human and Civil Rigbls Committee Awards 
have been: 

1998 
- Category 2: Barban. Barbour, teadler at Windsor Junior/Senior High School 

Category 3: Kristen Nugent and Pmrick Raymond. students at R.utland High 
School 

1997 
- Category I: Karin Eade. citizen activist. Grand Isle 

Category 2: Dorimle Dorfmam, an teacher (mm Plainfield 

1996 
Category 2: Beth Duttan. teacher It Windsor Junior/Senior Bish School 
Category 3: Hallie Davis and Sarah Janes., lhadents at W'mdsor Junior/Se:nior High 

School 

1995 
- Category I: Glenn Hawkes, Executm= Director ofPmmm, Teachers. and , 

Students for Social R.esponst'bility 
Category 3: Jolie Dart,. M.uy Hocbstin, and Torie Mesropian. students at Windsor 

Junior/Senior High Sc:hool 

A variety ofsupponive materials regarding the HCR. Awards are included in the 
Appendix. 

5. Dot:, Vcimont-N£4 considl!:r racial MrllJISlllt:nl againstminoritystudt:nts ID bt: • 
probkm ill the Sllllt:?Ifa; b/1/1 itrillt!Jl'I ID lilt: 1tm:J thatn:q1lirt:s IIClion by Vc:rmont­
NEA 1111,Uorits load4fJi1illta? 

I believe that members ofVermont-NEA are becoming i.ncreasingly aware ofand 
concemed about incidents ofracism, bigotty, intolc:rance, and various forms of 
discrimination and harassment which have occum:d in Vermont communities and 
schools in n:cent years. Despite the fact that problems in our largc:st towns and cities -
such as Burt.mston. Rutiaad, St Albans, Newport, St Johnsbury, and Bennington­
inevitably recctve the greatest anemion, school cmploya:s are beginning to realize that 
subtler actions and attitudes also may plague our smaller communities and our more nnl 
schools at times. . 

They &equendy voice their common beliefthat negative values and poor role­
modeling by families and peers in communities ofany size also. can seep into our schools 
and precipitate incidents ofbarusment. And. when unforamate and ugly events do occur 
in Vermont schools, they are the ones who are most likely to penonally and 
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professionally dc:cry such negative and hurtful behavior in the school cmviromnent and to 
lead the disciplinary. rehabili1ative, and ameliorative actions within the school involving 
the perpc:ttatms and the victims. 

Indeed, such conccm is what led to the formation oftbe Vcrmont-NEA Human 
and Civil RiptS Committee less than four years ago to belp identify and combat 
etlmic/racial-, cultural-, and gender-based bias and harusmc:llt in our schools and 
communities. Although srill only a small group. they already bave started to bave an 
impact by publicizing the problems ofbias and balassmcm to other Association 
members and to the public. by fmming parmmbips with lib-minded iDdividuals and 
groups such as the Vermont Anti-lucist Action Team, and by honoring citizem, 
educators. and students who stoutly defmd our society's .bumanitlriaD and democratic 
ideals. It is only a start, but it is a direct n:acdan to problems which have arisen in 
Ver.mom schools. In conjunction with existing NEA and Vamcmt-NEA Resolutions 
which aln:ady provide a clc:ar and mm Association policy f'olmdsrion for additional 
activity. the Association's HCR. Committee provides botb apriDcipled mmplc: ofthe 
Association's concem about bias and harusmcat in om public schools and abudding 
structure for future efforts by the stm,i afliJiete ad its local counu:rpans. (Relevant 
National and State Association Resolutions are included in the App:adix..) 

It is my belief that the local school and scbaol systrm, in concert with the parems 
and citizens of the surrounding community, will ccmtinue to be the most likely and 
e&'ective source and focal point ofpositive, sustained mpcmse to incidents ofracial 
harassment in Vermont schools. The individuals who live and \11/0rk day...tmr-day within 
a particular school know best the unique ..culture"' oftheir school: the history, the 
demographics, the shifting faculty/staff/student/community auitudes., tbe available 
resources and leaders, etc. They also share the greateSt responsa"'bility for providing 
solutions to harassment problems wbCl1 they arise 811d for developing pro-active 
strategies for creating a highly positive school climate. 

More distant entities, such u Vermont-NEA and the Vermont Department of 
Education, are not nearly so well-situated to provide rapid, lasting, and effective 
solutions. They also risk the appearance and the reality of ineffectiveness ifperceived as 
seeking to institute a one-size.fits-all approach to schools and communities who may 
possess VerJ ctiffermt characteristics and who may have experienced significant 
differences in the D81Ure, fn:qwmcy, and severity oftheir harassment problems, u well as 
in their past attempts to rectify them. 

Theoretically, our local Association affiliates do not shme the drawback of. 
However, many tack the ~izariqnal consciousness for Association collective action 
on the issue and prefer instead to work through existing school district management 
policies and admin.islrative structures to obtain wbatever curricular, disciplinmy, and/or 
legal guidance and resources may be required when incidents occur. In addition. 
unilateral local Association action is not the response which holds the most. promise for 
lq-term success in ovm:oming problems related to bias and harassment. The battle 
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apinst bias and bamssmem is most effectively fought in coordinaied pannerships with 
other faculty, stndent, pm:nt. and community groups, as well as with outside 
orpnjpriQDS and nsourccs. 

However. wbal Vermont-NEA CID and DOW is attempting to do is to add its 
orpnim:iQnal wicc and its limited resources to c:oalition wort with other groups to fight 
all forms ofbias and harassment.. See #6 below for specific dt:tails. 

G. ~ Vc:mront-N£4 7 n:a:ntactirilitJs ID idt:ntil'y1111d Mil:lress nlCi.tlJ 
Juu-assrnent blcidt:nts against minority81:zldt:nts. 

Vermont-NEA can become more active ir teaching its members and others about 
student and adult attitudes and in=actiom. scbool climate indicmms. and school policies 
and procedures which may jeopardm, raspect for racial and etbmc diversity and civil 
school behavior. It also can culti'Y&!e pea.tea orpafa:ari,mal uudasaancting Qfpositive 
collective action by local Associations reprdingthe pie..emion and nmediation ofbias 
and harassment problems in schools. 

Both IS a din:ct result ofand also coincidentally with ha:rassmc:nt incidents which 
have happened in Vermont public schools during the past year. the following Association 
actions aJn:ady bave been taken or currently are being formulated to aid Association 
members. school officials. students, wt ci1izens who are willing to addn:ss known 
harassment problems and/or who wish to take pnM:Dtative mm1SURS: 

L Further consultation with the Vermont Ami-Racist Action Team (VARAT) 
occum:d this winter and led to the filing of an application by V ARAT to 
become an official partnc:r with Vcnnont-NEA. Vermont-NEA's Pannerships 
and Sponsorships Committee will consider the application at its next meeting. 
and acceptance of a Vermont-NEA and VAR.AT partnership virtually is 
ccnain. Formal pannersbip will mean additional and more conceru:d joint 
activity with pater' visibility for Association members, school boards. 
stvden.ts. pmcnts. and the general public. 

b. Vermont-NEA is intensifying its efforts to find ethnically and mcially diverse 
Association members who may be willing to participate in NEA national and 
regional minority leadership trainings . Conducted under the auspices of the 
NEA Human and Civil Rights Committee. the NEA offers a ~year training 
cycle m:l requires alteD.dance at a weekend-long training sernmar 4mins two 
comecuti-ve yeais by a m:-member team which should be '"represemative of 
tbe.etlmic divasity within the state ... Vermont-NBA then would seek to 

•- .provide opportunitiesJor trained minority Association members to give local 
'W'OJ'ksbops and other presentations (for example, statewide ~•lfflJDCI' 

Confenmce) about minority and diversity issues affecting st1Jdents, filcalty, 
related school personnel, and community members. Advertisement of the 
training opportunities will be accomplished via ex:istm& Vermont-NEA 
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publications (all-member monthly Association newspaperNERMONT-NEA 
TODAY9 twice-monthly newsletter/LEADERSHIP UPDATE. ad electronic 
bulletin/VERMONT-NEA MONDAY). Discussions with local Association 
presidents to advance recruitment ofminority mrmben bave bqlm. 

c. Vennont•NEA will consult with NEA staffud memlxn associated with the 
National Diversity Tnming Program 111d 1be National Minori1;y Leaders 
Development Cadre to detmnine the feasibility ofdeveloping and scheduling 
workshops and other tramiDg opportunities about minority and diwrsity issues 
affecting students. faculty. re1atecl school pmcnmel, and community 
members. Presentations and 11aiainp could be Idopm for emollmat by any 
Association member. Or, they could be tmpu,d far school districts wbcR bias 
and harassment problems have accumd ad/ormay be likely to occur due to 
concentrations ofminority students and other fiu:tms. 

d Vermont-NEA will COD1aCt officials at the Vmmont Department ofF.ducation 
and involve the Vennont Education Coalitioa (Vermont School Boards 
Association, Vcnnont Principals Association, Vermont S~iuteudents 
Association, Vcnnont PTA, Vermont Coalition for Disability Rights. Vcnnont 
Association ofSpecial Edncari"'l AdmiuksfJlltod. and other constiment 
sroups) in a discmsion ofmcial harassment in Vennont schools with the goal 
ofexploring possibilities for orpni:miomJ coopmation to help mnediate 
known problems in specific schools and to conduct preventative activities in 

· high-risk schools and communities. 

e. Vennont-NEA will meet witb appropriate Vermom Department ofEducation 
officials to determine c:xactly which schools have known problems with racial 
harassment, what programs OI cm1ective actions have been insthuted to 
ad.dress the problems. and how Vermont-NEA can assist in a substantive and 
eft'ective manner. 

f. A letter to be sent to all local Association presidents will be drafted for 
approval by Vermont-NEA's Board ofDirectors and will ask local affiliate 
presidents to mnind members about NEA and Vermont-NBA policy 
statements (Resolutions) which are relevant to issues ofbias, harassment, and 
multiculturalism. 

7. Has Vcrmont-NE4 or lb afliliall:s IIIMk n:commt:ndatians to 1111TschoolbollJ:dfor 
carricahan ortacht:r tmining modiliclllions to t:niw,cegrmt,:r andt!:nlandillgof 
divr:ne caJtzm:s7Jblot, :wi/Jrecommmdations olthis IUlbm: bt: fortbcoraing? 

At this time. Vcrmont-NEA has not made any specific recommmdations to 
school boards. HoMVe:r, activities listed in #6 a-fabove make it very lib1y that this type 
ofaction will occur in a general fashion and/or in specific school districts in the future as 
Vermont-NEA and its local Associations pin gn:ater undmtanding ofthe problem and 
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develop appropriate resources and implementation plans to suppon and assist our 
membms. students. schools. and communities. 

8. Hu Vt:m1anl-NEA orib aHiliJdl:s lU/2 l'ffCDlllmt:ndlditJns farslllil: Jegjslatian ID 
dl:tl:l::t adpre,'t:111 nu:illlbltrasmzt:tllincidents. U not, will /.f!ft:01ll.1lltJ:rUWians althis 
Mlllte bt: fortbco.tn.ing? • 

At Ibis time., it is Vermont-NEA's considen:d opinion that sufficient statutory 
authority and Swe Board ofEducation rules and n:plations exist to effi:ctively handle 
the problem ofracial harassment in Vermont schools. The focm ofadditional work: to 
address the problem should be on school-specific awamiess,, seasirinriou, md 
undmtandmg ofracial harassment and to action plan development 1hat asmres daily 
attention to positive individual attitudes and behavior, intmpmsona1 Jelatiouships, and 
school climate. Attention also must be paid to school and school disuic:t pocedmes 
which are respectful ofthe victims and their families. which provide appn,priate 
consequences and opportunities for rebabili1ation for tbe p:rpetrators. and which do not 
inadvertently exacerbate problems in tbe pmnl school envin:mment when incidents 
occur. The enactment ofadditional legislation is not needed in this ara.. 
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The following materials were submitted to the Advisory Committee as attachments to the 
submission by Vennont NEA.1 

1. Vennont NEA Membership Enrollment Fann 
2. Ethnic Breakdown of Vennont Teachers 
3. Anti-Bias Resource Guide for Vermont Educators, Vermont Anti-Racism Action Team (1998) 
4. NEA resolutions regarding multicuttural education, diversity, racism, civil rights, 

diverse instructional materials, institutional discrimination, and hate-motivated violence. 
5. vennont NEA resolutions regarding the promotion and protection of human and civil rights 
6. NEA invitation to October/November 1998 minority leadership training courses. 
7. Portions of the Vennont NEA Leadership Handbook (1997-1998) regarding elections, committees, 

and review boards 
8. Annual report from Marlene Burke, Chair of the Vennont NEA Human and Civil Rights Committee 

(February 1998) 
9. Vennont NEA Representative Assembly Committee Reports (April 1998) 

10. ·vennont NEA honors Students and Members,· Vermont NEA newsletter article (May 1998) 
11. •Leadership Update,• Vermont NEA newsletter (Aprll 1998) 
12. Agenda to the April 1998 Vermont NEA Awards Luncheon 
13. Letters of Nomination for the Vermont NEA Human and Civil Rights Award of 1998 

{February 1998) 
14. ·Dream Goes On-Two Rutland Students Are Honored During Martin Luther King Ceremony,• 

Rutland Herald, Kevin O'Conner. 
15. Vermont NEA - Human and Civil Rights Committee letters to teachers and students bestowing 

annual award ( 1998) 
16. •1997 Rep Assembly sets dues, refers schools that work, awards honors,· Vermont NEA Today 

(May 1997) 
17. Agenda to the April 1997 Vermont NEA Awards Luncheon 
18. Letters of Nomination for the Vennont NEA Human and Civil Rights Award of 1998 and 

supporting documents (February 1997) 
19. Agenda to the April 1996 Vermont NEA Awards Luncheon 
20. Vennont NEA - Human and Civil Rights Committee letters to teachers and students bestowing 

annual award (1996) 
21. Vennont NEA newsletter (May 1995) 
22. •Leadership Update,• Vennont NEA newsletter (November 1996) 
23. Vermont NEA newsletter (May 1996) 
24. Request for infonnation from Kimberly B. Cheney, Chairperson, Vennont Advisory Committee to 

Angelo Dorta, President Vennont NEA (February 1998) 
25. Response to Kimberly B. Cheney letter of Dec. 12, 1997, letter by Angelo Dorta, President 
26. Vennont NEA newsletter(January 1998) 
27. Letter from Kimberly B. Cheney, Chairperson, Vennont Advisory Committee to Angelo Dorta, 

President Vennont NEA (December 1997) 

1 Copies of the material can be requested by contacting the Commission's Eastem Regional Office. 
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Appendix 6 

Welcome Statement by Peter Clavelle, Mayor of Burlington· 

I want to thank the [Advisory Committee] for coming to the Greater Burlington area this evening 
and convening this forum to address harassment in Vermont's public schools. As mayor, I hear from 
many constituents about all too frequent incidents of racism in Bmlington schools and in our 
community. I have three kids in the Burlington school system and we're all stakeholders, and I feel 
like maybe I have a slightly higher stake considering that I have an adopted daughter bom in Korea. 
And I share this dream that Burlington and our State and om country will become a place that's free 
of racism and violence. And I do believe that we've made some progress, but I also know that we've 
got a long, long way to go. 

Martin Luther King defined violence as whatever denies human integrity and leads to 
hopelessness and helplessness. And I think that if you embrace that broad definition of violence, that 
we come to recognize schools as a place of violence for [some] students on a daily basis, even for 
teachers and staff. Schools are a place of violence, a place where individuals are ignored, belittled, 
called name[s], harassed, discriminated against, and threatened. As we work towards building an 
environment which is not an environment of violence but an environment of reapect, it's important 
that we understand that schools are a very important place to do this work and education is a basic 
tool to ending racism. 

It's [also] very important (and what's powerful about this forum) is that communication and 
unleashing a dialogue about racism in our community is long overdue, and we need to share om 
views and to talk about racism and the need to ensure ethnic diversity in not only our schools but all 
of our institutions. And I know that at times this is a difficult dialogue; it's uncomfortable for some of 
us; for many it has provoked a reaponse of denial. But it's time for us as a community and as a State 
to put these issues of racism on the table and to deal with them in a very forthright and honest 
manner as painful as that might be. 

While this evening's focus is on schools, it's also important to remind ourselves that we can't end 
racism in schools without ending racism in all of our institutions, whether it's city hall or businesses 
or universities, our neighborhoods. We've got much work ahead of us, and certainly zero tolerance for 
racism in schools and the workplace is a place to start, but certainly is not a place to finish. We've got 
a long journey, and this community forum will bring these issues front and center and place them on 
the table as a milestone on the journey that we're embarking on as a community. 

There is a distinct separation between city government and the schools. [The schools] are a 
department of the city but largely autonomous. I do think it's important that the mayor, as the only 
official in the city that's elected by all of the citizens of the city, utilize that office and the bully pulpit 
of mayor to provide issues of leadership on public education and certainly on the very important 
issue of racism. But I share that responsibility with 28 other elected officials in the city of 
Burlington, 14 school board members, and 14 city council members. So I've attempted at times, not 
as boldly as I might, to provide leadership, but more needs to be done and that there is a 
reaponsibility on my part to provide leadership on this issue. I also want to-acknowledge the fact that 
the chair of the school board, Carol Ode, as well as one other member of the school board, Leslie 
Kaigle, are here this evening to hear firsthand some of the testimony that will take place this 
evening. So I want to welcome you here and thank you for convening this forum. I think it's a very 
important dialogue; one which we need to continue-<0n a ·more regular basis~ Welcome. • 

• Pn::scntation delivered by Mayor Clavelle at the Nov. 4, 1997, forum in BurlingtOn. 
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Appendix 7 
Examples of Damaging Cuniculum and Prospective Altemattves· 

Damamng Curriculum 
Example 1: Seventh graders studying the United States 
Constitution concentrale on the Founding Fathers, ach 
writing n:pons on one person and then dressing up as that 
person to deliver their n:pon.s. Teachers appear not to notice 
the hidden messages. All of the Fathers an: white men. all girl 
studenu and boys of color an: being made to conccntralC on 
and dress as a white man. All of the Fathers an: relatively or 
quite affluent. When the Three-Fifths Compromise is 
discussed. no one speaks ofa black person's point of view. 

Example 2: Teachers in one school fmd that several black 
students in the school tend to be dispersed. one or two to a 
classroom. Teachers ay to change that Still, painful incidents 
will occur. A white child explains that she was toudiiDg her 
classmate's hair because she wanted to feel what a black 
person's hair was like. 

Example 3: The main seventh grade history book in a 
middle school does include women and men of color, white 
women and disabled folks, but they tend to be mentioned in 
sidebars or in optional end of chapter activities. T eachcrs at 
the school have not noticed the hidden messages. White men 
are the norm, others an: optional or exceptional exceptions. 

Example 4: An elementary school celebrates black history 
month with [an) array of posterS of (people] of color. The 
principal spotlights one person ach moming when she 
addresses the school over the PA. During the Vermont Equity 
Project the principal suddenly recognizes the bidden messages 
her staff has been sending: Peoples of color an: marginal, 
extra. We'll celebrue their lives merely as a display to pass by 
or we might say as extracurricular activity. 

Example 5: Two sixth grade tachcrs taching Cen11'11 
American and Canadian history, a recommended unit, center 
their units on milestones in c:ach nation's political and 
economic development. The people highlighted tend to be 
either affluent public figures or faceless native_ groups like say 
the Aztecs. Again, the racist, sexist and classist messages go 
unspoken. Where an: the women, both native and European; 
where is family or community life., both native and European; 
what is happening to native peoples? 

Alternatives 
After one semesler's discussion about inclusive cuniculum­
md my c::xpcrience is tbal it doesn't take a day's in-service. it 
takes 11 least a scmesta' about 30 to 45 contact hours of 
taching-some seventh grade tc:achers decide to keep the 
focus on the Constinnion but to teach it diffcrendy. Half of the 
class does pretend 1h11 they're going off to shape the new 
government. The other, however. after a full class discussion of 
varieties of roles and lives m.ys home. Male farmers, 
apothecaries, women who m,: now nmning shops. indenwred 
sc:mmts. Africans-in-bondage. Everybody now discusses the 
ccmraJ issues. Tacbcrs and students need to talk about the 
relative power. the validity and audibility of the voices of all 
those parties to tbe discussion. 

Two tachers, one black, the other white. one a c.lassroom 
tacher, tbe other tbe guidance cowuclor. swt a group to bring 
cbildn:n of color together, to talk about themselves, shire 
experience and galber strength. 

The group of teachers who made the discovery about the 
tcxlbook do lcam the tools needed to diagnose these diseased 
messages and they take two intermediate steps: 1. They tach 
units of American history as more inclusive using the text as 
just one supplementary source and 2. they teach their studen1s 
to see the bias in textbooks so the students can n::cognize the 
next time they an: presented with biased materials. 

[The Principal) begins to wrestle with the need to bring peoples 
of color into course units throughout the school at every level. 
lfs not easy to involve all of her teachers, to teach them the 
importance ofchanging. But she has involved about four-fifths 
of her staff so far in the Equity Project. No disb'ict mandate 
helps her out. Teachers choose professional development 
courses from an array of competing agendas. Unlike 
Minnesota., for instance, there is no strong, funded Stale 
mandate for malting diversity a top priority for prvfcaional 
development. 
Teachers begin to recognize these and other damaging hidden 
messages and they take two measures. They teach their m!dents 
ways to ask questions I just posed so that the children know 
how to see their own course units and how to talk about what is 
included and excluded and reasons why. llac tcacbcn find 
books about Canadian women of color. biograpbics of 
Mexicans, books about ordinary hmnan beings IDd about 
crafts. communities and the role native peoples played in 
assimilating, n:sisting. helping Europeans stay alive, aclin& ill 
all the ways in which they participated in human story. 

• Presented by Merryn Rudedge, Vermont Equity Project. See Burlington Transcript, pp. 212-25. 
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Appendix 8 

Letter to the Advisory Committee, Nov.12, 1998 
VT De artment of Social and Rehabilitation Services, Division of Social Services 

State of Vermont ' 11 - ' 1111 ~GENCY OF HUMAN SERVICES 

.DEIW,trmtTT 9rvrlL~ REBUIIJTA.110N SERV1CES 
_,__,, eM>OC a~:,,
,._~_".._._ - • --

SoaAL SERVICES DIVISION 
25S Nanb Main Sll'CCS. 4'1h Flaar 

Blffc,.Vermant05641 

Tel: (802) 419-GfiO 

C-mluiaer'I Oll'lce 

Cblld CanSenlcu 
Dlalllltty DdennlutiOa U.lt 
Lkenlinl .I Replatla DIYiliaft 
Social Sefflrn DIYiliaa 

Hovember 12. 1998 

K.imbe1:ly Cheney. Chair 
The Vermont Advisory Committee to the U.S. Coan. on Civil Rights 
t·Cheney, Brock and Saudek 
159 State Street 
Montpelier, VT 05602 

o.e.ar K.im: 

As requested by the Committee, we are adding this information to 
the oral statements we made on November 4, 1997. 

we believe that school policy is often created as a reaction to a 
possible lawsuit or threat thereof, rather than beinng a proactive
plan to reduce racism, discrimination and harrassment in the 
schools. 

Having said that, we would like to identify some simple, and often 
cost effective measures that every Vermont school could easily 
implement. 

While the focus of the Committee was on racism, we believe that 
racism can only be reduced whP.n all children are valued for their 
innivieua!ity. We believ~ the schools should go beyond tolerence 
and should celebrate all children. 

In Doty Elementary School in Worcester, Vermont, which has less 
than 100 students, the administration and faculty were open and 
responsive to the needs of a black child who felt isolated and 
unliked. School personnel immediately began acknowledging the 
child!a presence.by speaking.to her, using her .name and touching 
her in an appropriate manner. The Guidance Counselor is now going
into the classroom tvice weekly and meeting vith students regarding 
their special similariti~s and celebrating their uniqueness. Tne 
classroom teacher is now aware that: the room environment reflected 
only a white society. She is now making· an effort to include 
materials that represent people from various ethnic groups. The 
school is also including more grades in diverse presentations that 
in the past were often the focus of only one class. 
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Montpelier's Union Elementary School's current program was 
initiated in response to a threatened lawsuit. Initially the 
school over-reacted and became hypersensitive to any incident of 
possible racism.. At first, school personnel identified one student 
as a victim and another as a perpetrator rather than teaching both 
children about racism and it's harmful effects. The perceived 
victim was often made to •tattle• on the aggressor. Personnel 
reacted positively when they were asked not to put a victim on the 
"hot seat". 

The Washington County Youth Services Bureau applied for and 
received a grant which allowed a Diversity Coordinator Bonnie 
Johnson-At.en, t.o be in the school t:.wo days weekly. Also an 
Advisory Diversity committee of teachers, parents, community 
members and the Diversity Coordinator was formed. 

It became apparant that some school staff believed that racism just 
didn' t exist while others acknowledged that subtle racism was 
apparant. These latter teachers often said in essence, •tell me 
what' a correct and. I' 11 do it". The committee decided that we did 
not want to dictate to teachers what materials they should be 
using, but rather be a resource for them to broaden their knowledge 
and understanding on diversity issues. ,, We also agreed that even 
though we might not have a direct influence on parents and their 
attitudes, the school needed to take a firm stand on what was 
acceptable behavior on school property. 

Over the last few years, there have been many positive changes at 
Union School . Many of these changes were due to the ongoing 
presence of the Diversity Coordinator and the receptiveness of 
school personnel. 

Hallways began to reflect a more diverse spirit in displays. 
Different cultures were included in many of the classrooms' themes 
rather than being isolated to certain times (i.e. Martin Luther 
King, Jr. Day and Black History Month). Teachers began to feel 
comfortable in asking for help from the Diversity Coordinator 
and/or committee. The Advisory Diversity Committee organized a 
multicultural book fair for teachers which was a huge success. 
Monthly school-wide assemblies were held where different themes 
were presented and students had the opportunity to display their 
creative talents in the school. 

No one ethnic group was the main focus and we tried to ensure that 
no group was ignored. The school also supported the belief that 
name calling is as hurtful as physical aggression. 

The Montpelier Main Street Middle School does not yet seem to have 
th7 sa~e ~ocus on racism and diversity, but we are hopeful that 
this w1ll-1mprove through staff, •parent and conanunity·•involvement. 
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We thank you for this opportunnity to provide these statements and 
we strongly support the work of your committee. Please feel free 
to contact us if you have any questions or desire further 
information. 

Sincerely, 

::0,4"~ 'b. ✓j,r~J/3 ~~d---c 
Diane Dexter 5ucli-;b-Blank 
Adoption Coordinator Adoption Social Worker 
Dept. of Sae. & Rehab. Services Dept. of Soc. • Rehab. Services 
103 S. Main Street 255 R. Main Street 
Waterbury, VT 05676 Barre. VT 05641 

802 241-2142 802 479-4260 

CC: Mare D. Pentino, Civil Rights Analyst 
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Appendix 9 

"Reading, Writing, Racism," Vermont Times, Sept. 10, 1997 

E R- M D N T free 
SEPTEMBea 10, 1997, 

... 
Chittenden .County's Newswe~kly: www.vermon~~t1me1.com 

~eading,.Writing, Rac~sm 
BY SHAY Tom!N 

AStholllandsoflbldaus, 
from the wry ,aung to 

IChaol. ftl1U1l to 
lhe dunoom dlil IIIDlllh, a 
new cl'fon is underway ill 
Vermont to educate chem 
about racial eqaliry. 

But, that wan: will DOC like­
ly put an immediate dmt in die 
underpinnings of nc:ill disbar• 
mony that pcmules tocla,'s 
society. In chc put three ,an, 
according to the Vermont 
Humam 'lights Commissicm, lO 
pen:ent of the 56 cbarps made 
apimt schools iDYOlwd alJe. 

·pdonl of race disaiminatioa, 
with • majority inYOl'rift& 
chugcs of nicial haraumcnt. 

•And, act:mding to • prelimi- . 
nar, mcarch papa' prescatal 
to tht Vermont Adftsory Com­
mittee to the U.S. Cml 1Jp11 
Commission l,y ahc Moan, 
Elmore lllllitaac. ndaU1U1111• 
mcnt in v.r-.t ii· fnqucnt 
and comon.. apccially 
•IIIODI lludtnlS. the inscilutc, • 
• priftte raan:11 foandadon 
that focuia on di'ftrll.J 
raan:h, b'llining and mnsuli.:; 
in&, abo found that molt 
adminiltntors an: pood7 
equipped to handle the psvb­
lem. 

Last year, the Vamont An~ 
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... Talaanct, /nnn J'fllt J 
R1d1m Action Team wH 
formed, A coallton or partnll, 
tuchen, 11adenll and commu• 
n11, actlYllll, the poup woru 
to help .coonllnate IOfflC or the 
wo,. betn1 done &, lndlYldual 
organlutions In •1rlou1 pock­
ell 1hro111ho11t the 1111e. The 
group al,o atahlllhtd a special 
hotlne ror &mllla incl lndlYlcl· 
11111 ractnc dlscdmlmllon and 
haruament. P-,,le who call 
the hotline are 1lven lnforma• 
tlon ab;c,111 their r11hu ■ ncl 
what IUOtan:a arc •••llable to 
them. 

Al •1c11 hucl bac• to school, 
they do so on the heels o( • 
aummer marked with HYCral 
nctal lnctclenll, the most clra,... matte o( which -• a teenage

:0 African American l,oy hnten 
with • baeeball bat .,, I white 
teenager. Whde no hate crime 
charges hatt been Ditti aplnst 
lhe atllcker, parenll Incl other 
comnaunlty actlYllll are con­
Ylnctd the t.attnc •• nc1a11, 
IIIOll•tlll. 

Other toed lncldenll 
tnnlffll Yletmmese ra1c1en11 
who wen ahaott ldcked out or 
latter)' Parle for orplllzlna •ol­
lql,ell pme1 wtlh doaC1II of 
pl11m, ancl the lilt 1oe1 on. 

Vermont hu alwap had 1 
mbed record when It COIDtl to 
ndal tolerance. known for Ill 
1t1unch antl-slawerr tentl• 
IMftll d■rtnc the CIYII War, It 
had nudy 100 ,an prtor to 
the War letwetn the Slata 
outlawell lllrmJ In Ill COIIIII• 
11110n. Vcnaont hu also 

V!IIMONT llMU • ~ 10, 1997 13 
tlon department the power to 
ove11ee and analyze at will 

• local 111111-4111:.dtnlnatlon poll• 
da. 

•The reality or the 1ltu11lon 
It that we don\ over111 ■nr• 
thine tmelwecl wlttl the legl1la• 
tlon that w11 pasnd three 
,can•••• 11y1 Paul fauler, 

. an au~, with the 11111 Edu­
aitlon Department and 1 (re­
quent •llelldee o( public meet• 
lnp repnlln1 h1raument and 

• dbcrlaalnadon In the 1chool1. 
r· "We Wfflt ln•olffcl, perh1pt 
.!',instrumental. In denloplna.
4 '(he 11at1'11 11111'-hartiument •ea· 
'ttlatlan ror lldiool.. but the bill 
doel .,_ Include an, o•ert11ht, 
irNI ._ 1IOt am rapoMtblll• 
1J or a,ower •• the Departfflfnl 
or !daadoll. We hlwe -..keel 
1ehool 4tttrt«J to KM us their 
pobda and 901M have, b■t 

As kids. head back to· school, they do so on. the heels ~-=:en~:, man, 

of a summer marked with several racial Incidents, the. :tz:":;--..:;~:,'°::! 
most dramatic of which w~s a teenage:Africa.;. ~etican ,:;;"...";.::=~1;!':= 

boy beaten with a baseball ~~t by_ a~- tee~gK... _• .··~'i.;t.:::= 
. , . :,, • ·•..; •. • ............_IICtl~II 

· · · • , · •.•• ~,.( .; : - .::L • die .. fer• llllllft lndallft 
lmpnmd Ill record recendr io ennce II .'-a llapl la ,die '- :t. ad■!nlllnll~ .;felltles .,._,inll .,.. _..

111Include n,ecplng hate alma 1thool, II ....... ..,.. ...... p,tm ... bJ It• •L- .........L$ 
Im which pre-date man, 11111- pus11rorchanat.~..._-. ··a.11. _,.,..._. _. , ~ " - ~ -
llar boo.. In other 1111a. the t'm,llaotciombl&eu,llllhe.' ·•111t ·1t 1t..~ who t. .tlle .-- tr tlaent~ 
Vermont Hlltorlcal Society hu G11e11 Mcnmllla Slate. • cbrect nthorkp OWt lhe tfftc• • . • • .J::':i:_• lheJ 9!. 
nen complied a . 1eachln1 The U.S. Departllltftl of d'ffltUI or thtte polldn. ::....., ~..": _, 
booklet ahcnat Vermont\ n>le In l!d11C11llon'II Chtl Rlpll dlyt. Ollffltd,ly. U.S. offlctal1 can • ne, ·:, :,, . 
the anclerpoancl nllroail, 110ft CUM to hlllnp,n 1h11 llep In -~• tlae •re •P- The onlr ·111111 •the ttite 
which lncldel copies or °"11- tumlDII' incl uiallltsW an f&IDlc piablam er a 1p111 or 11111M fotdM, fflllllSI to see 1nal letten and documenll. •mdlellt. with lhe dtf lllrnPI, 11 WM "-.e case In dlllrlct\ polky It If 

Stlll, a 1rvw1n1 concern 1ehooll .co ltnPN'ft .._..., lurllnpm. HowtYer, the state . . 1 com• 
alJout how dais bMI of new .,a. aWlfflltft and,_.... tada doa nol pt Ill own educa- Mon Tolfflmtt. pagt If 



il=i;r1 i!!t;rr~·1;lI; 1-liolfI iti· tt,·'r:1 ii1~Jl ~ 
-2.:silti;.1·,aw=-ttirr;.1~1· 1•= gsl:it!I !i:Jll fl'i· !f 

i:l] 1Er I1' I[{t_1i •la::i'. ~ r;: .! , .r!ii't~ ·1'f. i,•1· lf i { J 
ia·::, -I ro lz= ll ag. .. 1-i; 1• 1.f tr 2. -~ 1.i' le.,-t l

~-ii ,u ih..1~·,,·r ;,::J',1r1l ,U!u1'"1h 
.... t,, !1li1~ia thtl!1 lltt'•~!nt......llir"MJ"' 1: 
~ ~1uiriutdtU1hHi1t!t1?u!:'Hlt •• «n1t11t,·1tu1.;t 

i.-• 
1d~h!iJd!!!l!rhJ.-t1u•,1r~J1 1 It I, ._i.Jllh 

··-•f''i't-.i-lfar1ll.[ft=11:-,•i•t... tf '!ff1- 1,-~::,•1t1· '[,.1~· t=;.,it,,.~:t ·ii ·a ge. I . 'Ir~.-, .1· ' ' I. •.t lifB.I 

?!r!:~iidJ u,t:,lhl!h1,h l~1 1l l f :ln kuhl-'1 



UNRED WE STA.ND Of 
any school dblic:t. dam has - are olcrin& W.. ID illhlC 
Ileen no puser inOm of , Iwidlia ,-r nplar ~ 
minority 1tudcn11 &ban ill I . baa. Wc'ft • die -.•' 
lutliD&IML While paanup- . •..... peop&e aft. Clp""'PIN i@IO& f 
Wilt, VrUIOCIIIID .., De .... I 1111G people .. ..., ... 

• iD aont ffllllft saaclaus. ,... abiiro. • ..-,. A-, IW, 
ludiap,o is aakiac • lanaalller ..........aninJlla... 
mizofcukw. ' --a.s•• ,.,,....... I 

._,_,_..,,,._allflea.- i 'Wllllli...-;,tic; l4la,.._... .......... ................ 
1dlool ........... lmd- .................... 
1111ioa.t.s.-mdtiarplas .......... 1"111n;..,..a1. 
iar-.ce&.aiftpalic:iadaat' ! ,.._. ..., 1 g PIM-. 

iec:orpoatc die coaccpu of • ·--~~_. -~llo&-

promoana ~--~"'~.~·ayialD,lhedisaicr.hm•and l . !M?i.- : 

MOLl>minl the past time yan. /The parentsgetting invo~ ~ th~t's criti~l. We've 
!:::;-a_;~a: · I got ·the kids abouf ·six.'lic,u~. a . day,_,. ~ore if they
S:.,~;ri:~/~lay sports. That_ p~les i~ co~pa~.Qn -tq-_.the ~,:nount of 
.•_..=.._= ·time they spe_nd. wath the tarnffy and TY. · . • 
":'t-~ c:ollapo .. ... 1_ . 1111,-l'lil' •• ' • . ' 
• l'IIOUl'all In dlie c:lamiom lO :, • . _,,. Minud,. h«Mt t. ,,,,....,,,of.,.,._ Jc1Joafr 
cada .... diftlli&Jt • • • • .. . . . 

•1 have.a helm.& it II IMR • • • 
kinds or COlllleC'bOnl that att 

..,... ...........lnllwlraJJy loia& to -.. people 
into attioa. With dais ...... ...................... 

dwraom.~Wllar' .,.., .... 
... Iha! .... - • ..., 
..........~-•tally.........-....... 
thillk ....~)Impel • 
lflld ia the,,..,... - •.• 
a,s MellC'llauap., "We baw 
278teachasllllda-,allbow 
daisisUDp1111,1111.•nowwhal 
we will worit OD II ilaar l&ady 
workowa:tbe-1woor 
three ,an. I allo dunk that 
when an equil)' cooalinaaor is 

' !med, that person will lie aWe 
: to point 'the taclias io IOIDe 
' addiliollal 1-.as.'"' 
I WhUe Mellcnamp ncoa· 
.ninsthaa1llilllltdlc .... ,.
:-.-,nota.c .. ._
!Yoca1,.._................ 
she feels il b 1 ~wl 

,pn,ecaift 11aaapc·to meet 111c 
concam oI .U ci1J niklm11. 
including those .tao-}' not 
see spendh,g IDOIIC}' •diftlllt• 
•, Hldning for «achm-· pri­
onty. 
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•Ovenll, I think we're lucky 
10 have some goad dialopc in 
this communil)' We'n: 1IOl a 
polarized as we could IJC, or u 
u is in many c:kies IICl'GIS -·. 

COURb'); • MJS Mellencamp. 
The admimsualioa Im also 

been at "°* tllHDg - or
the most claaiW. policils ID • 
track complaints. The IK&tc 
considers Burlia,pan to bne • 
one of lhc mc:ist sophisticar.ed 
tracking methods. Each super­
visor and priadpll keeps a log 
of complainlS. and lhmc an 
compiled by lbc cmlnl al&a:,. 
uysjim Warnock. cbc Wlirmt 
superintendent·al tbc Burling­
ton diSmct. As 1ftll, llc'is naci-
6ed or any cmaplaim and be 
gas involved imm~ • • 
: "We also put a lot or enaz, 
"into the issue oraadmt 1G IN• 
dent harusmcnt, and aRalial­
ly our stance has .nally 'been 
one or zero tolerance,• 
Warnodt aid. 

When there b an issue 
involving a student. the pu• 
mts of the child are bnntpt in 
10 discuss the maner. 

•Any time you deal wilh ll 
•as extensively a JOU can, and 
that mans won.in& with kids 
as early· as possible,• ays 
Warnodc. '"TIie parents gating 
involved - Iha.ti attic:al. Wew · 
got the kids about six hours a 
day. Thac pales in comparison 
to the amount of time they 

apmd wilh the familr and TY:• 
A. pari or the sdaoo~ wclJ.. 

Dal P'Cll'W. wlaida aims ID 
make ltUdcms well-rouaded. 
produc:tiw dlizms, studcnl:s 
are 1aupt about aD the so­
called -mas· or modc:rn-day 
life - KXism, racism, ageism. 
and other discriminalal')' mks. 

•at allows students ID baft 
more or a dialogue wilh ac:b 
ocher and £or them ID under­
stand and acczpt·olher cal. 
tun:s: •JS.\.mm& Benjamin 
Samucla, who teacha lhc 
diYcrsity class to tenth gnders. 

·1n lbe snen ran he been 
hacu.dac._ol.malti­
cu.ltunl ..._.afLms._of 

. my ......, pis Im beat IO 

..... blaancia1. tntcrmkunl 
-~ 1 chink dlis 
,-r Ii ·dlilaat, IN:cautc WC 

Wlllll. dais 10 be a sustained. 
OIIIOU'I and propamaaic 
eD'on.• •JS Dot Willi.ams, 
c1ircctor of mallicultmal 1l11• 
delll dimsatSL Michaels Col­
lep. •w-.people nspond 
10 iacidents of haan:d in a 
knee-jerk • • fuhloa because 
dlen: is DO .,..... in place t.o 

dcal°~~lhcpraWcmWorek 
ariseL, • . 

"We know tbae baands ate 

s1a1a1_ 11D111n -, cues -­
m1.· 9'1111um·•,S. • But, WC 

an: clclcrmined to let people 
thiak ill a iaew way. I .look at • 

.. lhis u-sblninc a bright light on 
this ,ndaaoa.· • • .. . 

m 
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Appendix 10 

Donald A. Grinde Jr., Director, ALANA/Ethnic Studies, University ofVermont, 
Summary Recommendations 

The University of Vermont 
ALANAST\l:JES PA0GAAM 

WHEE.LEFIHCUSE 
4G! MAIN STREET 

IIURUNGn:JN. VENOl1' ~-. 
(1112)---

MXflll2> .....S:S 

November 5, 1997 

Marc Pentino 
Eastern Regional Office 
Onited States Commission on Civil Rights
624 Ninth Street, N.W. 
Washington, D.C. 20425 

Dear Sir; 

Re: Summary of my November 4 remarks and recCJlllllleDdations before 
the Vermont Advisory Ccmmittee to the United States COlllllission on 
Civil Rights about how the University of Vermont can help to remedy 
racial problems in Vermont Public Schools 

The ALANA Studies (Ethnic Studies) program at the University of 
Vermont seeks to foster an environment at the university and in the 
community where race can be freely and openly discussed. The 
threefold purpose of the ALANA Studies program is: 

1. to offer students a curricul.um that deals critically with 
racism in America and its possible solutions 

2. to aid facul.ty in research on race and racism in America 
and Vermont 

J. to provide support to local and state c0111fflWlities as well 
as institutions for the advancement of knowledge about 
people of color in America and racial problems. 

Through these goals, the university seeks to equip students (white 
and people of color) to function in a multiracial society in the 
21st century. In short, the mission of the university in this area 
is to instruct students, in a meaningful way, about race in 
America. 

Bence, the university is very much committed to outreach to the 
State of Vermont and its educational institutions on dealing with 
matters of race. As Director of ALANA Studies, I believe that a 
proactive response to racism in our schools is the best approach.
We must stop the replication and reinvention of racism vis a via 
our children that we have witnessed in testimony today. 
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Towards this goal I recommend that the University of Vermont and 
the Vermont Stat~ Colleges meet with the Vermont Department _of 
Education to develop a comprehensive program about race and.racism 
that is relevant to the needs of this state. The following are 
some suggestions about policies to be pursued. 

1 the Vermont Department of Education should mandate in the 
ui7idergraduate teacher training and certification of ~eacher~ 
courses that deal specifically with racial problems in America 
and also specifically in Vermont. These courses should be 
followed up with continued in-service training about race for 
teachers. 

2. the Vermont Department of Education should mandate training
in racism and the methods to combat racism in the public
schools for school administrators as well. There should also 
be continued in-service training for administrators. 

3. the Vermont Department of Bducation should mandate 
antiraciam training for school staff (bus drivers, 
secretaries, etc. ) as well. this training should be an 
ongoing process to make sure that all staff members are 
exposed to such problems and instructed in the ways to 
eliminate and/or minimize racial problems in their work 
environments. 

Such antiracism training for persons employed by the pul:>lic schools 
should get employees past the denial phase with regards to the 
problems of race in our schools and accept the fact that as Vermont 
becomes more diverse there will be a continued and sustained need 
for more vigorous efforts in antiracism. 

The enlistment of parents and the local community in the efforts 
against racism is also very important. Parents meetings to discuss 
the implementation of these policies should be held so that they 
can understand the intent of the Vermont Department of Education 
and its institutional partners (universities, etc.). This will 
encourage parents as well as faculty, staff and administrators to 
take ownership over racial problems. It is important that white 
society understands the damaging effects of racism on them· and that 
they are an important part in developing a solution. It should be 
emphasized that children unaware of the dynamics and effects of 
racism will be ill equipped to function in the multiracial work 
environment of the 21st century. Students, school employees and 
others that commit racial bias acts should be reprimanded
appropriately and/or sent to classes and/or counseling that seeks 
to modify their racist behavior. At every turn, significant steps
should be taken to protect the innocent victims of these acts and 
to condeam the perpetrators of such acts. If we blame the victims 
or isolate them, we send the wrong messages to those·that conmit 
such acts and we do little to eliminate racism in our educational 
institutions. 
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In the development of these antiracist goals, the University of 
Vermont pledges that its ALANA Studies faculty and faculty of color 
will play an integral role in developing these policies, programs 
and objectives. It should be emphasized that well documented 
racial problems in our schools are systemic and comprehensive
efforts from all sectors of our society are needed to eliminate. 
In sum, The university can provide leadership in com.batting racism 
and developing antiracist solutions specific to Vermont but all 
parties involved (the University of Vermont, the Vermont State 
Colleges, the Vermont Department of Bducation, Boards of local 
school districts, faculty, staff, students and parents) need to be 
invested in the process. Persons of color as well as sensitive 
whites should provide leadership in these efforts so that 
combatting racism can be perceived as a multiracial endeavor. 
However, the improvement of the experiences.of people of color in 
the public schools should always be the primary focus. In essence, 
the rights of the victims of racist acts must a1ways be protected
and should not be minimized for the sake of the majority
population. 

In the final analysis, antiracism training in our public schools 
requires a multi-institutional and multifaceted effort. It will 
require time and resources from the various institutions involved, 
but it is money well spent to insure the future health of our 
society. 

Since 1, 

'~----'b 

v-,.....,...lCLJ.d A. Grind 
Director, ALARA/Bt ies 
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Appendix 11 

Comments to the Report by Donna K. Jemilo, 
Superintendent, Burlin_gton School District 

.., .................... c......... , 

Commince's 

October9, 1998 
Responses 

Mr. Mark D. Pcntino 
U.S. Commissioo on Civil Rights 
.Eastern Regional Office 
624 Ninth St=t NW Suite 500 
WashingtonDC 20425 

Dear Mr. PentiDo, 
This lener and anacbmems sem as a respm,.se ID your request for n:viewoflbe 

section ofthe draft report ofthe VermontAd.Yismy Commiaee to 1be U.S. Qmnissi• 
OD Civil R,jgbls, ltllcial Horautllflll in ,,,,,.,,.,hblicSchools, n=mly lllll ID my 
office. 

Parqrapb 1("In rarly 1997, ... ) Any complainlS tbal may bm becn sec:eiwd by 
the Office ofCivil Right., (OCR) &om pan:nts 1111d community lcadm tbat alarge 1 This 
number ofracial barmment incidcms were occurring in lbe Burlington area wm IIIMI' 1 infomwion bas 
shared with the district by OCR staff. In fact. as the anached leuer ofMarch 31, 1997 been revised 
from Mr. Thomas Hibi.ao, Regional Director for OCR Region 1, notifying the district of subsequent to 

its selection for acompliance review SlllCS, " School systems are selected for review 
based upon avariety offactors, such IS the sm ofthe minority populations within a 
district, data from federal and stare sources, sec,grapbic location. and related infomwion. 
Compliance reviews are usually not pn,mptc:d by complainls, which are handled by OCR 
staffupon r=ipt." (pp.I). While Mr. Hibiao's leua docs srae that "OCR SllffwiU work 
with school officials to assist the district in conduC1ing asel'-usessmmt ofits civil rights 

Superintendent 
Jemilo's review 
of the draft 
rcpon. See 
Chapter l, pages 
2-3. 

profile relati~ to the issue under review, ml to clcvdop positive recommendations to 
address civil rights conccms. orID prevent NIUre compliance problems" (pp.2). there is 
no reference to specific compwDIS or complaints.in general that "a large number ofmc.:ial 
harassment incidents wae oc:c:mri.ng in the BurlingtOn area" nor is there reference ID any 
..claims that reported iDcidcnts wm not being effi:clively addressed by the district". 
Therefore, to summarize IS the Rp0!1 cbs in this paragraph that the OCR compliance 
review was prompted by complainrs ml.claims is an inconsistmt representation ofIlle 
ralionale for this compliance n:view IS formally presenu:d to the district by OCR. 

2 2 This section 
ofthe report has 
been revised 
based on OCR. 

hraglaph 4 ("In preparation for the review, ... ) This paragraph is wboUy comments 
inaccmat.e. ln preparation for the review ofthe Bwlington Sclrool Distric, the OCR whicbdonot 

fi.lllyagrwwilb 
Supcrintadeat' 
s interpretalimL 
Sccpaps2-3 
and Cbapm I, 
footnole 17. 
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Pratillo, 
pp.l 

ffllUested copies ofthe district's harassment policies and procedures along with student 
discipline records from each school in the Burlington School District. copies ofschool 
discipline procedures. school handbooks for students and pan:nts and other pertinent 
infonnation. All ofthis was collated and presented to the OCR in saict compliance with 
their timelines. It is worth noting here that the Burlington School District had a fully 
compliant hanwment policy in place prior to the development of a model policy by the 
Vermont Depanment ofEducation. And with regards to the issue ofwhether differing 
degrees ofdiscipline were applied to minority students in the Burlington Sehool District. 
Mr. Hibino's Jcncr ofJune 27, 1997 (anached) swcs: "No clisciplim-rellled issues were 
identified which require future action on the part of the Disttict" (pp.J). The refcn:nce in 
this paragraph ofyour draft report to other school clistticts having failed to adopt 
harmmcnt policies bas absolutely nothing to do with the OCR review ofthe Burlington J J Appropriate 
School District. I am also not aware that the OCR conducted any stale-Wide review of changes have 
individual school district harassment policies and it certainly was not done in preparation been made to 

for the OCR review ofthe Burlington School District. I urge you to research and clarify the final n:pon. 
this before committing it as fact in this report. 

Parapaph S ("Following the review,... ) Aaacbed to the June 27, 1997 lcma- from 
' 4 ThcPARMr. Hibino cited above is a copy ofthe Resollllion Agreement entered into review 

collaboranvely by the Burlington school District and OCR. I trust you have or will resolution 
review it for a fuller understanding ofthe ongoing cffon:s on the part oftbe district. Also agrccmc:ntand 
attached is a letter to OCR dated Febnmy 27, 1998, from James Warnock. the district's the school 

district'sAssistant Superintendent, reporting the district's compliance with provisions ofthe 
subsequentlu:solution Agreement. 
com:spondc:ncc 
issbown inWe appreciate the opportunity to review this section ofthe draft report and Appendix 3 

provide this additional information and corrections to insure the report's accuracy. 

c.c: Cuol Odc, Board Clair 
James Warnock, Asst. Supcrintaldc:nt 
Bonnie Johnson.Atm, Divenil)'/Equity Coordinator 
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• UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION 
OFFICE FOR CIVIL RIGHTS 

REGION I 
JOHN W. McCORMACK POST OFFICE AND COURTHOUSE. ROOM 222 

BOSTON. MASSACHUSETTS 02109 

March31, 1997 OFFICE OF THE 
REOIONAL DlREC10R 

Ms. Donna Jemilo, Ph.D. 
Superintendent ofSchools 
Burlington Public Schools 
1SO Colchester A venue 
Burlington, Vermont 05401 

Re: Review No. 01-97-5011 

Dear Superintendent Jemilo: 

The purpose ofthis letter is to inform you that the Office for Civil Rights (OCR), U.S. Department 
of Education (Department), has selected the Burlington Public School District (District) for a 
compliance review under Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (Trtle VI). Tide VI prohibits 
recipients ofFederal financial assistance &om discriminating on the basis ofrace, color, or national 
origin. This review will focus on whether the District ensures that Sb•dents .sue not treated differently 
on the basis ofrace, color, or national origin in the adroinistts\tion ofdiscipline; and whether the 
district ensures an educational environment free from racial harassment 

As a recipient ofFederal financial assistance from the U.S. Department ofEducation. the District 
is subject to the n=quimnents ofTitle VI. The Title VI regulation at 34 C.F .R. § 100.l(a) and (b)(l) 
and (2) defines specific prohibitions against discrimination. Under the regulation at 34 C.F.R.. 
§ 100.7(a), OCR has authority to conduct periodic reviews of school systems to ensure their 
compliance with the civil rights laws and regulations. The regulation at 34 C.F .R. § 100.6C 
authorizes OCR's access to information maintained by a recipient ofFederal financial assistance. 

School systems are selected for review based upon a variety of factors, such as the size of the 
minority populations within a district, data from Federal and state sources, geographic location, and 
related infomwion. Compliance reviews are usually not prompted by complaints, which are handled 
by OCR staff' upon receipt. 

Compliance reviews have traditionally involved a comprehensive investigative approach resultiq 
in formal findings issued after several months. Recently, OCR bas developed a more streamlined 
partnership approach, which allows greater participation by school officials in shaping the outcome 
ofthe process. This new approach, called Profil~ Assessment, and Resolution (PAR), recognizr:s 
that Federal, state, and local education agencies, as well as parents and other interested parties. share 
a common goal ofproviding equal opportunity and access to high-quality education for all students. 
Through this approach, OCR seeks to combine its expertise with that of state and local officials, 
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Page 2- Dr. Donna Jemilo 

parents, and other community members to reach effective solutions to high-priority civil rights issues. 

In conducting this review, OCR staff will work with school officials to assist the District in 
conducting a self-assessment of its civil rights profile relative to the issue under review. and to 
develop positive n:commendations to addrea civil rights concerns, or to prevent futme compliance 
problems. OCR staff will be on-site in the district for fom to five days to interview district 
personnel, students, parents, community groups to facilitate Wlderstan.ding of the issue and the 
concerns in the District. OCR staff will meet with school officials to discuss draft recommendations. 
and provide written recommendations within a few days ofthe on-site visiL Ifcompliance issues 
are identified during the review, OCR staff' will work with you to achieve an agreement within 30 
to 45 days that will resolve any outstanding issues. 

If the compliance issues are resolved through the PAR process, 'WI: will not issue formal findings. 
In the event we are unable to achieve resolution ofthe issues through a cooperative effon with the 
District, OCR will conduct further investigation, issue • written findinp, and take additional 
enforcement action, where necessary. 

Last year, OCR worked with school districts throughout the nation to achieve resolution of 
compliance issues through the PAR reviews, and developed written matm:ials that facilitate the 
process. Enclosed are copies ofOCR's PAR Issue Brochure on disciplining minority students and 
ensuring an environment free fiom racial harassment. the District Assessment Ouid.e, and a Profile 
Data Request. 

• The PAR Issue Brochure describes the PAR process, and provides school districts with 
guidance and recommendations for discipline and racial harassment/hostile environment 
issues. 

• The District Assessment Guide is an evaluation instrument that school districts may use to 
assess and identify potential civil rights concerns for these issues. 

• The Profile Data Request is designed to provide a district profile regarding minority 
discipline and racial harassment/hostile environment issues. The school district's response 
to the Profile Data Request will be used in conjunction with the District's assessment to 
facilitate OCR• s on-site review, and to assist OCR in formulatiq recommendations to the 
District regarding these issues. 

Mr. Fred Dow, ofmy staff, bas begun discussions with you to determine mutually agreeable dates 
for a PAR review of the District and preparation of the District's Profile Data Request and 
assessmenL •• He • also explained the PAR review process and ·the uses of the documents 'WI: are 
sending you. 

Please be informed that the Title VI regulation provides that no recipient of Federal financial 
assistance or other persorAS shall intimidate, threaten. coerce, or discriminate qainst any individual 
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Page 3 • Dr. Donna Jemilo 

Please be infonned that the Title VI regulation provides that no recipient of Federal financial 
assistance or other persons shall intimidate, threaten, coerce., or discriminate against any individual 
for the purpose of interfering with any right or privilege secured by applicable Federal law, or 
because one has made a complaint, testified. assisted, or participated in any manner in any 
investigation, pnv:eec:Jing, or hearing held in connection with a complaint or review. 

Also, under the Freedom of Information Act, it may ht- n=essary to release this document and 
related correspondence and records upon request. IfOCR receives such a request, we will seek to 
protect, to the extent provided by law, personal information that, if released, could constitute an 
unwarranted invasion ofprivacy. 

I appreciate your cooperation in participating in this process. We look forward to the opportunity 
to work with you and other District staff: Should you have any questions at any time during the 
course of the review, please contact me at (617) 223-9667 or Fred Dow. the .Equal Opportunity 
Specialist assigned to· this review at (617) 223-9663. 

Sincerely, 

;?k-J.~ 
Thomas J. Hibino 
Regional Director 

Enclosures 

cc: Marc Hull 
Commissioner ofEducation 
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UNITED STATES DEMRTMENT DF EDUCATION ill I!~ I! Ou: I! ~ 
OFFICE FOR CIVIL RIGHTS lE)I 

REOION I ' 
JOH'- v. M1.<"ORMACK POST Oft'ICE AND COl.iRTHOt.:SE. ROOM':.? ~OfflCI 

BOSTON. MASSACHl.iSETTS 0:!lfJ9 

June 27. 1997 OFFICE OF THE 
REGIONAL DIRECTOR 

Dr. Donna IC. Jemilo 
Supcriniendent of Schools 
Burlington Public Schools 
150 Colchester Avenue 
Burlingmn. Vermont 05401 

Re: Review No. 01-97-5011 

Dear Superinlendent Jemilo: 

The Office for Civil Righis (OCR). U.S. Depanmem of Education. hu raolvcd tbe Profile~ 
Assessment, and Resolution (PAR) review wbich tbe Burlington Public Schools (Disuict) and OCR 
conducted in pannersbip in May 1997..This review WIS c:aaduCled under die aulhority ofTide VI of 
the Civil Rights Act of 1964 and focused OD 1121! issues of discipline. racial barassmem and bonile 
environment. 

Community and school-based focus groups wen: a significant part of this review. OCR facilirated a 
number of focus groups during tbe week of May 12 wilb members of die Burlin&ton Public Scbools 
and the Burlington community. The purpose of lhese focus groups was to provide the opportunity for 
any community or school member to attend and participate by sharing their views on tbese issues and 
to generate ideas for future activities. Additionally, OCR reviewed information provided by dlc 
District and olhers relative to 1hese issues. The information from these various sources was used to 
develop die agrecmmr which WIS signed by lhe District on June 27, 1997. No discipline-n:laled issues 
were identified which mtu.ire fumre action on the part of the District. 

When fully implcmenrm. lb.is Agreement wW resolve the issues of lb.is review. Cominued compliance 
is contingent upon die Disail:t's implcmcnwion of Ibis Agreement (copy enclosed). We recognize 
the sreps me District bas already t&keo to address lhese issues and lbezeby enbaJlce educational services 
to sb.ldems. We commend tbe District for working to continue to improve the services it pn,vides 
stUdents. We unders1and dlat me Disuict will work ID implement Ibis Agreement over 1be nm sevaal 
years in accordance wilb the agreed-upon 13rFt dates. Based on Ibis Agreement. as of the date of lb.is 
leuer, OCR considers Ibis phase of· die review completed. OCR will wort wirh lbe Disaict and will 
monitor me Disrrict's implerneatHian of die Agreement until it .is fully implemented, ll which time 
OCR will close Ibis review. 
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.. 

1'balllc ,au far your cooperadon and mat of ,our saff dwi.og dlis review. Should you iaa,re any 
questions, you may coaracc Frederict Dow, Equal Oppormnicy Specialist, at (617) 223-N63 or me 
at (617) 223-9667. 

Silaftly. 

~~ 
Rqiom.l Dinctor 

Eaclosure 

cc: Honorable Marc Hull 
C'ommissioaer of Educati<m 
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JuH 27 5 2; f;j '97 
. RESOLtrl'ION A.GREEM.ENT 

PROm.E, ASSESSMENT, A.ND RESOLUDON REVIEW 
Blll'fi:Dpm Sdloo1 Dlltrict. .8a.rliqtDII. Vll'IIUlld 

No.11•'7--11 

1be Burliapm Scboo1 Dillric:t (Dislric:t), Burliitsu,a. Vmnoat,, sabmill tbc fidJowins n:9Dh:aicm 
qrccmcat fw ~ aod 1CiiiCdyiq dl:ial hansllPfflT ID b 0!6ce far Civil R.ipll (OCR). 
U.S. Depw:LliiieiDt of.Edumzicm. Thia agaoammt IDIUICS 1iom a Pra&lc. Al ,,-. a 
Rc:solutioa (PAR) nniew, wbir:h OCR. ccmducted in.pcaw,Alip wida dae nist:dc:t in. May 1997 • 

. 
OCR. adcnowledps Im su:pa Im Dilcric:that ahady 1llba ID enbenne-'tnliaaal llll"ric:m a 
all a'b.ldlmTs, ad commends Distric:t officials far warldas• 01dhn+ i.., improvelbae ~ 
Baaed an tbcjoiar en san1pQt md 1:bc n,;omrncr+.ferirmpnidecl duliastbis rnicw, 1be .Dillrict 
.,_u follOIWL 

1. By Nowmber 1, 1997,, the Disnict will minr ita bln11 -ent,olicy aad paced.ure. &Dd 
revise aa a« vy, ID msme 11111 the fbDowins coacaaa .a. lddz I cl· 

• &bin arc m.. fiama tor diemajw llllpS ofdie ,roc:ca: 

- tbe procodan ia wnDID ill ...... tbal is euily 1IIICffllltoDcl by •dents•~ 
pccam; 

- it is clevtbal the oamplaiDam bu cbe opliOD o£ bt.R is DOl rcquind ID, cmmonl 1b.e 
&'ICIIINlllmrauer; 

• a dear aplaatiDA ofwhat will bappcn at the i.af'ODD&I Jcvel is ill:luded: 

- it is c1c.v tblt cb.e c.wnpleio•at CaD report 'Che compJaim 11Ct 1D7 staff'p:noa. llOtjust cbe 
principal: 

• tbcrc ia the ability ID haYe complaints -winch are mon than 30 days old .tdlallld; 

• indudcl a aaunace tbal tlae aebool will tab steps to c:mnct a:, adwne eff'stl oftbe 
hlnssmmt OD~ comp'l•is111at; and odlc:n; amd 

• iDcludcs cnmpJc, ofa;pproptiare disciplimry smctiou with. amp ofCODN'iumc:. lbllt 
1ft daipald ID ICW-U a dr:tam::at. 

2. By May 1.1991, die.DilCrict wJll nMCW, ~ mumcr in wbic:h sdmol t-riktin& officri•lt mw 
imphmv•aring m111:nmmmt policy md proCDdure • This lll'riewwill mcbule1ba 
mvolvemmiofpma11 ud. whcnapprapriaae. madca.11.. wbobavl:pittidpatalia 111e 

) 
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u:npbmumtation ofthe harassment procedun:. This process will be daiped to ensure that: 

- actions tabm u, nmecty a compJainl do .aot nqadvely impact tbs comp)li:ant; 

• clmr, comistcDt ud acc:mate doeumear.ltion is kepi con.ccmia, the prawuing ad 
outcome ofcomplaints; 

. camplaiNDD Ge never n=quiled ID c:onfroDt tm ac:cmed bani.wt. md c:cmfrontanon is DDt 
ccmsidered to be an oplion in i::ases wbm it is DOl IPPDJll&te; 

- apptttprim. sipilic:ant and consilb::nt comcquc:m::e:s me aclmiail1:Cl'ld far "Violationa oftbe 
harassmcat policy; md 

. eompleinentl a them-panmts ac pnmded w.lth 1111 llplly meaebleimoanllion 
co.acemiaB the cnm:ame ofinYesliplions, iadvdm1 tJw cona,quenccs - the IICCWlld 
barasser. 

3. By .Da.:emba:r 1, 1997, 'lbe ~ wDl compl1!1ea 11•11mmtofea:h'bullcfina•stzaiaiq 
and cuaiculum. Deeds with mped to cliw:rsity wince mJalioDL The UIIISIIMl'Jl should also 
address ways mwhich lbe District c:an ficililll!C*...,_milofe:,risdng mmrilllll 
ad effective models desipec\ 10 fDIIII' an iadmlve. mnlticubmal CUlliclllum. By P1a111117 
2, I 991.1be Dimic:t will begin 1D implemmt tnimDg adodler acti:ritiel iD IQCOldanc:e with 
its &Slk:Hlllfflt 

4. By Decanber 1. 1997. the Dislrict will initiate cm-aoin& fmaws 10 pmmo1e dwoguc amonc 
students, Dimict mJt; prrc:nts ad olhc:r comm,,mity mc:m'bcs. ffPldiDI m:c issues with tbe 
aoal ofenhancing comm.llllic:atioD between all parties. These fbrums will plher input in 
a variety ofareas includiaa: 

• a complaim procedure far c:oDJffl1fflit¥ and parents to voice tbeir conc:ems over the actions 
or polir:ics ofthe Diltricl; 

• the n:cruiamt offa;uky and staff who meet the needs ofminority students. incllldina 
studenll who me limib:d Enslishproficient; 

- the role ad nspo.mibilmel ofdle Dmnity/ Equity Comdiaator to idadfy isslel which 
have bem c:ffectively addnmed. and those ill which lhcre are cm-aoiJII CODCCIIII; aa4 

- tbt.. cm1cnt itlategic plan which addleaes issues ofclivmit;y and ncc rclaliam, how 
tbae iuaa could be made adean:rpriorit;y for tba Distric:t. and. ifapprapriatl:, 
devcJo_pmcmt ofimproved mecheaimt for 'bdta" CC>11HD:mt.iealion mprdiq the District's 
implmlmtadcm oftbat •ateJL,! plm. 
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S. Sy October 1. 1997, the District will develop & mec:h•aism to pn:,vidc imormllicm. on a ·em­
pi.ag basis to lbe community. pmaits. ad stud=ts n:prdias the bolctiq oflbese fDrmm and 
the ialw:s niled duriDg tb=m-

6.. By October 1. 1997, 1b:District will dew:lop ad implc:mcmt aJUD for imp1oviD1 
communication. w&b families who are limi-' En,fish prafic:icat. 1'llis pllD will iachacle: 

- policies ad pnc:liccs fbr the pn,'Yisum ofschool infmmation and naticc:a in l'tlldcnls' 
primary home la:aguaps; 

.. polici• and practices far the provision oftramed lnmdwtoa t:o &cilitale 
commumeation 'bct•ecn tbe Disaict and pm:eats wbo lll'f!I ihnhad En&lisb poth:icnt; 
and 

- provision ofsips ira the 9Chool buildinp amd an scllool puuDdl ia. lanpaaes otbcr 
urmBqlilh. 

QPORTIN'G PBQYISJQNS 

1. By December 30. 1997, the District will .submit to OCR. a npartGD 1be nsultl ofits l'fficw of 
its barusmenl policy aad proccdare in acrmdaDce with it&m. 1af1be Apecmmt. incJvc:tins 
my nMIDODS to the policy and pocedwa.. 

2. By May 25, 1991, lbe Disl:rict will submit to OCR a rq,al'I CID 1b&! nmlti orits nview ofdae 
implcmcmtaticm. afita herassmmt policy and procedures in accordace with iu:m 2 ofthe 
Agreemmt. 

l. By December 30. 1997, the District will submit to OCR a n:pcXl on. tbc n:suhs ofits 
assessment oftraming Dcc:ds iD &COldmce with mm 3 ofthe~ad a c:opy ofits 
plm ofvainiag udother activities to address1hae needs. 

4. By February 6, 1991.1bcDimctwill submit to OCR.a report on dmresal1s ofbsdfmtsto 
improw commumratioas amoac 11'\Mlcnts, District staft pan:nts amd otbP- mman.mitr 
members on race issues. in accord.mce with mm 4 oftbc Ap,emmt, includmg a de,crq,ticm 
aftbe apecific actiom IBbm with nspect to the ida.tified •cs, as wen u-,Olhel- issues 
nilecL By Ime J0.1991 the District will pnmde adescriplim ofotherareas addrc:ssed 
tbn,up the forams, lldlom 111km •• result. ad its IIMSIIIIMll .-.fthe impect oftbesc 
activities. 

5. By October 17, 1997, ti. District will JUbmit 1u OCR. adescription oftbc process dewloped 
ill accordance wit1l i1mD 5 oftbe Apeemem. 
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6. By Deamber ]O,. 1997, 1:be Disaict will su.lxnit ID OCR.a c:opy ofits plan for UDJJl'DWII • 
c:ommuaicadaa with families wllo cs lim111:d EnsJi.sh p:rv1ic:ic:nt, iD m::acdlaae wi1b. i:tt:m 6 of 
~~ • 

The Dillz:icl lDkt••™'• thll OCR. will c:oaduct addi1iGm1 follow-111 fbela pupcli-=naiou 
amd will• plllt ofill znonitcnw lDI C'V1N11:ioa. 1'1alldi'ridamay becaaduc:lld bcfbrc ar 
inmacquml to Ille Diltdct's AJk1111i adevalul:dom. Dales ad linm wJll bP .,.,,,ff,.,_, 1bat me 
:mnrueHy cmrvwai-. adm:ieplll&le to OCR. mcl tbe D.iluia, ad well eaonsb ID advance ID 
allow for timely pepmatian for tbele Yilits. 
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February 27. 1998 

Mr.Fred Dow 
U.S. Deparanent ofEducation 
Office for Civil Rights, Region 1 
J.W. McCormack Post Office & Counhouse Bldg., Room 222 
Boston, MA 02109-4S57 

Dear Fred, 

I am writing in accordance with the ieporti.ng provisions ofthe PAR. Resolution 
Agreement between the Burlinp,n School District and the Office ofCivil Ripts, U.S. 
Department ofEducation. I have attached copies ofvarious documents in support ofthe 
information provided below. I am pleased to shme with you the actions undertaken by the 
district in addressing issues raised during the PAR review conducted last May. Please do • 
not hesitate to call me with any questions or requests for additional information you may 
have. 

1. District review of its harassment policy and procedure. The district conducted an 
extensive review of its harassment policy and procedures that has included significant 
revisions in the procedures to accommodate the concems cited in the RSOlution 
agRement. Draft copies ofthe procedure have been circulated to district 
administrative staff for further review and comment with a particular interest in 
seeing that the procedures will have realistic time frames, readily understood 
languaae for parents and students. and clear assurances that stepS will be taken to 
correct any adverse effects ofthe harassment on the compJaioanL A copy ofthe draft 
complaint procedures are attached. I will be meeting with the superintendent, the 
district's legal counsel, and the district's diversity/ equity coordinator to finalize these 
procedures. You will note in these draft procedures provisions that offer the 
complainant the option but not a requirement that he/she confront the accused 
harasser; clear explanations ofwhat will happen at the infonnal level; a variety of 
school officials other than the .principal to .repozt a complaint to; and, the ability ID flle 
a complaint that is more than JO days old. 

I SO COI.CHl£STl£11 A¥1£NUI'.. 9VIILINCTON. VERMONT 05'01 18021 8M-MC51 fl'AX 8C5••8501 
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2. District review or the implementation orits harassment policy and procedure. 
This will be reported per the resolution agreement's report date ofMay 25, 1998. 

3. District assessment of each building's trainia1 needs. As indicated in my 
November 10, 1997 letter, this assessment is a primary responsibility of the district's 
recendy hired diversity/equity coordinator Bonnie Johnson-Aten. Since her 
appoinanent on December I, 1997, she has worked extensively with individual 
school principals. staff. students and parents to begin identifying individual building 
training needs and potential activities, programs and trainings to meet those needs. 
Bonnie has also been addressing ways in which the district can. Cacilitate shariDa 
among staffofexisting materials and effective models. 1bis bas been approached in 
part through a district-wide training session for all elem.eat:ary staffwhich also 
encouraged peer connections to be made. Similar trainings at the middle and biah 
school levels have also been conducted. Bonnie meets with the central office 
administrative staff frequently in regularly scheduled meetings to insure good 
communication and support for her work. Attached is a report to date ofthe initial 
training and curriculum needs assessment ofindividual schools in the district. W'tthin 
the next month Bonnie will have completed an assessment for Smith and Hunt 
schools as well. 

4. District efforts to improve communication among students, district staff, parents 
and other community members throup initiation of ongoing forums. Attached is 
a document outlining work. completed to date by the diversity/equity coordinator. 
Forums have been conducted through a special dialogue night on diversity for parents 
and students, at ALANA and REAP (Race Education and Action Project) meetings. 
as well as with the FACE UP group. I will also be meeting at the April 8 REAP 
meeting to discuss district recruitment plans for candidates ofcolor and to share 
openings with the local community and network. The district is also working closely 
with the University ofVennont and bflginning tund raising for support ofthe Coming 
Home project. This project provides loan relief for qualified local minority students 
who complete UVM's teacher training proara,m and an: hired to teach in the 
Burlington district. In conjunction with assessing the implementation of the district's 
harassment policy and procedures, additional forums and communication with parent 
groups will be conducted. 

5. District development of a mechanism to inform community, pareaa aad 
students about forums. Information is disseminated in a number ofways regmding 
forums and other activities regarding diversity. School newsletters, the student 
newspaper at BHS and flyers have been effective in getting out the word. The district 
will be hiring a pan•time public relations coordinator who will be ofservice in 
generatina additional ideas and means by which this infonnation can be _. 
communicated. I will be reponina further on these effons later this spring. 111111 
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,. District developmeat aad implemeatatioa of• plaa to improve communication 
with families wbo are limited Eaaf.wa proficient. The district plan builds on past 
practice in utilizing interpretative services to meet a variety ofcommunication. needs with 
families that arc limited English proficient. In addition, part•time home/school liaisons 
for each ofthe district's two largest ESL student groups (Vietnamese and Bosnian) have 
been hired with grant support to assist in inlprovina communication. with these families. 
All major district communications to parents &om policies to notices about head lice 
have been provided in ttanslation to limited English proficient fiunllics. The annual 
district calendar bas also been translated as we1L With the recent advent ofadditional 
limited English proficient siudents into the dis1rict, the board has approved the •ddilion of 
another full-time ESL teacbcr for this cmrmt school year. Sips iD both Vietnamese llnd 
Bosnian arc bcina developed for installation at Burliqton. High School where the largest 
group ofESL students are in attendance. We expect this inslallation to be completed by 
early spring. All ofthese actions will be pulled together into a more formaUzcd plan that 
will be forwarded to you with artifacts upon its completion this spring. 

I look forward to hearing from you and would be more than pleased to mange for 
a visit ftom you or your staff should you so des.in:. Take care and give my best to Carolyn 
and Robert. 

Sincerely, 
• t 

/2l\,\.,iJll,i i;l i>J.ui....~-

( JJ cs Warnock 

c.c: Dr. Donna Jemilo. Superimendcnt 
Carol Ode. Board Chair 
Bonnie Johnson-Aten. Diversity/Equity Coordinluor 
Sman Gilfillan, McNeil, Leddy and Shcahul 
file v 
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